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Corporate Information
NEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (resigned as the Managing Director and
an executive Director and re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 11 January 2011)

Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu

Mr. Ho Yin Sang

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick

Mr. Chen Maosheng (appointed on 11 January 2011)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (re-designated on 11 January 2011)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Mr. Henry Tan

Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert

Mr. Tse Kam Hung

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lo Ka Leong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of America, N.A.

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

China Construction Bank Corporation

Citibank, N.A.

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
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LEGAL ADVISORS
Ashurst Hong Kong
King & Wood Mallesons

REGISTERED OFFICE
Caledonian House

69 Dr. Roy’s Drive

P.O. Box 1043

Grand Cayman KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

2nd Floor, Harbour View 1

No. 12 Science Park East Avenue

Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park

Shatin

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street, P.O. Box 609

Grand Cayman KY1-1107

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Financial Highlights
B REE

Year ended

31 December 2011
BE-B2—-F
TZA=t+-BLEE
HK$'million B&3#

Year ended

31 December 2010
BE_Z-Z%
+ZA=+—RHLLFE
HK$'million BE AT

33,891.6
7,373.1
5,010.0

3,509.0
3,620.8

HKS4.146 37T
HK$4.278 37T
HK110.0 cents 1L
HK50.0 cents 1L
HK60.0 cents &1Ll
26%

HK$30.3 #7T
23%

AHHEREZREBENT
“E-TEBLUIRIEEER

Pk E8)

@ BEMERFEES 2 K
=ZREFEXNBNTEBT (K

EIERIR)

® MO ANR—E—T =5
N+EE T (N D BIRR AR
D8

Revenue e 36,559.1
EBITDA* AMBRFE - BE - TERBHABAN 6,123.8
Underlying profit before tax* BB AR 3,627.3
Net profit attributable to owners RNRRE ABGEAR
of the Company
- Underlying net profit* — BRI 2,583.5
- Reported net profit ~IREAF 2,594.2
Basic earnings per share SREREF
—Based on underlying net profit* — ERGRIFE HK$3.026 & 7t
—Based on reported net profit —AEREANGE HK$3.039 /& T
Full-year dividend per share BREERE HK65.0 cents
- Interim dividend per share —EFRh Rk E HK40.0 cents &1l
- Proposed final dividend per share —-BRBRARERE HK25.0 cents &1l
Dividend payout ratio REL = 21%
Net asset value per share BREETE HK$32.8 & 1t
Net gearing FEELE 40%
Excluding: TeIE
2011: (1) impairment loss on available-for-sale investments —T——%F: (1)
of HK$83.2 million (net of the portion shared by
minority shareholders)
) gain on fair value changes of investment properties
of HK$306.8 million (net of deferred tax)
) share-based payments of HK$212.9 million (net of
the portion shared by minority shareholders)
2010: (1) gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments T -TF: (1)

of HK$111.8 million (net of the portion shared by
minority shareholders)
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Financial Highlights BE1 &2
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Revenue Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
et EAYNCTES YN (=g
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEAT BEAT
39,000 36,550 3,600
36,000 3,300
33,000 3,000
30,000 2,700 2584
zz:ggg 23,681 23863 2,400
21,000 20,025 2,100
18,000 16,773 1,800
15,000 oot 1,500 T
12,000 1,200 v
9,000 7,082 900
6,000 a4 600 . ws a0 an
3,000 e 243 410 513 T8 B9 915 [ 300 |y oo ot TE
0 0
1963 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 \m 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 \ma 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ZZ-FAZE+= A" April-Dec 2002 —ZE-EMAZE+= F April-Dec 2002
Note:  Changed financial year end to December from March 2002 onwards Wiz BZTTE-F-AR MBRFEFEAHRATZA
* Annualized = REFELEANE
2000  Excluding the gain from the spin off of copper foil business of HK$178.4 ZTTTF TRESFINAZERFS2178,400,000/8 T 2 Wi
million
2006  Excluding the gain from the spin off of laminate business of HK$4.8 billion ZRERE T RESIFENER B FT1S24,800,000,0007 T2 Y
and discount on acquisition of HK$49.7 million a5 M U BB 4T 72 49,700,000/ 7T
2007  Excluding the gain on fair value change of conversion and redemption DT AR REREERETETAY ATTEZBNEG
option derivative of HK$182.4 million; loss on disposal and deemed 182,400,000/ 7T « HERBRELE MBS AR #ER
disposal of interest in an associate of HK$23.7 million and discount on 2 I§51823,700,000/% 7T M Uk BE 47 21,000,000/ 7T
acquisition of HK$1.0 million
2008  Excluding: 2\ TR
(1) loss on disposal of convertible bond and interest in an associate of (1) HETRRESHE —HMBEAaERD 2B
HK$189.7 million —REBNFLEETESET
(2) impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$253.2 million @ FMHHEREZREBE_FRET=-_1T8%8T
(3) discount on acquisition of HK$45.1 million () WEHENTARE —+EAT
2009  Excluding: ZZTNF TEIE:
(1) net loss on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$82.6 million (1) HEWBARZEEFENT_aT8ET
(2) gain on disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries of HK$340.0 million (@) HEHMBAREMNDERZ W= ENTEET
(3) impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$111.8 million () AHEEREZREBE—RB—T—B8/ \TEET
(net of the portion shared by minority shareholders) (MR BARR TR EE)
(4) discount on acquisition of HK$11.4 million (net of the portion shared @) WEEE T A& TGRSR TS
by minority shareholders) 88)
2010  Excluding the gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments of ~ ZZ—%F TRELHENHEEREZRE—E—FT B8N \+8%
HK$111.8 million (net of the portion shared by minority shareholders) TR D EARFR TR 19%58)
2011 Excluding: ZT——F TEIE:
(1) impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$83.2 million (1) AMEHEREZHEBENTF=a-+&8#T(0
(net of the portion shared by minority shareholders) B DB PTG 19 58)
(2) gain an fair value changes of investment properties of HK$306.8 (2 HBEWMERATEEZHZHWR=EZTENTEET
million (net of deferred tax) (HIBRIERERIE)
(3) share-based payments of HK$212.9 million (net of the portion shared @) UBRGHEANFRZE—FZah+ES (KD
by minority shareholders) HREFTE1H5E)
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWRSE

Revenue Breakdown by Product # %355
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FY 2010
T -EEHBES

Laminates Chemicals
BINER CITER ENRIARBE IR

BUSINESS REVIEW

It is my great pleasure to report to our shareholders that
Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Group”) delivered
resilient results for the financial year ended 31 December 2011
despite an extremely volatile and difficult operating landscape.
Export order demand was hit by the impact of the European
sovereign debt crisis in the second half of the year. Furthermore,
severe flooding in Thailand in the last quarter of 2011 (“FY11 Q4”)
caused serious disruption to the electronic component supply
chain. As a result, electronic products manufacturers made
aggressive inventory adjustments which in turn affected our
revenue and earnings in the last quarter of 2011. Backed by a
strong performance in the first half of 2011, the Group’s revenue
increased by 8% to HK$36,559.1 million while underlying
net profit (excluding non-recurring items) declined by 26% to
HK$2,583.5 million and basic earnings per share was HK$3.026.

06 Annual Report 2011 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement &

Despite strong headwinds in the second half of 2011, our
experienced management team managed to lead our employees
to deliver profitable results from all core business segments.
Driven by buoyant domestic demand for chemical products in
China, the Group’s chemical division delivered impressive growth
in both turnover and profit. The Group’s property developments
division continued to generate stable rental income from our
investment properties during the year.

On the back of our solid financial strength and proven
management team, the Group has built up an excellent business
model with a balanced portfolio yielding diverse income streams.
This has created a concrete buffer for the Group against
economic downturn and enables the Group to maintain our
robust financial position. The Board proposed a final dividend of
HK25 cents per share, together with the interim dividend of HK40
cents per share paid in September 2011, constitutes a total
dividend per share of HK65 cents, representing a payout ratio of
21%.

BETHFRLERRL L FRHE - SELRESE
WERBEGSEDEET - FT—0  EmE
ZLERBDABFEENANER - L THFRE
REAEBEMZNRDER  —T——FRARE &
FRENNEEEGER - BHERE T H - SKE
METREBERNSEETRIBENHSWA -

BREFNVRENMEFERBEFHET @ &
B2 ZTCEBAES MR - EE SRR
B RIIBIERAMIKEE N - KRER BRI #
iR EFSERRESERERB25E -
BRAR-Z——FNABRESR40EZF H
BB 2FkEARAER6SEI - RS XE
21% °

Annual Report 2011 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 07

R —FFR BELCIER



Chairman’s Statement £ ERE

PERFORMANCE

In 2011, global demand for electronic products was negatively
impacted by the Japan earthquake in the first half-year, followed
by the European sovereign debt crisis which in turn affected
consumer confidence in the second half of the year. In addition,
the severe flooding in Thailand in the second half of 2011 also
caused significant disruption of component supply along the
electronic supply chain which resulted in aggressive inventory
adjustment by electronic products producers. As a result,
laminate products demand was weak in the last quarter of 2011.
Hence, shipment volume and capacity utilization of laminates
fell sharply in FY11 Q4, which in turn created immense pressure
on our profit margins. However, domestic sales denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) continued to be robust and increased by 13%
compared to last year. Hence, turnover (including inter-segment
sales) for the laminate division was similar to the previous year
at HK$13,839.6 million. Volume sales decreased by around
9% against 2010 and average monthly shipment reached 8.5
million square metres. Despite a net increase in the average
selling price of laminates against the previous year, continuous
raw material price and other operating costs increase in 2011
in addition to lower capacity utilization in FY11 Q4 impacted our
margin. Hence, earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (‘EBITDA”) decreased 26% to HK$2,517.6 million.

Similarly, the Printed Circuit Board (“PCB”) division was also
impacted by rising costs pressure, softer demand as well as
inventory adjustment by customers in the last quarter of the year.
Turnover for the PCB division declined by 7% to HK$8,116.1
million and EBITDA decreased 35% to HK$1,056.5 million. The
Group has allocated resources in the past few years to expand
the production capacity for high density interconnect (“HDI”)
PCBs. The division successfully upgraded our product mix and
expanded market share in this market segment. HDI PCB sales
increased by 30% against the previous year, accounting for 17%
of total PCB sales and generated good earnings contribution to
the division.

08 Annual Report 2011 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement E£ERE

Demand for chemical products continued to thrive in the Chinese R EIFIB¥HL TERBRERY > i —T——FR
domestic market. As crude oil price increased in 2011, chemical  JHER 7+ #HEML TEREBRN FEF EF o
products selling prices showed an uptrend during the year. In  BBFE - —— N EEFBREES BRI
the second half year, the on-going tightening monetary policy of  {t TERERBFT N - BEBEEN - EREEM
the Chinese Government to tame inflations created very tough A /AFBEF SEREE TTE - MIdLEHE 6
business conditions and in turn caused certain chemical prices £, FF B2 BN & &1 15 BB IR R (IR /8 5y @
to soften. During the year under review, our phenol/acetone ¥ - (b TEFIE £ (RIED I 246 ) LFH18%
plant in Huizhou, Guangdong province continued to achieve Z—Bt+HELTNBLTEBT KBS -
outstanding performance. The Group’s other chemical projects — FiIE ~ 78 R 2 BFIEIN6%E -+ — B =F
including Xingtai coke/methanol plant in Hebei province as T +EB7T - FRREEE LT SEEEKS
well as Hengyang caustic soda plant in Hunan province also R EIHZEF (KEHD K E HPEAR{LERKBR
delivered attractive earnings for the Group. Turnover (including AFA %2 KARKEREE R ) RKEFIEIN29%E
inter-segment sales) for the chemical division jumped 18% to —fAThBER+EET -

HK$17,076.7 million and EBITDA rose by 6% to HK$2,120.9

million. Share of associates results (the bulk of which was

contributed by our natural gas based methanol joint venture with

China BlueChemical Limited) increased by 29% to HK$259.5

million as a result of higher methanol selling prices against last

year.

Yangzhou-phenol/acetone plant will commence production in 2012 and fuel chemical division earning growth.

R-Z-—FREOBNER, RRFSHEESC IHMNEAEE -
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Chairman’s Statement FfE#{ &

With regards to our property developments division, as at 31
December 2011, the Group had a land bank of over 4 million
square metres with investment properties and residential projects
located at prime locations in eastern and southern China. Our
investment properties including Shanghai Kingboard Modern
Plaza and Guangzhou Zhan Wang Digital Plaza located at central
location with easy access and enjoyed good occupancy rates.
In addition, the newly renovated Guangzhou Dong Zhao Building
was completed in March 2011 and occupancy rate reached over
60% of lettable area by the end of the year. Total rental income
for the Group increased substantially by 88% to HK$236.9 million
in 2011 from HK$125.7 million in 2010.

FHEMNFISTE  SEEERIEDSREZERE
MEREEER BE_T——F+-A=+—
BrE#gtREEBEANAE TR - KEKR
EMEeRELsRERARES EMNREHEE
% BAMEEY - HEXBA - I EF=
RAFZERBBEMNRRAE  EFECKIEER
ARz A HAEEE - KREESKRABR T -TFH
—R-TABRETEATAE L8N E—T——
FH_B=TRABILTEET -

Dong Zhao Building was completed in 2011, will boost rental income growth for the Group.
RBAER-T——F35K - BEst T DEEESRAER -
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Chairman’s Statement E£ERE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Qur financial and liquidity position continued to be solid. As at
31 December 2011, net current assets and current ratio of the
Group were approximately HK$12,347.5 million (31 December
2010 — HK$11,274.2 million) and 1.8 (31 December 2010 — 1.9)
respectively.

The net working capital cycle shortened from 65 days as at 31
December 2010 to 40 days as at 31 December 2011 on the
following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, decreased
to 35 days. Total inventory amount decreased by
27% as the Group tightened control over inventory
and reclassified HK$712.7 million copper foil inventory
to other non-current assets in line with the 2 years
licensing arrangement with an independent third party as
announced in the announcement released by Kingboard
Copper Foil Holdings Limited (‘KBCF”) on 3 August 2011
(81 December 2010 — 55 days).

- Trade receivables, in terms of debtors turnover days,
reduced to 52 days (31 December 2010 — 56 days).

- Trade and bills payables, in terms of creditors turnover
days, reduced to 47 days (31 December 2010 — 46 days).

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest bearing
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents to total equity) was
approximately 40% (31 December 2010: 23%). The proportion
of bank borrowings between short term and long term stood
at 37%: 63% (31 December 2010: 43%: 57%). During the
year under review, the Group invested around HK$2.82 billion
and HK$4 billion in new production capacity and property
developments projects respectively. With a seasoned and
professional management team coupled with our concrete
business foundation and robust balance sheet, the Group
is confident that these investments will generate stable and
attractive returns to our shareholders in the future. About 7% of
the Group’s bank borrowings was denominated in RMB and the
rest in Hong Kong or US dollars.

K

SENVBERAFERREEBR -SER-Z
——F+ A=+ BZAHDEEZFEA
—EB_t=EEFTEtERTESL(ZZ—ZF
+ZA=+—B8: —EH—+ZEETHEE=+E
BIT) B ERA18(ZE—TFF+_A=1+—
H:1.9)-

FEERSEBNM T TFT-A=1—HK
ATEBRPEZF-—FFZA=T—BHH
48 - AT

- BEZ_T——FNA=ZBEEZEHZA
& REZIBARBEETGEERERA
Al (Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited)
([KBCF ) BiES 5 = ] M A B F 2 5%
REERBE - BIRHEER - HEFEER
tE—F B TEATEETEEER M
EOEEHEMIERBEE - I EEEREH
RNEEIEHIET - A EFSELAFFR
B2T%  FEREHESE=THA(Z
Z-TFE+-A=+—H: At+AHB)-

- ASEUHEBSSELERT-A(-F
—EE+=A=+—R: B+XA) -

- ESREBREMEFESHAN+LH
REAFHE(CE—TF+-_A=+—81:
m—+7<E) -

SEZFEERERHIRRe RASSER ZME
EEHERBELR)NAIOR(ZE—ZF+=
A=+—H :23%) - SR EHEENLH A
37% : 63%(ZE—TF+-A=1+—H : 43% :
57%) - BIEFEAN  EERET —+/\E=FE&
BIARETWEERBREHEETNEHERE
HE - BETEEREFELENKEESR  BENES
EMRIEENIMREN - SRR EHFREK AR
RERRERETEREENER - RITEERL7%
BARBER  HBRAABTHETER

o
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Chairman’s Statement £ ERE

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management
policy including the use of interest rates swap contract to
minimize exposure to fluctuation in interest rates movement.
As at 31 December 2011, the outstanding notional amount of
interest rate swap agreements stood at HK$930 million with a
weighted average duration and interest rate of 0.38 year and
3.09% respectively. Other than derivative financial instruments
in connection with our daily operations as mentioned above, the
Group had not entered into any other type of derivative financial
instruments throughout 2011. There was no material foreign
exchange exposure to the Group during the year under review.
The Group’s revenue, mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
RMB and US dollars, was fairly matched with the currency
requirement of operating expenses.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a global workforce
of over 43,200 (31 December 2010: 47,300). The decrease in
headcount was in line with reduced business volume in the last
quarter of last year. In addition to offering competitive salary
packages, the Group grants share options and discretionary
bonuses to eligible employees based on our overall financial
achievement and their individual performance. The Group’s
continued success relies on a comprehensive human resources
strategy. Kingboard Institute of Management was established
with a vision to focus on management training of middle and
senior management for the Group. The Group recruits fresh
graduates from both mainland China and Hong Kong each year
in search for talents for the Group. In the future, we will continue
our effort to identify and develop staff via management training
schemes in order to rejuvenate our management team to support
the long term development of the Group.

12 Annual Report 2011 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement E£ERE

PROSPECTS

After the Chinese Lunar New Year holidays in 2012, customer
orders showed signs of improvement. Laminate prices also
showed an uptrend as commodity prices recovered as
compared against the end of last year. Hence, shipment volume
and laminates production utilization improved in February 2012.
Export demand for electronic products is expected to be soft for
the short term against a back-drop of sluggish global economic
recovery. Management is confident over the future growth
prospects of the Chinese domestic market. With the gradual
loosening of the tight monetary policies in China, we expect to
see further improvement in the business operating environment
further along 2012. On the back of Chinese government’s policy
push to encourage domestic consumption and continuous
improvement of living standard for Chinese citizens, demand
for electronic products, especially smart phones and computer
related products, is expected to maintain robust growth as the
disposable income for Chinese consumers continue to increase.
This would definitely be a positive driver for laminates demand.
We will continue to invest in product mix enhancement and
business development in the domestic China market in order
to advance our market share. Plans are underway to expand
laminates production capacity for both Jiangyin plant, Jiangsu
province and Jiangmen plant, Guangdong province in the
current year to capture business opportunities for thin and high-
performance laminates.

For the PCB division, our new PCB facility at Yi Zheng Industrial
Park, Yangzhou, Jiangsu province is expected to commence trial
production in the second quarter of this year. Annual capacity
is expected to reach 6 million sq.ft by the end of this year.
Furthermore, our two dedicated HDI PCB plants in Kunshan,
Jiangsu province and Kaiping, Guangdong province also plan to
expand production capacity in 2012 to meet customer demand.

For the chemical division, the new phenol/acetone plant at
Yangzhou, Jiangsu province with an annual capacity of 300,000
metric tonnes is expected to commence trial production in the
second quarter. Meanwhile, capability enhancement plans for the
existing phenol/acetone plant at Huizhou, Guangdong province
are currently under review and expected to be completed in
2012.
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Chairman’s Statement £ ERE

Leasing activities for our investment property Guangzhou
Dong Zhao Building have made good progress. Another key
commercial project, Guangzhou Kingboard Plaza located at a
prime location in Zhujiang Xincheng, Guangzhou is expected
to be completed by end 2012. These projects will fuel rental
income growth in China over the next two years. The tightening
policies introduced by the Central Government over the domestic
property market are likely to continue. The Group will adjust our
existing land reserve development plans subject to changes in
market conditions. A cautious and prudent approach will be
adopted on further land bank acquisitions to ensure that quality
land at reasonable price is acquired by the Group. Our first
residential project — Shanghai Yu Garden in Kunshan, Jiangsu
province has pre-sold over 99% of units with cash receipts in
excess of RMB1.1 billion. Owing to the processing time required
to get the title deeds from the authorities, earnings in connection
with this project are expected to be booked in the first half of
2012. In addition, construction of another residential project —
Qiandeng Kingboard Yu Garden in Kunshan, Jiangsu province
has commenced with a target completion by end of 2013. To
date, around 30% of the available units have been sold under
Phase | of the project.

Operating landscape for the Group in 2012 remains challenging.
Nevertheless, our experienced management team will maintain
a prudent financial management strategy and continue to
sharpen the competitive edge of our core businesses. The
Group will respond promptly to changes in the market and any
business opportunities with decisive action. We are confident
that the Group will continue to deliver attractive returns to our
shareholders in future.
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Chairman’s Statement &

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
banks, the management and employees for their unreserved
support to the Group in the past year.

Cheung Kwok Wing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
EENSHREBAECZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wing, aged 56, is the chairman and a
co-founder of the Group, and the chairman of Elec & Eltek
International Company Limited (“EEIC”), which is a subsidiary
of the Company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX”) and dual-listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Cheung was
the chairman and director of KBCF which is the subsidiary of the
Company listed on the SGX up to 3 January 2012. Mr. Cheung
is the brother of Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie, the cousin of
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chang
Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang. Mr. Cheung had over 13 years’
experience in the sales and distribution of electronic components
including laminates prior to the establishment of the Group. Mr.
Cheung is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the
Group and sets the general direction and goals for the Group.
Mr. Cheung won the Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong
1993, which was organized by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and was described as “far-sighted, enterprising, and
having insight in the business”. Mr. Cheung was the winner of
the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Award, accredited with the
Owner-Operator Award in 2006. In 2011, Mr. Cheung had been
awarded the Honorary University Fellowships of The University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwong Kwan, aged 47, is the cousin of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He
joined the Group in 1988 and has been working in the PCB
industry since 1984 with particularly extensive experience
in marketing components and materials required for PCB
production. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the Group’s chemical
business operations and property developments in southern
China.

Mr. CHANG Wing Yiu, aged 45, is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He
joined the Group in 1989 and has over 22 years’ experience in
laminates production. Mr. Chang graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in marine electronics.
He is responsible for the Group’s methanol plant in Chongging,
chemical refinery plant in Yangzhou, Jiangsu province and
phenol/acetone plant in Huizhou, Guangdong province. He is
also a non-executive director of EEIC.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. MOK Cham Hung, Chadwick, aged 47, is the son-in-law of
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan. He joined the Group in 2000. Prior to this
he worked in the financial services industry for over 11 years.
Mr. Mok is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales and a fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds an MA
in Electrical and Information Engineering from the University of
Cambridge and an MBA with distinction from Imperial College,
the University of London. He is also an executive director of EEIC
and responsible for the strategic planning of EEIC.

Mr. HO Yin Sang, aged 57, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He joined
the Group in 1989 and is responsible for the Group’s chemical
business operations in Hebei and Shanxi province. He is also a
non-executive director of KBCF.

Ms. CHEUNG Wai Lin, Stephanie, aged 41, is the sister of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing and the cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan.
She joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for the business
operations of Techwise PCB group. Prior to joining the Group,
she worked as an administration assistant manager in a listed
company for about 5 years.

Mr. CHEN Maosheng, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 11 January 2011. He joined the
Group in 1996 and is currently the chief financial controller of
the Group in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). He is
responsible for the management of the finance and tax matters of
the Group in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, he worked with
the finance and economics department of the government of the
PRC for 12 years. Mr. Chen graduated from Jiangxi Finance and
Economics University (formerly known as Jiangxi Finance and
Economics Institution) in 1990. He is an accountant certified by
the finance department of the government of the PRC.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHAN Wing Kwan, aged 66, is a co-founder of the Group,
and a non-executive director of EEIC. Mr. Chan was the
managing director of the Group and responsible for the overall
implementation of the strategic plans and goals of the Group.
On 11 January 2011, he was re-designated as a non-executive
Director and appointed as chief consultant of the Company.
Mr. Chan had been the managing director of KBCF up to 11
January 2011. Mr. Chan is the father-in-law of Mr. Mok Cham
Hung, Chadwick. Mr. Chan acquired a degree of Doctor of
Business Science from Pacific Western University L.A.. Prior to
the establishment of the Group, Mr. Chan had over 22 years’
experience in the sales and distribution of electronic components,
industrial chemicals and PCBs.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. CHENG Wai Chee, Christopher, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 63,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
2007. He holds directorships in various listed companies in
the last three years. He is currently the chairman of two listed
companies in Hong Kong, namely Wing Tai Properties Limited
(formerly known as USI Holdings Limited) and Winsor Properties
Holdings Limited. He is an independent non-executive director
of each of New World China Land Limited and NWS Holdings
Limited, both are companies listed in Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng
is also an independent director of DBS Group Holdings Limited
which is listed in Singapore. He is a member of the Council of The
University of Hong Kong. He is the chairman of the Governance
Committee of the HKSAR Government Exchange Fund Advisory
Committee and a Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club. He
is also a non-executive director of Temasek Foundation CLG
Limited.

Mr. Henry TAN, aged 58, is the chief executive officer of Luen
Thai Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Tan has many years of experience in apparel and logistics
industries. Mr. Tan is an active leader and contributor to charity
and community programmes. He is the former chairman of
the board of directors of Po Leung Kuk of the year 2004-
2005, an authorised charitable organization in Hong Kong. He
also acts as a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in Fujian province, the PRC,
the member of Standing Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in Qingyuan City of Guangdong
province and is a member of Election Committee (Textiles and
Garment Subsector). Mr. Tan obtained his Master’s Degree
in Business Administration in 1980 and Bachelor’s Degree in
Business Administration in 1975 from the University of Guam,
the United States of America. Mr. Tan was also an independent
non-executive director of China Resources Peoples Telephone
Company Limited, a company formerly listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Tan was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2005.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. LAl Chung Wing, Robert, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in February
2009. He has many years of experience in trading and investment
and was previously the managing director of Seaunion Holdings
Ltd (now known as South Sea Petroleum Holdings Limited) and
an independent non-executive director of Kee Shing (Holdings)
Limited (now known as Gemini Property Investments Limited),
both companies listed on the Stock Exchange. He holds a
Bachelor-of-Laws (Honours) degree from the University of
London and is involved in business consultancy work in the Asia-
Pacific region. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Plastec Technologies Ltd, a company quoted on the US OTC
Bulletin Board (OTCBB). Mr. Lai was previously an independent
non-executive director of KBCF. He is the brother of Mr. Lai
Chong Tuck, an independent non-executive director of EEIC.

Mr. TSE Kam Hung, aged 61, has over 30 years of experience
in the field of electronic industry. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 38, the Company Secretary, joined
the Group in May 1999. Prior to that, he was an accountant
at an international accounting firm. Mr. Lo is a fellow member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Professional Accountancy from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is in charge of the
company secretarial work of the Group. He is a non-executive
director of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (“KLHL”"), a
66.42% owned subsidiary listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities are set out in notes 49, 22 and 25 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 65.

An interim dividend of HK40 cents per ordinary share amounting
to HK$341,867,000 in aggregate was paid to the shareholders
during the year. The Directors now recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK25 cents per ordinary share to the
shareholders on the register of members of the Company on 5
June 2012, amounting to HK$213,667,000 in aggregate, and the
retention of the remaining profit in the Company.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report EE 2%

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share
capital of the Company are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2011 comprised the retained profits of
HK$214,487,000 (2010: HK$1,001,060,000).

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share
premium and the special surplus account of the Company are
also available for distribution to shareholders provided that the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2011, the sum of the retained profits and the
share premium of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$4.7 billion.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu

Mr. Ho Yin Sang

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick

Mr. Chen Maosheng (appointed on 11 January 2011)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (resigned as the Managing Director and
an executive Director and re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 11 January 2011)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Mr. Henry Tan

Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert

Mr. Tse Kam Hung

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie, being an executive
Director, Mr. Chan Wing Kwan, being a non-executive Director
and Messrs. Henry Tan and Lai Chung Wing, Robert, being the
independent non-executive Directors, will retire from directorship
by rotation and will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the
section “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies” on
pages 16 to 19.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract which is
not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
At 31 December 2011, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

ExcROER

RIE——F+-_A=1—H EXREEIHE
AETRARR REEBEE (EERESLRPE K
BI(TE 7 N BB 5 1) EEXVED) 2 Bt - HERER D
HEFP  BEARRRERES LS RI5352
ez ERMATCS 2 - JRIE EWEITA
EFETEFRXHNBRETHENG AR R KB

Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code  Frz#Ez=unT :

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as

follows:

Long position ReE

(a)  Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (a) ZA2XAFRESREEI0BTZZER (K
(“Shares”) @1

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number share capital

of issued of the Company

Shares held (AT

Name of Director Capacity Frisc 21T BEITRAZ

EEHA EEMtE R EE BOBEDLE

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 3,673,175 0.430
SREIEE S A ERBEBA

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,910,250 0.224
BRoKSR ST A (BIRET) EREBA

Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 1,868,200 0.219
REEEE BEnEAA

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner 4,115,274 0.482
EPK RS A (P EE2) ERBEBA

Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner 4,167,729 0.488
fa] Be A e A (FHEE3) EREBA

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Beneficial owner 2,940,000 0.344
(Note 4) Xt Z=PUN

RE R (MEE4)
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie Beneficial owner 210,000 0.025

REELL

BESlEAA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) BEERIOERSE)

Long position (continued) REE)
(@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (a) ZAATFSKREE010EBITZEER(RKR
(“Shares”) (continued) &)
Notes: P&
(1) Out of the 1,910,250 Shares, 1,850,250 Shares were held by Mr. (1) P#%1,910,2500& M5 & - H 1,850,250/ fix
Chan Wing Kwan and 60,000 Shares were held by his spouse. BTy EARARFHE - T60,0008% A% 1 Bl
RERBRAE -
2) Out of the 4,115,274 Shares, 3,397,074 Shares were held by Mr. (@) RFZ4,115 274 B & - H 3,307,074 0%
Chang Wing Yiu and 718,200 Shares were held by his spouse. D IyREKIBEERAFFE - 7182008 A 15
AR E BB o
) Out of the 4,167,729 Shares, 2,485,229 Shares were held by @) WEZ4,167, 720 E T - H 2,485,220/ i
Mr. Ho Yin Sang and 1,682,500 Shares were held by his spouse. B TymEBAETRERAFE - 1,682,5008% i
5 AR EABIFA o
(4 Out of the 2,940,000 Shares, 2,830,000 Shares were held by @) P%2,940,000/& M5 & # - H#2,830,000/% ik
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick and 110,000 Shares were held B IR ERESREARAREAE » T110,00088 875
by his spouse. B AR -
(b)  Share options of the Company (“Share Options”) b) ALAREXERE(ELBERRE]
Interest in
underlying Shares
pursuant to
Share Options
of the Company
Name of Director Capacity KRATEEBRE
BEEgE EatE MR RS
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 2,800,000
SREIER S EmfEaA
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie Beneficial owner 2,600,000
SRIEEL T+ EmEE A
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Beneficial owner 2,600,000
SRR A EmfEa A
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 2,600,000
17N e EmfEa A
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) Beneficial owner 5,040,000
{3 AE S A (B ) EmEE A
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 2,600,000
REELE BEmfa A
Note:  Out of the 5,040,000 Share Options, 2,600,000 Share Options Bt - R 3% 5040000 B AR EE S - H A
were held by Mr. Ho Yin Sang and 2,440,000 Share Options 2,600,00017) 18 5¢ B8 A HE T e fa] e 46 58 A AR A%
were held by his spouse. A+ 1M12,440,00005 B S B AIE R R KECBIFA -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)
Long position (continued)

(b)

(c)

K

EEcRESE)
RE#)

Share options of the Company (“Share Options”) (b) ZAATRELXERE(ELEBRE]®)
(continued)
The Company adopted its first share option scheme RATR—HAWANFRA+—HBERAES
on 11 May 1998, and such share option scheme was EE S ERRETE - HBZE S EBRRET
terminated upon the adoption of its second share SN —_EE_F A _HRAEARE @A
option scheme (“2002 Scheme”) on 2 July 2002 for the H+F 7 BrERETE( 2T 45t
duration of 10 years. In view of the changes to the Rules Z MR - AREERFTES ETRE
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (IEMRAUA DR _ZZNE20% - AR
(the “Listing Rules”) in 2009, a new share option scheme ARRENR _EZTNF=A=-+=HAH
(the “Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the ZARDNBIREERIAS FRE—IETE S
Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the RN E([Zet2l)) - —EZ 4513
Company held on 23 March 2009. The 2002 Scheme MALMARR B &L T _F5E
was accordingly terminated on the same day without B RNEAEEEREATEZERESS
affecting the rights of holders of any options granted and N NI
outstanding under the 2002 Scheme.
Warrants of the Company (“Warrants”) () AATRMRREE([RRKEED
Interest in
underlying Shares
pursuant to
to the Warrants
Name of Director Capacity AREFET
EEpME EnME HER O ERE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 165,222
SREIER A EmEE A
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Note 1) Beneficial owner 78,025
PRk 88 5t A (P 1) BEnEBA
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 111,320
SREE L EmfEa A
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner 335,527
Bk iR S A (M EE2) EmEE A
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner 379,412
fa e A 5 A (P EE3) BEnEBA
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick (Note 4) Beneficial owner 182,000
SRS A (MET4) BEmfa A
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) BEERIOERSE)

Long position (continued) RE#)
(c) Warrants of the Company (“Warrants”) (continued) (¢) RATRARER([EREE] (&)
Notes: B3 & -
(1) Out of the 78,025 Warrants, 72,025 Warrants were held by Mr. 1) R 78,025 RIEEEF - EF72,025(%
Chan Wing Kwan and 6,000 Warrants were held by his spouse. RIIEE Th R B AR AEEE © 116,000
1AM E B R EBEBRS A -
2 Out of the 335,527 Warrants, 267,707 Warrants were held by © R E%335,527 10 iR AR iERE B P - H 267,707
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and 67,820 Warrants were held by his BRBEBTABKRBREERAAFTE - M
spouse. 67,8201 RARIEE B R EBL (B ©
) Out of the 379,412 Warrants, 102,662 Warrants were held by @) REZ379,41210 BRI E E - HH102,662
Mr. Ho Yin Sang and 276,750 Warrants were held by his spouse. HRBREBAMBELEERAARE M
276,750 AR HEE B AL B ©
(4 Out of the 182,000 Warrants, 181,000 Warrants were held by (4) 7 %182,00017 R RXHEE E - HH1181,000
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick and 1,000 Warrants were held HRBEBAE R EERATE M
by his spouse. 1,00017 RAEAEFE AR EALBHA ©

(d)  Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (“KLHL Shares”) (d) #AAFI2EHEEHERAEZEER
in KLHL, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the BREEIOET2EER ([ EEE
Company WA 1)

Approximate

percentage

Number of of the issued

issued KLHL share capital

Shares held of KLHL

B R HEEEER

Name of Director Capacity EEEBAR EEBITRA

EEHA EEMtE R EE ZBNBEDL

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 453,500 0.015
SREIEE S A BEmEEA

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Note 1) Beneficial owner 100,000 0.003
PRk 88 5t A (P 1) BEnEAA

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner 100,000 0.003
BEo RS A (fiteE2) EmBEAA

Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner 540,000 0.018
A A 5 A (P EE3) BEnEEA

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Beneficial owner 60,000 0.002
(Note 4) EmEA A

SRS A (M EE4)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(d) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (“KLHL Shares”)
in KLHL, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

(1) The 100,000 KLHL Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Chan
Wing Kwan.

2 The 100,000 KLHL Shares were held by the spouse of Mr.
Chang Wing Yiu.

Q) The 540,000 KLHL Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Ho
Yin Sang.

4) The 60,000 KLHL Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Mok

Cham Hung, Chadwick.

(e) Share options of the KLHL (“KLHL Share Options”)

EEoROERE)

RE®)

d) XA EFEHBRAREEER
SREEIGET L BER (B EEE

WD 1) (&)
Bk
() BKEAE REHAR100000RLEHE

AL ©

@) Bk RS 2 BB A % 100,000 8528 TE 8
A ©

©) I3 AE 55 A 2 FE {845 78 72540,000 B 2B 1A 8
A ©

@ SR ST A 2 B85 7%60,0008 2B E R

fetn

() BERERELABRE(EIRERE

SRERE])

Interest in
underlying Shares
pursuant to KLHL

Share Options

EEEER

Name of Director Capacity BEBREET
EEHR ERME rHE R R
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 1) Beneficial owner 9,000,000
Al FEAE S A (B RET) EnEEA
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick (Note 2) Beneficial owner 10,000,000
BRI A (FE2) EmEEA

Notes: P5E

1) The 9,000,000 KLHL Share Options were held by the spouse of (1) fa] e A 5t A Bl 48 4% 5 5%9,000,00017 2B TE 8

Mr. Ho Yin Sang. TR AEARAE -
@ The 10,000,000 KLHL Share Options were held by the spouse of @) SR S BB 7%10,000,00017 B TEE

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick.

IRESEFEAAE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) BEERIOERSE)

Long position (continued) RE(#E)

(1] Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in the (f) AATHETEREMBRAIEETEER
share capital of Kingboard Laminates Limited, a ARARBREADEREAEIEBTIZERE
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company REIEERRD

Number of
non-voting
deferred
shares held
(Note)
Name of Director Capacity FrismiRER
BEEgE ERMtE EERGEE
(BfteE)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 1,904,400
SREIER EmEE A
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan Beneficial owner 1,481,200
PRAKERSE A BEnEBEA
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 846,400
SREE AL Emfa A
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner 529,000
fA[ A S A EmEE A
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 423,200
197 e Emfa A
Note:  None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates MR AEEREREREEERARARZERSE
Limited are held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no FEBEIERRD o 32 FIRIE AR 1 30 45 BT 75 A U ERGE
rights to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general TBERERERARMEARRASBER L ER
meeting of Kingboard Laminates Limited and have practically no RRGLREG TREZERN - TR BRERE
rights to dividends or to participate in any distribution on winding B REFER TR DR BRAEF)
up.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) BEEvROERE)

Long position (continued) RE(EZ)
(9) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in the share capital (g) ZA2QRE2EHEEKE R FEEICKRZEH
of EEIC, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the ZEER(TEEICA# 1)
Company
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued
issued EEIC share capital
Shares held of EEIC
Name of Director Capacity FrEFE®1T {HEEICERZTRA
EEpNE RS EEICR#%7E B ZHHBE D
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 1,507,200 0.807
SREIE e A4 BEnEBEA
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Note) Beneficial owner 1,050,000 0.562
bRk R 5% A (B EE) Xt =N
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner 486,600 0.260
CIE-EE e BEnEEA
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Beneficial owner 1,120,200 0.600
SRR A BEnEBEA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 486,600 0.260
LIS i Xt =N
Note:  Out of the 1,050,000 EEIC Shares, 1,010,000 EEIC Shares were FiEE © A 5% 1,050,000 IR EEIC iR 15 & R+ EH /R
held by Mr. Chan Wing Kwan and 40,000 EEIC Shares were held 1,010,0000% EEICHR 19 5 8 BR oK $8 55 4 A8 A F5
by his spouse. A + 40,000fXEEICH S B ER1B35 4 -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) BEERIOERSE)

Long position (continued) RE(EZ)

(h)  Ordinary shares (“KBCF Shares”) of US$0.10 each (h) ZA2RQ Rk 2EHEEK B LD AKBCFR A
in the share capital of KBCF, a non-wholly owned R EREEO0.103% T 2 E &R ([ KBCFR
subsidiary of the Company @1)

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
issued KBCF of KBCF
Shares held {5KBCF
Name of Director Capacity Frisc 21T EEBTRA
EEpME EEME KBCFR 13 8B 2N B
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.1380
SREIER EmBEAA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) Beneficial owner 2,000 0.0002
faI 3R A S A (B EE) E=maA
Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert Beneficial owner 72,000 0.0100
BB & EmEB A
Note:  The 2,000 KBCF Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Ho Yin FEE © falB A S A 2 BR84S A 5%2,000iRKBCFAR {5 ©
Sang.
Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor BEEEEIN  RZE——F+ =8
their associates had any interests or short positions in any =t+—H BEFEFIFRSFIHBEALR
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company RARREATEEEE (E&RES L
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning EIRGIEXVED) 2 E ik - BRI DSk E
of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2011. FHEREAERSIER -
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company, EEIC
and KLHL (including their vesting and exercise period) are set out
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Share Options

BB
AT - BEIC KRBT EAR 2 @ Bt 813
E(RELITEA R BB E) SR A M REM

37 °

TREE —_FT_Fit8 st R MELBRE

under the 2002 Scheme and the Scheme during the year: RERNT EF) :
Outstanding Outstanding
as at as at
1.1.2011 Granted Exercised Lapsed 31.12.2011
R-B——F§ during during during HR-E—-%
—-B—H the year the year theyear +=HF=+-H
e RATHE RERZH RERTHE RERERHN e RATHE
Category 1: Directors 18 EF
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing REIGE A - 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan BRAERLE 591,600 - (591,600) - -
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan RES LA 359,600 2,600,000 (359,600) - 2,600,000
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu BBkt 484,800 2,600,000 (484,800) - 2,600,000
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) A S A (FTEE) 603,600 2,600,000 (603,600) - 2,600,000
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick & &% 4 - 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie  sk&#r+ - 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000
2,039,600 15,800,000 (2,039,600) - 15,800,000
Category 2: Employees F0%8 BB 2,434,400 12,200,000 (2,434,400) - 12,200,000
Total all categories FERERIaE 4,474,000 28,000,000 (4,474,000) - 28,000,000
Note:  In addition to 2,600,000 Share Options held by Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the  Bi&E :  BR{AI# A S5 AR5 892,600,000 52 BB A © (A4 %

spouse of Mr. Ho Yin Sang held 2,440,000 Share Options. None of such
option were exercised,

The weighted average closing price of the Shares on the five
trading days immediately before the dates on which the Share
Options were exercised was HK$42.80.

& 2 BB TIN5 2,440,000 SEiE AR HE o bt i1 R
I -

REBEEITFEELBREZARERS B © BB 2N
HEFHUL T B A42.8078 7T °
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BEBRE®
The following table discloses movements in EEIC’s share options & iHFREEICE L IRERE R B8
during the year:
Outstanding Outstanding
asat asat
1.1.2011 Exercised Lapsed 31.12.2011
RZE-—-% during during R-B——F
—-B—H the year the year +=-A=t+-H
R ITE RERTTE RERXN e ARATHE
Employees B8 316,100 (238,000) (78,100) -
Total A 316,100 (238,000 (78,100) -

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 100,000,000 share #Hz—Z——&F+—-A=+—HIEERN ' BIEE
options were granted pursuant to the employees’ share option  SEi&EiR(E & & 54 i Be e 5 2135 1100,000,00015
scheme of KLHL. The following table discloses movements in  (B5CEEIRHE - TR IFEREEEREB LB RERE

KLHL’s share options during the year: N
Outstanding Outstanding
asat as at
1.1.2011 Granted Exercised Lapsed 31.12.2011
R=Z-—-% during during during H=-B—-%
=J]=[3 the year the year theyear +=A=+-AH

HATE  REARE  REATE  REAKN KT E

Directors and employees BEEERES - 100,000,000 - - 100,000,000
of KLHL (Note) RES (M)
Total &3t - 100,000,000 - - 100,000,000

Note:  Among these share options granted by KLHL, some of which were MizE: ZEHBREBEERRLNELERESPETRRER
granted to the associates of the Directors. Please refer to page 27 for RYEENHMEAN  FIEERE27H ©
details.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BERMHEHF 21Hk
DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings disclosed above, at no time during B _ESUEEEFTIFE R BEARIESD - A B s A E I
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to B2 IR F REA R EELX EET ST LHE - B
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits — {FE = A 88 AR Bl A EAbiE A B RS 2 D
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the  SEHMEz o

Company or any other body corporate.

32 Annual Report 2011 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
T —HFH EELIER



——I——'

Directors’ Report EE 2%

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2011, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests or short position in the issued
share capital of the Company.

K

BEECEREGHNER

AR B EAEMNE R R BT L E AR F R
FFEAEABENAERMEEFEENEEREEE
R ZEBREL -

FERR

REARARES MR IGPIEIBIHRATFEZE
ERRELMALE  RZB——F+-A=+—
B MIBR(EXAEEETER 2 ERZRINE
HMERRBRERARFDBITRADES 2107

e

HENER -

Approximate
percentage

Interest in of the issued
underlying Number of share capital
Shares pursuant issued  of the Company
to the Warrants Shares held PP NG|
Name of shareholder Nature of interest ARERET BT SETRA
e EaEME RO ERE BB ZBHESL
Hallgain Management Limited Beneficial owner 25,969,292 (L) 275,143,329 (L) 32.19 (1)
(“Hallgain”) (Note) (FfizE) EHEAA
Capital Research and Investment manager - 85,351,244 (1) 9.99 (L)
Management Company REKE
FMR LLC Investment manager 4,175,000 (L) 50,682,000 (L) 5.93 (L)
RAKLE
Value Partners Limited Investment manager 10,050 (L) 58,357,958 (1) 6.83 (L)
RAKLE
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co Investment manager 1,751,791 (L) 43,179,572 (L) 5.05 (L)
REKE 300,000 (S) 0.04 (S)
36,291,672 (P) 4.25 (P)
L The letter “L” denotes a long position. L [LIRERE -
©) The letter “S” denotes a short position. ©) [SIRKEE -
P) The letter “P” denotes interests in a lending pool. P) [PIRFRATHEE H ARG ©
Note: At 31 December 2011: (i) no shareholder of Hallgain was entitled to MizE: RZF——FTZA=1+—H ! ()BEHalgainiRR G #

exercise, or control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or
more of the voting power at general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain
and its directors were not accustomed to act in accordance with any
shareholder’s direction; and (i) Messrs. Cheung Kwok Wing and Chan

Wing Kwan, being Directors, were also directors of Hallgain.

MHallgainlx R A G 1THEREZERMEZEFIITE=0—3K
VA £ 2 FRIRHE - M Hallgain K H # 3 TME F AR E (T
BERIERITE - ROVEFREKEERFKBEETA

Hallgainz E% ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under section 336 of the SFO in
the issued share capital of the Company at 31 December 2011.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, save
for the deviation that the non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors are not appointed for specific terms pursuant
to paragraph A.4.1 of the Code. Notwithstanding the aforesaid
deviation, all the Directors (including the non-executive Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting in compliance with the Company’s Articles of
Association. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
in the Code.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”). Following a specific enquiry, each
Director has confirmed that he or she has complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted
by the Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent for the purposes of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2011, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions (which are also related party transactions)
within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@) Purchase Framework Agreement

On 1 April 2011, the Company and Hallgain entered
into a purchase framework agreement (the “Purchase
Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group
agreed to purchase certain materials for the production of
PCBs such as copper balls and drill bits from Hallgain and
its subsidiaries (the “Hallgain Group”) from 1 April 2011
to 31 December 2013. Under the Purchase Framework
Agreement, the amount of materials to be purchased is
not fixed but is to be determined and agreed between the
parties from time to time. The actual quantity, specification
and price (with reference to the prevailing market price) of
the materials under the Purchase Framework Agreement
will be subject to the individual orders placed by the
Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the Purchase
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules on the basis that Hallgain is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of
the transactions contemplated under the Purchase
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2011 are set out in the table below. Details of the
Purchase Framework Agreement was disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 26 April 2011.

.....

BHEXS

2% AEBEBUAT LHRAUF14AER
ENTERRHEWER S (NBRAHEALR
%)

(@) BEEZRGR
RZZT——FMA—H - KA F]HEHallgain
AIVEEERGZ(BEERRR]) @ &
it AREBRER-_Z——FMA—BZE
—E—=%+=HA=+—HMAHalgain & &
Bt & 2 B[ Hallgain 5= 2] |f B $R Tk & $& R &
FEIRISERAE THME - RIEBEBEEE
Bl BEEZMBEEWIERT - m
RHFOAFTREEKRAE - BEERD
HETZMHERHSE - AR RER(ZE
RITTHE) 5% T A~ & B M Hallgain & /£
2 (BRI RT & i E

o

X Hallgan R A AR 2 EZRE - RE L
MRVBARR 2BEAL - BIRE LD
BRAFE1AE  BEERBAET 2R 5
BRARRZFHEBERS

BEERBRATZIRZBE_T——F
T-A=t-BLFEZFELRIER
R5BEN TR - BEERBZZFBE
REARBHR T ——FWEA=1+/<H
2B EE -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

36

Former KLHL Supply Framework Agreement
and KLHL Supply Framework Agreement

On 22 December 2009, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a
supply framework agreement (the “Former KLHL Supply
Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which KLHL and
its subsidiaries (the “KLHL Group”) agreed to supply
copper to the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2010 to 31
December 2012. On 1 April 2011, KLHL and Hallgain
entered into a supply framework agreement (the “KLHL
Supply Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which the
KLHL Group agreed to supply copper and laminates to
the Hallgain Group from 1 April 2011 to 31 December
20183. Under the Former KLHL Supply Framework
Agreement and the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement,
the amount to be supplied is not fixed but is to be
determined and agreed between the parties from time
to time. The actual quantity, specification and price (with
reference to the prevailing market price) of the products
under the Former KLHL Supply Framework Agreement
and the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement will be
subject to the individual orders placed by the Hallgain
Group with the KLHL Group.

The transactions contemplated under the Former KLHL
Supply Framework Agreement and the KLHL Supply
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules on the basis that Hallgain is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and
KLHL is a subsidiary of the Company.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of
the transactions contemplated under the Former KLHL
Supply Framework Agreement and the KLHL Supply
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2011 are set out in the table below. Details of the Former
KLHL Supply Framework Agreement and the KLHL
Supply Framework Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 22
December 2009 and 26 April 2011, respectively.

The Former KLHL Supply Framework Agreement was
superseded by the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement
with effect from 1 April 2011.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement

On 1 April 2011, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a
purchase framework agreement (the “KLHL Purchase
Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which the KLHL
Group agreed to purchase materials for production of
laminates such as drill bits and machineries from the
Hallgain Group from 1 April 2011 to 31 December 2013.
Under the KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement,
the amount to be purchased is not fixed but is to be
determined and agreed between the parties from time
to time. The actual quantity, specification and price (with
reference to the prevailing market price) under the KLHL
Purchase Framework Agreement will be subject to the
individual orders placed by the KLHL Group with the
Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the KLHL Purchase
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules on the basis that Hallgain is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and
KLHL is a subsidiary of the Company.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the
transactions contemplated under the KLHL Purchase
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2011 are set out in the table below. Details of the KLHL
Purchase Framework Agreement was disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 26 April 2011.

KBC Copper Ball Agreement and KBC Drill Bits
Agreement

On 22 December 2009, the Company and Hallgain
entered into a copper ball purchase framework agreement
(the “KBC Copper Ball Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Group agreed to purchase copper balls for the production
of PCBs from the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2010 to
31 December 2012. On 1 May 2010, the Company and
Hallgain entered into a drill bits agreement (the “KBC Dirill
Bits Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to
purchase drill bits from the Hallgain Group from 1 May
2010 to 31 December 2012. Under the KBC Copper Ball
Agreement and the KBC Dirill Bits Agreement, the amount
to be purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual
quantity, specification and price under the KBC Copper
Ball Agreement and the KBC Drill Bits Agreement will be
subject to the individual orders placed by the Group with
the Hallgain Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

38

KBC Copper Ball Agreement and KBC Drill Bits
Agreement (continued)

The transaction contemplated under the KBC Copper Ball
Agreement and the KBC Dirill Bits Agreement constituted
continuing connected transaction for the Company on
the basis that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of
the Company and hence a connected person under the
Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of
the transactions contemplated under the KBC Copper
Ball Agreement and the KBC Dirill Bits Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in the table
below. The Details of the KBC Copper Ball Agreement
and the KBC Dirill Bits Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 22
December 2009 and 27 May 2010, respectively.

The KBC Copper Ball Agreement and the KBC Dirill Bits
Agreement were superseded by the Purchase Framework
Agreement with effect from 1 April 2011.

KLHL Machinery Agreement and KLHL Drill
Bits Agreement

On 22 December 2009, KLHL and Hallgain entered into
a purchase framework agreement (the “KLHL Machinery
Agreement”) pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed
to purchase machineries from the Hallgain Group from 1
January 2010 to 31 December 2012. On 1 May 2010, the
KLHL and Hallgain entered into a drill bits agreement (the
“KLHL Drill Bits Agreement”) pursuant to which the KLHL
Group agreed to purchase drill bits from the Hallgain
Group from 1 May 2010 to 31 December 2012. Under
the KLHL Machinery Agreement and KLHL Drill Bits
Agreement, the amount to be purchased is not fixed but
is to be determined and agreed between the parties from
time to time. The actual quantity, specification and price
under the KLHL Machinery Agreement and the KLHL Dirill
Bits Agreement will be subject to the individual orders
placed by the KLHL Group with the Hallgain Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e)

U]

KLHL Machinery Agreement and KLHL Drill
Bits Agreement (continued)

The transaction contemplated under the KLHL Machinery
Agreement and the KLHL Drill Bits Agreement constituted
continuing connected transaction for the Company
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules, and KLHL is a subsidiary of the Company.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the
transactions contemplated under the KLHL Machinery
Agreement and the KLHL Drill Bits Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2011 are set out in the table below.
The details of the KBL Machinery Agreement and the KBL
Drill Bits Agreement were disclosed in the announcement
and circular of the Company dated 22 December 2009
and 27 May 2010, respectively.

The KLHL Machinery Agreement and KLHL Drill
Bits Agreement were superseded by the KLHL
Purchase Framework Agreement with effect from
1 April 2011.

Shirai Supply Agreement

On 22 December 2009, Techwise Circuits Company
Limited (“Techwise”) and Shirai Electronics Industrial Co.,
Limited (“Shirai”) entered into a supply agreement (the
“Shirai Supply Agreement”) pursuant to which Techwise
and its subsidiaries (the “Techwise Group”) agreed to
supply PCBs to Shirai and its subsidiaries (the “Shirai
Group”) from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012.
Under the Shirai Supply Agreement, the amount of
printed circuit boards to be supplied is not fixed but is to
be determined and agreed between the parties from time
to time.

The transactions contemplated under the Shirai Supply
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on the basis that Techwise is a 90% owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Shirai is a company
which holds 30% of the entire issued share capital of
Techwise Shirai Circuit Limited, a 70% owned subsidiary
of Techwise. Shirai is therefore a substantial shareholder
of a subsidiary of the Company and hence a connected
person under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

U]

(9)

40

Shirai Supply Agreement (continued)

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of
the transactions contemplated under the Shirai Supply
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
set out in the table below. Details of the Shirai Supply
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 22 December 2009.

Shirai Purchase Agreement

On 22 December 2009, Techwise and Shirai entered
into a purchase agreement (the “Shirai Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Techwise Group
agreed to purchase laminates from the Shirai Group and
to subcontract the services of the Shirai Group (i.e. the
provision of drilling services by the Shirai Group to the
Techwise Group) for the production of printed circuit
boards from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012.
Under the Shirai Purchase Agreement, the amount
of laminates to be purchased and the services to be
subcontracted are not fixed but are to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time.

The transactions contemplated under the Shirai Purchase
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on the basis that Techwise is a 90% owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Shirai is a company
which holds 30% of the entire issued share capital of
Techwise Shirai Circuit Limited, a 70% owned subsidiary
of Techwise. Shirai is therefore a substantial shareholder
of a subsidiary of the Company and hence a connected
person under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the
transactions contemplated under the Shirai Purchase
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
set out in the table below. Details of the Shirai Purchase
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 22 December 2009.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BERSE)

Amounts Annual caps
&8 FELR

HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Purchase of copper balls and drill bits from AEFIREMHallgainfE EEE
the Hallgain Group by the Group under by &i={l:|
(i) the KBC Copper Ball Agreement; () BEEcTIREkipE 73,731 75,625*
(i) the KBC Drill Bits Agreement; and (i) EBEET#EERZE & 25,241 29,0407
(i) the Purchase Framework Agreement (i) FEEELERZE 352,709 388,000
Sales of coppers and laminates to the Hallgain 325518 /@ 1R £ B4R 45 [AHallgain £ [#
Group by the KLHL Group under & R & B SR E AR
() the Former KLHL Supply Framework () FEEREEREERERDZ
Agreement; and )5 49,001 49,500*
(i) the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement (i) B HEEREEER TGS 789,255 901,000
Purchase of drill bits and machineries from EHEER S ERIE M HallgainS &
the Hallgain Group by the KLHL Group g BN ke
under
() the KLHL Drill Bits Agreement; () EEEEREERE 5,338 7,023*
(i) the KLHL Machinery Agreement; and (iy EEEERER RS & 2,008 2,100"
(iiiy the KLHL Purchase Framework (i) BEEEREEERGZ
Agreement 163,446 168,000
Sales of printed circuits boards to RIS EREShirai i fE sk
the Shirai Group by the Techwise Group [ Shirai%e [ 1 & FIRI 4R & IR
under the Shirai Supply Agreement 103,915 411,840
Purchase of laminates from the Shirai Group — R}E 5 ER #Shiraif B 13
by the Techwise Group under (M) Shiraite [ 4 & B E R
the Shirai Purchase Agreement - 110,880
Drilling services provided by the Shirai Group  Shiraits E 12 15 Shiraifé B 7 3%
to the Techwise Group under mEEEEEREE AR
the Shirai Purchase Agreement - 3,960
* Based on the three months from 1 January 2011 to 31 March 2011. . ER-F——F—-A-RAE=A=t—H=@EAL-
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The amounts of the above transactions did not exceed the
corresponding annual caps for the financial year ended 31
December 2011 as announced by the Group.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Directors
have engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions
of the Group. The auditor of the Company has reported its
conclusions on these procedures to the board of Directors.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor
and have confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary
course of its business, on normal commercial terms, and in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has also provided
guarantees to financial institutions to secure general credit
facilities for a non wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Techwise, in
the amounts of approximately HK$50 million during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the
scheme is set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association although there are no
restrictions against such rights under company laws in the
Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2011.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$3,558,000.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales or purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers combined or suppliers
combined were less than 30% of the Group’s sales or purchases
respectively.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Kwok Wing
CHAIRMAN

29 March 2012
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board of Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
recognises the importance of corporate governance practice
of a listed company. It is in the interest of the stakeholders and
shareholders for a listed company to operate in a transparent
manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory policies,
procedures and monitoring mechanisms and a clear definition of
accountability of directors and management.

During the year under review, the Board has complied with the
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except with a deviation from
paragraph A.4.1 of the Code. Under paragraph A.4.1 of the
Code, non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. During the year under review, the
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors
of the Company were not appointed for specific terms but are
subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election.

On 11 January 2011, the Board announced that Mr. Chan
Wing Kwan was re-designated as a non-executive Director
and appointed as the chief consultant of the Company and
ceased to be the Managing Director and an executive Director
of the Company with effect from 11 January 2011. Mr. Chan
Wing Kwan and all independent non-executive Directors of the
Company have no fixed term of service with the Company and
are subject to the relevant provisions of retirement and re-election
at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company. Their appointments
without a specific term are deviation from paragraph A.4.1 of
the Code. As at the date of this report, no replacement of the
position of Managing Director has been appointed since Mr.
Chan’s resignation. His resignation as a Managing Director is a
deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the Code. Under paragraph
A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should not be performed by the same individual.
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The Board will keep reviewing the structure of the Board from
time to time. If a candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and
experience is identified, the Company will make appointment to
fill the position of Managing Director as appropriate.

In addition to the Code, which is mandatory in nature, the
Board also observes certain recommended best practices
(“Recommended Best Practices”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules and has adopted certain Recommended Best
Practices which are suitable to the Company’s current situation.
The Board will continuously enhance the corporate governance
standard of the Company by reference to the Recommended
Best Practices whenever suitable and appropriate.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”). Following a specific enquiry, each Director has confirmed
that he or she has complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions adopted by the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Group and is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the management of the business and the
affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted internal
guidelines in setting forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the
Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial
performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s
business and ensures implementation of appropriate
systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated
to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by
the Company Secretary as delegated by the Chairman
of the Board and distributed to the Board members
within reasonable time before the meetings. Relevant
meeting papers are also sent to Directors well before
the meetings, informing them of the background and
giving explanation on matters to be brought before the
Board. All Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To ensure the
Directors make decisions objectively and in the interests
of the Company, the Company’s articles of association
provide that any Director shall abstain from voting on any
resolutions in which he or his associates is/are materially
interested nor be counted in the quorum of the meeting.
Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings
are sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board
meetings and are kept by the Company Secretary.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued) A. EEXp)

The Board (continued) BEEgE)

REBEFEAR EFSRTTORAEHE
EERNEFEERREFZEEGRZN

During the year under review, the Board had held
four meetings and the Directors’ attendance at Board

meetings and Board committees’ meetings were as JERLEEAAT ¢
follows:
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
44 ENZEE REZEE ¥HzEe
EE L S EE
Number of Meeting BHEYE 4 3 1 2
Executive directors HiTES
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) REL(ZE) 3 -
Cheung Kwong Kwan REE 4 -
Chang Wing Yiu EhKiR 4 -
Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick BiHig 4 -
Ho Yin Sang HE 4 -
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie KEE 4 -
Chen Maosheng (appointed on REE(R=E—F
11 January 2011) —Ft-BEZA) -
Non-executive director *HTES
Chan Wing Kwan (re-designated on RAE(RZF——F
11 January 2011) —R+—R#f) 4 - - -
Independent non-executive directors By kHTES
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher B 4 - -
Henry Tan B 4 3 1 2
Lai Chung Wing, Robert R 4 3 1 2
Tse Kam Hung iR 4 3 1 2

EERRE AT PSR EEALT
FHZEEY - GEHZBETE  ETF
SN SHARFEERERBETHE
7 RERTTORMAES -

The Directors have observed the importance of directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs at a more regular
interval. After consulting all Directors, Board meetings
have been preliminarily scheduled to be held at quarterly
interval and no less than four times in the coming year.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Division and responsibilities

During the year under review, the Board was headed by
the Chairman whose role differs from that of the Managing
Director of the Company. The roles of the Chairman and
Managing Director were segregated and are not exercised
by the same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the
following:

° scheduled meetings that enable the Board
to perform its duties and responsibilities and
to ensure all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner without
interfering the Company’s operations;

° prepared meeting agenda after consultation with
the Managing Director;

° exercised control over quality, quantity and
timeliness of the flow of information between
Management and the Board and to ensure
decisions are made on a fully informed basis by
the directors; and

o assisted in ensuring compliance with the Listing
Rules and the Company’s guidelines on corporate
governance.

The Managing Director was mainly responsible for the
overall strategic planning and day-to-day management of
the Group.

On 11 January 2011, the Board announced that Mr.
Chan Wing Kwan was re-designated as a non-executive
Director and appointed as the chief consultant of the
Company and ceased to be the Managing Director and an
executive Director with effect from 11 January 2011. As at
the date of this report, no replacement of the position of
Managing Director has been appointed since Mr. Chan’s
resignation. If a candidate with suitable knowledge, skills
and experience is identified, the Company will make
appointment to fill the position of Managing Director as
appropriate.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises twelve members, one
of whom is a non-executive Director and four of whom
are independent non-executive Directors who are
expressly identified in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of Directors of the Company. One
of the independent non-executive directors possesses
appropriate professional qualifications (or accounting or
related financial management expertise) as required by
the Listing Rules. The composition of the Board as of the
report date is as follows:

Executive Directors
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)
Cheung Kwong Kwan
Chang Wing Yiu
Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick
Ho Yin Sang
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie
Chen Maosheng
(appointed on 11 January 2011)

Non-executive Director
Chan Wing Kwan
(re-designated on 11 January 2011)

Independent non-executive Directors
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Henry Tan

Lai Chung Wing, Robert

Tse Kam Hung

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie is the sister of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing. Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan is a
cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai
Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin
Sang are brothers-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Mok Cham Hung,
Chadwick is the son-in-law of Mr. Chan Wing Kwan.

During the year under review, the non-executive director
and the independent non-executive directors of the
Company were not appointed for specific terms but
are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election. The Board considers that although such
arrangement deviates from paragraph A.4.1 of the Code,
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the Code.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

On 11 January 2011, the Board announced that Mr.
Chan Wing Kwan was re-designated as a non-executive
Director and appointed as the chief consultant of the
Company and ceased to be the Managing Director and
an executive Director with effect from 11 January 2011.
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan has no fixed term of service with
the Company as a non-executive Director and is subject
to the relevant provisions of retirement and re-election at
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. His
appointment without a specific term is a deviation from
paragraph A.4.1 of the Code. As at the date of this report,
no replacement of the position of Managing Director
has been appointed since Mr. Chan’s resignation. His
resignation as a Managing Director is a deviation from
paragraph A.2.1 of the Code. Under paragraph A.2.1 of
the Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should not be performed by the same individual.

The Board will keep reviewing the structure of the Board
from time to time. If a candidate with suitable knowledge,
skills and experience is identified, the Company will make
appointment to fill the position of Managing Director as
appropriate.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Board comprises Directors who collectively provide
core competencies, sales and marketing experience
and technical knowledge in laminates, printed circuit
boards, property developments and chemical products,
administration and management experience in the PRC
factories, financial and accounting skills, as well as in-
house advices to comply with international laws and
regulations. The Board size of twelve directors with
a balance of skills and experience is appropriate for
effective decision making, taking into account the nature
and scope of the operations of the Company.

Annual Report 2011 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
T —HFH EELIER

=Y )

EEggE®)

—T——4—F+—B EEeSH F
KREEDHATARNTESRESEA
ANTEEER - WEKIHEESRT
BRHTESE a-F——&—A+—H
R o AR A M ERITE ST
EAATE SR - EEREAAT
BHERZEA - ETHRADBREEFA
SEREERETZABKY - HEEY
m A IR T AR BALE - RAE
WAL AR ERTR - ARFY
FEEHIESEEE - HRIESLE
2R RESF RIS SCEA2.1 15 o IRIEFAIIE
FEA21E — B AT TERTEERTK
1w -

EEe TR RNESSRE - HDes
BEBEAFH  BERERNREA - K
RABIARIE - AR EEELIE R
(anEm) -

ARREEETRAEIAEOMRE - B
BERBUIFNTEEZFREBIUILER

E= 3
=

ExemzoEEMANK  HRARHKAHRE
ER - ENRIAREEIR - BHEERRIET
EmZZORED - HERTISERERK
R B TR TR N IR
BB R EFROAREEETEEERR
MOIZAMER - EFEH T _RKE -
BRETRAEENRER  ZERIARRAZE
BHEERAER BFENE ABEERE
BEMEEBAHE



Corporate Governance Report {3 E 78R E

DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s Articles of Association set out a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new Directors to the Board. Any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy
or as addition to the Board, shall retire and be eligible
for re-appointment at the next following annual general
meeting after appointment. The appointment of Directors
are not fixed for a specified term, but at every annual
general meeting one-third of the directors, including
the Chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-appointment by shareholders. The Directors
appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement
and re-appointment as mentioned above shall be taken
into account in calculating the total number of Directors
for the time being but shall not be taken into account
in calculating the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-appointment
shall have their biographical details made available to
the shareholders to enable them to make an informed
decision on their re-appointment. Any appointment,
resignation, removal or re-designation of Director shall be
timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement
and shall include in such announcement, the reasons
given by the Director for his resignation.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each Director to
keep abreast of his responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every Director is required
to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs
of the Board and the material matters of the Company
and to serve the Board with such degree of care and
due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Every newly appointed Director shall receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his appointment. All Directors shall
be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a
proper understanding of the operations and the business
of the Company and that they are fully aware of their
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations.
The Board has a procedure for Directors, either
individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their duties,
to take independent professional advice, if necessary,
at the Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the
Directors to make well considered decisions. Appropriate
insurance coverage for Directors’ and officers’ liability
has been arranged against possibility of legal action to be
taken against the Directors and the management.

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation
to furnish the Board with complete, adequate and
appropriate information in such form and such quality in a
timely manner so as to enable them to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities
as Directors of the Company. All the Directors are given
separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management.

All the Directors are given separate and independent
access to the Company Secretary, whose role includes
ensuring that Board procedures are observed and
followed, and that applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is
responsible for drafting minutes and keeping minutes
records which can be accessed by any Director for
inspection.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and
disclosure

The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) which comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tse
Kam Hung (Chairman), Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert and
Mr. Henry Tan, to formulate policies and procedures for
determining the remuneration of Directors and senior
management and other remuneration related matters. The
Remuneration Committee is set up with written terms of
reference which set out clearly its duties and authorities
delegated by the Board, including the following duties:

° formulate the framework or Board policy for
determining the remuneration of the Company’s
Board and senior management. The objective
of such policy should ensure that members of
the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage
enhanced performance and are, in a fair and
reasonable manner, rewarded for their individual
contributions to the success of the Company;

o recommend specific remuneration packages
including, where appropriate, allowances,
bonuses, benefits in kind, incentive payments,
and share options, if any, for each executive
Director and the Managing Director and such
other members of senior management as it is
designated to consider;

° recommend targets for any performance-linked
pay schemes operated by the Company, taking
into account remuneration and employment
conditions within the industry and in comparable
companies; and
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B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND B. EELSHRTEASHM o)
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

The level and make-up of remuneration and M RIEENNKFERAERE)

disclosure (continued)

. recommend to the Board the remuneration of . SEBIIFRNTES(BEIENT
independent non-executive Directors (including EE(WA))RNEZED - BE
non-executive Directors, if any), taking into FEE SRSz HFMAES2IR
account factors such as effort, time spent and HE o

responsibilities.

When recommending the remuneration package for each HMMEE S ARAEEREZE S ER
individual Director, the Remuneration Committee will BERERZERNER BESERTR
consider his qualification and experience, specific duties THETEBEURTEETS T RERN Y
and responsibilities assigned to him by the Board and the #FB o NOEFERN BREE 2R
prevailing market packages available for similar position. HEFHYIRE156 2 158 B M 3R & M 5+
The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis for the 14 o KRB THRESHNSTBREBRL
year under review is set out on pages 156 to 158 in Note FlAk5 - BAREEMEREZ LT IED
14 to the financial statements. Review and comparison in FEETTRT REE - ZE FIEER © 3
terms of Directors’ emoluments package and net profits MEEeKHATEEREENERES
of the Group are made from time to time with comparable ZEHEFBREES -

listed industrial companies with similar capitalisation to the
Group. Considering all such factors, the Remuneration
Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each Director after consultation
with the Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration REEFERN  THEESEARMAEY
Committee had convened two meetings during which, FOUWEER(EPBE)FBES ZHM
among other things, the remuneration packages for all F8 o

Directors were considered.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s account which gives a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
Company deploys appropriate and sufficient resources to
prepare unaudited half-yearly account and audited yearly
account. Senior management is required to present and
explain the financial reporting and matters that materially
affect or may have material impact on the financial
performance and operations of the Company to the Audit
Committee and the Board and respond to the queries
and concerns raised by the Audit Committee and the
Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the auditor of
the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 63 and 64 of this annual report.

Internal controls
The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the
key elements of which are as follows:

° formal policies and procedures are in place,
including the documentation of key processes,
procedures and rules relating to the delegation of
authorities. These allow the monitoring of controls
and restrict the unauthorised use of the Group
assets;

o experienced and suitably qualified staff take
responsibility for important business functions.
Annual appraisal procedures have been
established to maintain standards of performance;

° monthly business and financial reports are
prepared, providing relevant, timely, reliable and
up-to-date financial and other information; budget
variances are investigated as appropriate; and

° an internal audit function, which reports directly
to the Audit Committee, is in place to determine
whether the above procedures are properly carried
out.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Internal controls (continued)

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of
the above internal control system of the Group including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management and will conduct such review at least once
a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’ investment and
the Group’s assets are properly safeguarded. The Board is
satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled
with its own observations and with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk
management processes are satisfactory for the nature
and size of the Group’s operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has
established an internal audit team that reports directly
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
independently audit various functions, operations and
systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the
priority list recommended by the Audit Committee. The
internal audit team will prepare an internal audit report
highlighting the deficiencies and weaknesses in existing
audit functions, operations and systems for discussion by
the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on these
findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Audit Committee
The Board has established the Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference setting out duties,
responsibilities and authorities delegated to them by the
Board. The major duties and responsibilities of the Audit
Committee include the following:

° review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

° review with the external auditor, their evaluation of
the system of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit
procedures;
o review the statement of financial position and

income statement of the Company and the
consolidated statement of financial position and
income statement of the Group and submit them
to the Board;

o nominate persons as auditor;

° review with the internal and external auditors their
findings on their evaluation of the Company’s
system of internal controls for the purpose of
assisting the Board in developing policies that
would enhance the controls and operating
systems of the Company; and

o review connected transactions and examine the
adequacy of internal controls of the Group as part
of the standard procedures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued) C. BERZE (2)
Audit Committee (continued) EREER(H)
The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the EREEeBERERTZHEZ&HE
scope and results of the audit and its cost effectiveness, R NRRARE - A RAR B2 EENE
and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s e HERACHAMOTZBELEREE
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. The Audit Committee Mo BREEEFFEL—NRFTART
will review the independence of the Company’s auditor, BN 2B NI E S BN
the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function, BEEERTER - NEZKEEEAQTIR
at least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies HIEHIRTS - TE@N@FERTXE
non-audit services to the Company, the Committee sz HEERETHEHE  BREFRERE
will keep the nature and extent of such services under MR AN 2 TR ERAS T o REIEAFEEA -
review, seeking to balance between the maintenance of AN BRI EEN R AN EERME 2 B R IE
objectivity and value for money. During the year under BRERE MO, FER AR T E A
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor N
in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
Company’s auditor to the Group were as follows:
Amount (HK$)
Nature of services PR £E(BR)
Audit services ZEARTS 11,200,000
Non-audit services B ARTS
()  Tax services () FREEARHS 2,182,000
(i)  Other services iy HiR®% 3,570,000

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the
non-audited services provided by the Company’s auditor
and concluded that in their opinion such services did
not affect the independence of the auditor. The Board
has appointed an accountant to be responsible for the
accounting and financial matters of the Group and the
Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial
and relevant information which enable them to discharge
their audit committee function effectively and efficiently.
Besides internal assistance being available, the Audit
Committee may request for assistance and advice from
external auditor as and when they think necessary at
the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee
shall meet with external auditor without the presence
of executive Directors to discuss the Group’s financial
reporting and any major and financial matters arising
during the year under review at least once a year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

o to investigate any matter within its written terms of
reference;

o to have full access to and co-operation by the
management;

o to have full discretion to invite any Director or

executive officer to attend its meetings; and

° to have reasonable resources to enable it to
discharge its functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit
Committee are appropriately qualified to discharge their
responsibilities and at least one member has accounting
and related financial management expertise or experience.
The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert
(Chairman), Mr. Tse Kam Hung and Mr. Henry Tan.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters, including the review of the
audited annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011. During the year under review, the Audit
Committee had convened three meetings.

BERZE (2)
EREES(#)
HOh - BIXE B EERE -

. #3
=

AT AR S8 B A B E ()

fmp /hﬂi

. HERErEEBIEERHE

€ :
. PRBERBETANESRSRITHR
Aﬁﬁfﬁéﬁ;

. ERAEEREREEIEEET

5 -

EEeMERERZZEEKBARBAEE
RETRE k2L —2KEEESFR
HEM B ERERAME L LR - BRERE
CTHM-RBIUIFNTES + BEREE(E
&) Bt RRT MK -

EZLZBEgHE B A EERAZ
SETRARER IE‘TmV%( M EPEL
ERMBEREE  BEBHEBEE-Z
——F T A=+ -BULFEZEERF
EHBHREK - REBFEAN  EZZEE
RITT=RE=

= o

Annual Report 2011 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 59

R —FFR BELCIER



Corporate Governance Report (¥ &8 E

60

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company'’s articles of association set out matters
which are specifically reserved to the Board for its
decision. Executive Directors normally meet on an
informal basis every two weeks and participate in senior
management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast
of the latest operations and performance of the Group
and to monitor and ensure the management carry out
the directions and strategies set by the Board correctly
and appropriately. Clear instructions are given to the
management as to the matters which should bring to the
attention and be determined by the Board on behalf of
the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees,
namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, each chaired by a different
independent non-executive Director, to assist the Board
in discharging functions specific to each committee. Each
Board committee has its own written terms of reference
setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements
which are substantially the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members
who are independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Henry Tan (Chairman), Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert,
and Mr. Tse Kam Hung. According to the written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee, the major
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

o regularly review the structure, size and composition
of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board with regard to any adjustments that are
deemed necessary;

o review whether or not an independent non-
executive Director is independent for the purpose
of the Listing Rules on annual basis;
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (continued)

Board committees (continued)

° be responsible for identifying and nominating for
the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board
vacancies as and when they arise;

o assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole
and the contribution by each individual Director to
the effectiveness of the Board; and

o be responsible for re-nomination having regard
to the Director’s contribution and performance,
including, if applicable, as an independent
Director.

During the year under review and up to the date of this
report, the Nomination Committee had convened two
meetings during which, among other things, considered
the Directors who should retire by rotation pursuant to
the Company’s articles of association and the Code. The
Nomination Committee had resolved that Ms. Cheung
Wai Lin, Stephanie, being an executive Director, Mr.
Chan Wing Kwan, being a non-executive Director, and
Mr. Henry Tan and Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert, being
independent non-executive Directors shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. All the above-named Directors
were nominated by the Nomination Committee to stand
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders. All Directors are encouraged to attend
the general meetings to have personal communication
with shareholders. In annual general meeting, Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of each committee
are required to attend and answer questions from
shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor
is also required to be present to assist the directors in
addressing any relevant queries by shareholders. The
Company has also set up a public relations website
which enables the shareholders and public to post their
questions, comments and opinions in relation to the
Group to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) provide good
opportunities for shareholders to air their views and
ask directors and management questions regarding
the Company. All shareholders of the Company receive
the annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and
EGM and other corporate communications. The notices
are also published on the Company’s website at
www.kingboard.com. Separate resolutions are required at
general meetings on each distinct issue. Each shareholder
is permitted to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his
stead.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BEN RS

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 65 to 239, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

AN <
%VT\ (=] l‘l&ﬁﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 —FE——F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

2011 2010
—=——fF —E—EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
s FET FAT
Revenue X 7 36,559,072 33,891,522
Cost of sales and services rendered  $H%E MR ARIGHA (30,736,317) (26,900,920)
Gross profit EF 5,822,755 6,990,602
Other income E g A 9 829,564 193,389
Distribution costs BAN = I (903,585) (856,950)
Administrative costs 1T AN (1,468,680) (1,346,513)
(Loss) gain on disposal of HEAHBERE 2
available-for-sale investments (E518) Yz (30,161) 296,012
Share-based payments LAREAD FZ AR (236,099) -
Impairment loss on properties, W BENMEREZ
plant and equipment REEE 18 (136,738) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A4t H &% & 7 R EE B
investments 10 (83,878) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEHB ARz IS 40 34,592 -
Finance costs & B AR 11 (361,881) (304,040)
Share of results of associates it = NCIE 254,823 200,873
Share of results of jointly controlled  fE{f +t [E12 5 & 42
entities (1,075) (7,035)
Profit before taxation MR RV A 3,719,637 5,166,338
Income tax expense FriSEifsZ 12 (513,061) (516,221)
Profit for the year REE R 13 3,206,576 4,650,117
Profit for the year attributable to: AEZmFEED
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE=YEWN 2,594,142 3,620,818
Non-controlling interests FEARAS AR R AE RS 612,434 1,029,299
3,206,576 4,650,117
Earnings per share GR2EF| 16
Basic AR HK$3.039;85t HK$4.278/57¢
Diluted E HK$3.031;85t  HK$4.236i% T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 &2 —F——4#+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Profit for the year AEZHF 3,206,576 4,650,117
Other comprehensive income: HEib 2w :
Cash flow hedge: BB TEDH -
Gain (loss) on cash flow hedging W RE P TR 2 Wz
instruments (E518) 50,571 (44,088)
Deferred tax recognised in relation BB RE S MER 2
to change in cash flow hedges EREFIE (3,310) 8,373
Reclassification adjustment relating RS R RFABMm
to transfer of cash flow hedges B Z EFM D FEAE - 111,774
Reclassification adjustment relating IR ML R TAE M
to deferred tax on transfer of ﬂzﬁ TEHIDERE Y
cash flow hedges EIEFHIE - (18,443
Investment revaluation reserve: WEBMFHE
Fair value changes of AHEEREZ
available-for-sale investments N EZE) (805,446) 405,831
Reclassification adjustment relating HENHEERER
to disposal of available-for-sale ER 2 EF D AR
investments 30,161 (296,012)
Reclassification adjustment relating AL ERE ZRERER
to impairment loss on B 2 EF o AR
available-for-sale investments 83,878 -
Property revaluation reserve: MES MR
Fair value changes on properties VEEBRTIREER
transferred to investment N EZE)
properties 691 7,268
Translation reserve: B 3 RE 4
Exchange differences arising on AT EE 2 |MEET
translation of foreign operations EAEZERZERE
and to presentation currency 1,087,554 633,786
Share of change in reserve of JE(RER N B REEE S
associates 28,296 18,785
Other comprehensive income AEFEEMEEYE
for the year (net of tax) (Br¥i1%) 472,395 827,274
Total comprehensive income AEEEEK =L
for the year 3,678,971 5,477,391
Total comprehensive income 2HEINERTEELMEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIESFEDN 2,935,144 4,323,205
Non-controlling interests FEPERRAR R M A 743,827 1,154,186
3,678,971 5,477,391
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
an\ = ,\ji&;lﬁ;ﬂ:%

At 31 December 2011 R —F——F+-H=+—H

d Il
i

2011 2010
—=E——f —E—TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ibEES FHET FA&T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties wEYE 17 3,505,610 2,130,210
Properties, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 18 18,357,984 17,574,362
Prepaid lease payments JEMEERE 19 947,807 919,313
Other non-current assets Hib3Emen&E 20 712,707 -
Goodwill [EES 21 2,288,149 2,288,149
Interests in associates REtE R T 2 s 22 746,359 564,447
Held-to-maturity investments EE R ERE 23 972,883 -
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 24 4,285,141 2,299,936
Interests in jointly controlled entities  FA LRI I B 82 > #E2s 25 - 1,075
Non-current deposits FERBET 26 1,433,910 1,715,339
Deferred tax assets EAEFI IR & B 34 14,342 25,549
33,264,892 27,518,380
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 28 2,926,128 4,023,228
Properties held for development FEREYE 29 9,227,363 4,625,399
Trade and other receivables and B 5 NEMERIRR X
prepayments TERTRUE 30 8,414,105 7,958,511
Bills receivables FEWZE 30 2,120,683 1,982,724
Prepaid lease payments FENFHERE 19 26,034 23,617
Taxation recoverable AT U B IR 42,580 41,693
Bank balances and cash RITEBNIES 30 4,437,442 5,143,658
27,194,335 23,748,830
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B o5 NEMENIER 32 5,023,154 4,368,885
Bills payables iARE=S 32 1,001,947 1,163,337
Deposits received from pre-sale of ~ FEEWEFFUE] S
residential units 1,423,679 1,061,578
Derivative financial instruments THESRITE 31 13,761 47,070
Taxation payable FESFIIR 660,536 591,764
Bank borrowings SRITIEE 33 6,723,757 5,241,974
14,846,834 12,474,608
Net current assets MEEEZFE 12,347,501 11,274,222
Total assets less current liabilities BEREBERRDEE 45,612,393 38,792,602
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4r& B & AR W 3=
At 31 December 2011 R=ZFE——F+=—H=+—H

2011 2010
—2——F =T ZE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ibEES FET FH&T

Non-current liabilities FERBBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIIE B F 34 167,194 73,378
Derivative financial instruments TESMTE 31 - 50,755
Bank borrowings RITIEE 33 11,450,813 7,086,134
11,618,007 7,210,267
33,994,386 31,582,335

Capital and reserves B R (& 1
Share capital &N 35 85,467 84,950
Share premium and reserves BRIDEE RS 27,959,913 25,685,224

Equity attributable to owners KRARFHE AEGER

of the Company 28,045,380 25,770,174
Non-controlling interests FEVERS AR R = 38 5,949,006 5,812,161
Total equity BB 33,994,386 31,582,335

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 239 were  F65BEF239B 2 A MBREAENR T —=F
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on = A=+ BHEZESHEREEZENE - WH T

29 March 2012 and are signed on its behalf by: FEEREXEE:
Cheung Kwok Wing Chang Wing Yiu
RE BBk
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
— B35 < 424
mERREEHE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——F+=-A=+—HIFFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
LINTLIN. 15
Capital Share Special Property Investment Non-
Share  Share redemption  Warrant  option  Goodwil  suplus Stafutory  Hedging revaluation revaluation Translation  Retained controling Total
captal premum  reseve  reseve  fesene  fesene  account  resenve  reseve  reseve  resene  resene  profts  Totl interests  equty
BE  JBEER EAARE 5l [/H KA R
BE KAEE ROER R B FEEE BHRE ieBR  HeEE EREE ERER EXRR REEH fit WRER AReE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000
Tén TEr TR TEr  TEr TR  TAr  TEr TR AT TEr TR AT TRr  TER  TEn
(Noted)  (Noteh) (Note )
(ita)  (Wilb) (Hikc)
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZE-TE-R-Br&4 84,474 4404007 1,911 - - (191) 10594 186,765 (107.373) 15216 29,540 1,611,272 15,300,802 21,506,417 4,617,699 26,124,116
Increase i fair value of available-for-sale NHHEREATEZEN
investments - - - - - - - - - - 404175 - - 404175 1656 405,831
Share of changes in resenve of associates EEBELARESS - - - - - - - - - - - 1878 - 18785 - 18785
Loss on cash flow hedging instruments BeRHATIE ER - - - - - - - - (44088 - - - - (44,088 - (44088
Deferred tax recognised n refation to Bz Eaan Sl
change in cash flow hedges B EERE - - - - - - - - 83 - - - - 831 - 8
Exchange differences arising on transiation RFEIMLEEZ2H
of foreign operations and to presentation ERMELZENER
currency - - - - - - - - - - - 51055 - 510555 123231 633786
Fair value gain on properties transferred to NEERTIANER L
investment properties DTN - - - - - - - - - 1208 - - - 728 - 1288
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - - - 3620818 3620818 1,029,299 4,650,117
Transfer to proft or loss on cash flow hedge SREAMERZER - - - - - - - - T4 - - - - 11174 - 114
Defered tax on transfer to profit or loss on PTEREERELL
cash flow hedges EERE - - - - - - - - (1848 - - - - (18443 - (18443
Investment revaluation resenve releasedon  HEBE 2 RAE (R
disposal - - - - - - - - - - (296012 - - (296,012 - (296012
Total comprehensive income for the year FERRANESE - - - - - - - - o716 7268 108163 520340 3620818 4323206 1,154,186 5477391
Recognition of equity component of warrants ~ E2ZREE 2 #ESH - - - 675791 - - - - - - - - (B75791) - - -
Issue of new shares from exercise of R ERER
share options B2 467 16,998 - - - - - - - - - - - 17465 - 17465
Issue of new shares from exercise of wanants  E{7 (AR EEMET 2 HRG 9 423 - (705) - - - - - - - - - 38 -3
Recognition of equiy-seffled share-based BRI AR
payments - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 303 303
Final dividend for the year ended BE-TINFTZAZT-B
31 December 2009 HERZRERE - - - - - - - - - - - - (380,133 (380,133) - (380133
Interim dividend for the year ended HE-T-TFTCA=1-B
31 Decarber 2010 FEF RS - - - - - - - - - - - - (0456T) (424,567) - (4oa567)
Capital contribution from minority shareholders KB A7) &L EE
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 163500 163500
Acqisition of additional interests in YEHBLREEE
subsiiaries (Note d) (Fittd) - - - - - (o48,480) - - - - - - - (48480) (259.910) (508,3%)
Disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries HERBARN S
(Note €) (Ficte) - - - - - 1081712 - - - - - (288 - 958869 706,517 1,665,386
Disposal of subsidfaries (Note 40) HEHBARH) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - [829%) (82939
Dividends paid to minority shareholders of TR FHBARZDERRZRS
subsidlaries - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (473322 (4713322
Reserves released upon disposal of HENRAREDRE
subsidlaries - - - - - - - - - - - (11,508 11,508 - - -
Transfer upon lapse of share option RELERESINEE - - - - - - - - - - - - 13877 13877 (13877) -
Transfers ag - - - - - - - 58 - - - - (55229 - - -
476 21221 - 675086 - 783226 - 523 - - - (84351) (1510329) (59448) 40276 (19,172
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZS-FET-A=+-A78% 84950 4425228 1911 675,086 - 782435 10594 211988  (49757) 22484 137703 2056261 17,411,291 25,770,174 5812,161 31,582,335
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #R&#E

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

=

B3R

Attributable to owners of the Company

RN

ADFREARGER
Capital Share Special Property ~ Investment Non-
Share Share redemption ~ Warrant  options  Goodwil  surplus  Statutory  Hedging revaluation revaluation Translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  account  reserve  reserve  reseve  feserve  resemve profits Total interests equity
B ABER & #Al 0% B& FER
Rk RGEE AEHRE B BREEE SRER BHRE iEER  IMER  ERER  ERER  EXER e 4t BREE  RA4H
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS00D  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000
ThT ThRT FER ThR ThR FER ThR TR TR ThR ThT TR ThR ThT TR ThR
(Note) (Note b} (Note o)
(W) (Wab) (Biike)
Balance at 1 January 2011 RoF——F-A-B2kH 84950 4425228 1911 675086 - 18243 10594 211,088 (49,757) 2884 107708 2056261 17411291 25770174 5812161 31,562,335
Decrease i fair velue of available-for-sale investments - - - - - - - - - - (164828 - - (164828 (40618  (805,446)
Share of changes in reserve of associates - - - - - - - - - - - 28,296 - 28,29 - 28,296
Gain on cash flow hedging instruments - - - - - - - - 50671 - - - - 50,571 - 50571
Deferred tax recognised in relation to change in
cash flow hedges - - - - - - - - (3:310) - - - - (3310) - (3310)
Exchange d . Seton of
foreign operations and to presentation curency - - - - - - - - - - - 915,543 - 915,543 172011 1,087,554
Fair value gain on propertes transferred to investment
properties - - - - - - - - - 691 - - - 691 - 691
Proft for the year RERER - - - - - - - - - - - - 2504142 2504142 612434 3206576
Impaiment loss on avalable-for-sale investments AHHERE HERR = = = = = = = = = = 83878 = = 83,878 - 83818
Investment revaluation reserve released on disposal LERRREERRE - - - - - - - - - - 30,161 - - 30,161 - 30,161
Total comprefensive income for the year REERENEE - - - - - - - - 41,261 691 (650780 943830 2594142 2935144 43827 3678971
Issue of new shares from exercise of share apfions BiEEER 1 16,283 - - - - - - - - - - - 16,730 - 16,730
Issue of e sheres from exerciss of warrants BTk RRERTRT R 0 339 - (555 - - - - = = = = - ngs - e
Recogniton of equity-settied share-besed payments ~ BZHRATA R - - - - 167,03 - - - - - - - - 167039 69,060 236,099
Final dividend forthe year ended BE-T-BETCASH-A
31 December 2010 HEEZRERE - - - - - - - - - - - - (6128000 (512800) - (612800
Interim diicend for the year ended BE-T—FtA=t-R
31 December 2011 IHERZRERE - - - - - - - - - - - - (1867 (341,867) - (41867
Capital contrbution from minoriy sharefolders HBLR BRR
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 4431 4431
Acquisiion of additional interests
in subsidiaries (Note d) - - - - - (17,097) - - - - - - - (17,007)  (89,627)  (106,724)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 40) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (105826  (105,826)
Reserves released upon disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - (35,633) 35,633 - - -
Dividends paid to minory shreholders of subsidiaries 11 FRIBA T2 S BREZBS - - - - - - - - - - = = = - (A84793) (484793
Transfer upon lapse of share option REAERERAMER - - - - - - - - - - - - 23 pii) (283) -
Transfers @z - - - - - - - s = = = - (e = = =
57 49602 - ses 167009 (17,07 - B o o - (%5633 (86745 (650,008 (606,062 (1,266920)
Balance at 31 December 2011 RoF-—5TA=T-H2EH 85,467 4474830 1911 669521 167030 765388 1054 260432 (249) 2175  (513,086) 2964467 19,138,188 28045380 5940006 33,994,386
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #r&#E
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

Notes:

Special surplus account represents the difference between the nominal
amount of the shares issued by the Company and the nominal amount of
the issued share capitals of the subsidiaries which were acquired by the
Company under the group reorganisation in 1993.

Statutory reserve represents the Enterprise Expansion Fund and General
Reserve set aside by certain subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on
revaluation of certain properties of the Group for own use as a result
of transfer of those properties for own use from properties, plant and
equipment to investment properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group acquired additional
interests in Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (“KLHL”), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and Elec & Eltek International
Company Limited (“EEIC”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
and dual-listed on the Stock Exchange. As a result of the acquisitions,
the difference of HK$17,097,000 (2010: HK$248,486,000) between the
consideration paid of HK$106,724,000 (2010: HK$508,396,000) and the
amount of non-controlling interests adjusted of HK$89,627,000 (2010:
HK$259,910,000) was directly recognised in equity.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group disposed part
of its interest in KLHL and as a result of the disposal, the difference
of HK$1,031,712,000 between the net consideration received of
HK$1,665,386,000, the recognition of non-controlling interests
of HK$706,517,000 and derecognition of translation reserve of
HK$72,843,000 was directly recognised in equity.

32 4=

5%

=

g

=

FAlBHEREARRETHROEELEARRF®
—NN=ZFREEBSHEWE 2 HERREETRAE
BzE#E-

EEREEE THBRRREREARKMBIEREE
FOERBH bR BARES T —REES -

AEENEEEEEBEANBETVERERZYE -
RS Rk i I A Y PR A 7 B b ek -

HEZ_Z——F+_A=1+—HILFERN ' KXEELR
BEEERZERERAR([ZERBR]) (AARRE
BHARZSERAR([BZFT]) FHr3ES AN
BAR]) RKFZiEREFR AR ([EEICT (KRR RN
MEBFHLZHHERAR EHRRERAESE FhadE
2EMAMBAR) NEIMER - WSHBFEHEMANR
{E106,724,000/8 7L (== —Z4 : 508,396,000/8 7T ) £
O PR IR I % SR E2580,627,000/8 L (T — T4 -
259,910,000/ 7T ) 2 [ #) £ 5817,097,000/8 7L (= —
T : 248,486,000/8 7T ) EE N HERIER ©

HEZZ-—ZF+-_A=+—-HLEFER  £&
EHEMOEEEERER - HESHDBRE
V% #1,6065,386,000 /8 7T 2 O # 2 IF £ AR R A &
706,517,000 7T K 7E [ 5 7 % 5 B 132 2 72,843,000
B2 IR #E1,031,712,0008 7T © BENERMER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN Al —R
GEEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2011 & —E——4%#+ = H=+—H I EZF

2011 2010
—E—— —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES e
Profit before taxation BB A A 3,719,637 5,166,338
Adjustments for: FAEE
Share of results of associates S NSIE (254,823) (200,873)
Share of results of jointly controlled S E b N E
entities 1,075 7,035
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE Y = 696
Depreciation of properties, Y% - WEREEITE
plant and equipment 2,134,650 2,058,419
Impairment loss recognised in respect LB 5 M H th fEULBR ZRFERR 2 BB
of trade and other receivables Ea 56,315 108,164
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FLIFEMERZ BIEEE
of inventories 25,942 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect  Bt¥% - BiE LR TR 2 RE
of properties, plant and equipment 518 136,738 -
Dividends from available-for-sale AR ERE ZRE
investments (121,113) (29,785)
Interest expenses and other finance FEXEREMBEER
charges 361,881 304,040
Loss (gain) on disposal of HE R E1RE 2 BB (W)
available-for-sale investments 30,161 (296,012)
Gain on fair value changes of WEMENFEZE 2 W
investment properties (412,361) (68,824)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B AR Z IkEE (34,592) =
Release of prepaid lease payments TETTRERIER D 24,146 20,832
Interest income FBEUA (131,070) (38,639)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A ERE 2R EEE
investments 83,878 -
Loss on fair value changes of R A NN T EES 2 B
commodity forward contracts - 33,493
Loss on disposal and write off of HEMMEEYE BMEMEREZ
properties, plant and equipment 518 14,370 13,259
Share-based payment expenses AR FE R A 236,099 303
Operating cash flows before movements Rit&EZ BRI KLIRERE
in working capital 5,870,933 7,078,446
Decrease (increase) in inventories GFERAEm) 404,737 (682,152)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 & E th [ Uk BR 7% T8 (- FUIEIE AN
and prepayments (376,921) (1,967,558)
Increase in bills receivables JE U Z= 4 4 0 (92,121) (670,758)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other 8 5 & E b ERBRFIZ M CRLA)
payables 611,471 (165,949)
(Decrease) increase in bills payables =GR )1 hn (219,076) 408,053
Net decrease in derivative financial TSI AR F5E
instruments (33,493) (11,628)
Increase in properties held for FEER YL
development (4,019,171) (2,566,128)
Increase in deposits from pre-sale of TEEY RN ST
residential units 309,461 1,061,578
Cash generated from operations RS IR ATISIN G 2,455,820 2,483,904
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBFEH (5,295) (14,922)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EIRBEBFIEH = 3,930
Other taxes paid HAb B EFE (456,295) (336,522)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBRABREFHE
ACTIVITIES 1,994,230 2,136,390
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SR E&RER
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

2011 2010
—E2——F —E—TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FaE FET FA&T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHLERE
investments (3,565,543) (1,662,638)
Purchase of held-to-maturity BEZERIHKE
investments (890,667) -
Purchase of properties, plant and BEYE  BELRE
equipment (2,274,228) (1,035,389)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWE  BE&&E
properties, plant and equipment Hia (1,206,914) (1,209,885)
Considerations paid for additional ~ t—RIE# 44 A RISESMEZSFT
interest in an associate RIE (50,988) -
Increase in pledged bank deposits B & ERFTIFZIE N (5,577) (16,014)
Prepaid lease payments made BEAEMAERE (77,702) (135,205)
Purchase of investment properties ~ fE B &Y% (4,813) (585,987)
Proceeds from disposal of HEHREERERERIE
available-for-sale investments 659,828 975,402
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - R KRETS
properties, plant and equipment B 374,637 97,124
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid ~ H & &R ERIBFT15 I8
lease payments 47,776 172,973
Dividend received from an associate B, U —RE 4 A 71R% & 178,971 153,530
Interest received BUFLE 127,918 38,639
Dividends received from B AT HERERE
available-for-sale investments 121,113 29,785
Net cash outflow on acquisition of — WEEHIE A FRZIEE R
subsidiaries FRE 39 (404,519) (109,939)
Net cash inflow (outflow) HEMBATRZIHERA
on disposal of subsidiaries Gr)Z5E 40 165,962 (23,023)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ®REXBFABRSEE
ACTIVITIES (6,804,746) (3,310,627)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
New bank borrowings raised FILRITIEE 10,163,923 4,846,072
Proceeds from disposal of partial HENB RS D ESTS
interests in subsidiaries FIE = 1,665,386
Proceeds from exercise of share TR AR EFT S FR
options 16,730 17,465
Proceeds from exercise of warrants  17{# ;2R #E B TS 208 27,824 3,527
Repayment of bank borrowings EBRITEE (4,382,738) (4,105,556)
Consideration paid for acquisition of U8t B A F1ZEIMEZS AT~
additional interests in subsidiaries HKE (106,724) (508,396)
Dividend paid on ordinary shares RS AR S (854,667) (804,700)
Dividend paid to minority XA FHBARZ EIRER 2
shareholders of subsidiaries A% 2 (484,793) (473,322)
Interest and other finance charges B 718 R H g & &
paid (370,322) (313,173)
Capital contribution from minority LRI EYNCIPAL G S Tank=¢ 1 0E]
shareholders of subsidiaries 4,437 163,500
NET CASH FROM FINANCING BEEB SRS FE
ACTIVITIES 4,013,670 490,803
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 8 RE&RER
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

2011 2010
= —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HeRREEEEBER R FH
CASH EQUIVALENTS (796,846) (683,434)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FENzHERBELEEEE
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 5,022,022 5,546,587
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREEE
RATE CHANGES 79,021 158,869
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZESRELEEEE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 4,304,197 5,022,022
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HeRAESESEEEERIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash IRITEBERS 4,437,442 5,143,658
Less: Pledged bank deposits o DEIRRITER (133,245) (121,636)
Balances of cash and cash equivalents R4 RIS EEIEE &4 4,304,197 5,022,022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

pa

V.

n

1.

B IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 —FE——F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company and its operating
subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB”) while the consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$"), which the management of the Company
considered is more beneficial for the users of the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 49.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the
manufacture of laminates, printed circuit boards (“PCBs”),
chemicals, liquid crystal displays (“LCDs”), magnetic
products and property development and investment
(“Properties”).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued

in 2010

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009)  Related party disclosures

Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of rights issues
Amendments to HK(IFRIC) Prepayments of a minimum funding
-Int14 requirement
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
instruments

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

1.

—REHR
AATERSREEMRTALTARA
A ERBDEEEMARSHARAT
(TBERFR ) 2 R L7 o AR TR S
B it B BRI A AR ATA
B — SR -

ARAREZENBARNNEEESA
REBE(TARE]) - R MBHRERAUET
(TBTHEYN  AAREBRERF/UIEYE
FAMBRRNEREERER -

RRARRREER AR EMB AR ZE
2 EBHHTRE49

HIfB AR EENEFIAER - ENRIARE
R (TENRIAREEIR]) ~ (L TER - BRER
TRE(REBETRR)  WEEMRER
BMEHERRIIRE(TYE]D -

FE R FTIE K 1S R] 2 BB 5
WAER ([ EFBMBHRHKER )

AEERAFERANATHEESHMA
S([ERGEAE DEMOIIEHLE
R BB ERRER o

BEBREER BT “E-TERMNBAR
HERRER 2]

BRGIHER E245 BEEALBE
(ZEThFEET)

BEERARRS B HEHB

FE(ERMRRRENRER: SEARRYZ
88)-RREUR LT BIFR

ERARBRREARET RS TAKRNKAR

82)-REZ19%

AERERMERQET TN HRRE
AR EEARFERBEFENNBHRR
R EA TR IA RN AAR & B F5 $R < P 0
KEABEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and

EAFEREBIT 2EBMBER
WERA([EBMBRHEER])
(%)

7R B3 IR 7 A A T E ARG E I K

76

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and  Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets!

HKFRS 9 Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets

MEFTIE B R B AT FHRRAER -

BENBRRENRTR 267 BE-EREREE
REAMBEREAFE RE-HAHEREER

and financial liabilities? cRARE
Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and BAIHRGENER R
transition disclosures® BEERERRNEN
A

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments? BRB R REAEOR SRTA

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements? BRO B RRERIE 105 FRiERR

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements? BAUKRRENZ1R HEZH

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities? BRI BRRERE 2R REREME RS

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement? BRO B RRERE 13 AFER g

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other BRSIENE IR BT EMREYEER 5T
comprehensive income’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax - Recovery of underlying BREHENZ 1R 2B BERE-WEREEE
assets’

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee benefits? BAGTENE195% [EEREM?

(Z2——E8B3])
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate financial statements? BASHENETH BulBaz:
(ZT—FEBH)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in associates and joint BEEHEN P85, REERFAREEREL
ventures? (Z2——FE&BE) A

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial BREHENEDR BT EHEHEERERAR
liabilities®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping costs in the production phase of BE(ERMBRRENRE HRAREERRD
a surface mine? ZE®)-REE0% HERAAR2

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

R

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. 2 RIT—=F—A— B HEMRBZFEEHH
R e

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. 8 R-T-RF— A — B HERRIRZ FEHRE
R e

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012. 4 RoE—-—F—- AR HzHn 2 FEHE
R

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. 5 RIT——F+A— B EERRZ FEEHRH
R e

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. 6 R-T—ME— - B HERRRZ FEHRE
R e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #&
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures -
Transfers of financial assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 increase the disclosure
requirements for transactions involving transfers of
financial assets. These amendments are intended to
provide greater transparency around risk exposures when
a financial asset is transferred but the transferor retains
some level of continuing exposure in the asset. The
amendments also require disclosures where transfers of
financial assets are not evenly distributed throughout the
period.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate
that the application of the amendments to HKFRS 7 will
affect the Group’s disclosures regarding transfers of
financial assets in the future.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities and amendments
to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offsetting requirements. Specifically,
the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has
a legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous
realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to
disclose information about rights of offset and related
arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements) for
financial instruments under an enforceable master netting
agreement or similar arrangement.

The amended offsetting disclosures are required for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
and interim periods within those annual periods. The
disclosures should also be provided retrospectively for
all comparative periods. However, the amendments to
HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective application
required.

.....

PR ERAR Y RE
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% o

ARREE(EE)EY  EBRTEYS
RHMERETR BTG EARE IR
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TRHEERSHMAEREBUER
BEABTHR 2B HKE-EHS
MEERERAE

R ERNEIRRZEFTEEE MK
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B[ B A AN A | M R EE5
KB E JHRE -

BHEVBRRENER BT REERE
BLATIT AR B R IBR AR LEET
MERTAREERIKHEENRBETH
(IERBARARE ) W EHL o

BETHEERBEREN _T—=F—H
—RAENEFRNFERERZEFESR
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HARFAREFE R AR - WRBWE
A o
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a
financial liability (designated as at fair value through profit
or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability.
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BB ERAR P RE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9
in the future may have significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets. The
application of the new Standard may affect the amounts
reported in respect of the Groups’ available-for-sale equity
investments. In addition, the application of HKFRS 9 will
affect the classification and measurement of the available-
for-sale investments and held-to-maturity investments
but do not expect the application of HKFRS 9 will have
material effect on the financial liabilities and other financial
assets of the Group.

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
In June 2011, a package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11,
HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and separate financial statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK (SIC) — Int 12
“Consolidation — Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10
includes a new definition of control that contains three
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”
and HK (SIC) — Int 13 “Jointly controlled entities — Non-
monetary contributions by venturers”. HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or
joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of
the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to
be accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application
is permitted provided that all of these five standards are
applied early at the same time.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(continued)

The Directors anticipate that these five standards will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013. The
application of these five standards may have significant
impact on amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements. The application of HKFRS 10 may result in
the Group no longer consolidating some of its investees,
and consolidating investees that were not previously
consolidated (e.g. the Group’s investment in associates
may become the Group’s subsidiaries based on the new
definition of control and the related guidance in HKFRS
10). However, the directors have not yet performed a
detailed analysis of the impact of the application of these
Standards and hence have not yet quantified the extent of
the impact.

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The Standard defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are
more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based
on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently required
for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13
to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement (continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 January 2013 and that the
application of the new Standard may affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and
result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items
of other comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income
is required to be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the amendments are
applied in the future accounting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax -
Recovery of underlying assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to
the general principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should
reflect the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the entity expects to recover the carrying
amount of an asset. Specifically, under the amendments,
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment
property” are presumed to be recovered through sale
for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the
presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The amendments to HKAS 12 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
The Directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12 in future accounting periods
may result in adjustments to the amounts of deferred tax
liabilities recognised in prior years regarding the Group’s
investment properties of which the carrying amounts are
presumed to be recovered through sale. In the opinion of
the Directors, the application of HKAS 12 may result in a
decrease in the profit for the year and an increase in the
deferred tax liabilities at the end of the reporting period
as a result of additional deferred tax provisions on land
appreciation taxes in relation to the Group’s investment
properties located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) presuming these investment properties are to be
recovered through sales. However, the Directors have
not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the
application of the amendments and hence have not yet
quantified the extent of the impact.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition and up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance (effective from
1 January 2010 onwards).

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (i) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognise as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to
the Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings
as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
“Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement”
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with that
Standard.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE s
(continued)
Business combinations (continued) EXasE)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
Standard.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeHBE s
(continued)
Goodwill e

88

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units), that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeHBE s
(continued)
Investments in associates REE AT Z2RE

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or jointly
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of an associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TE®BZE#)
(continued)
Investments in associates (continued) REENTIZ2RE (&)

90

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount, any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group
losing significant influence over that associate, any
retained investment is measured at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS
39. The difference between the previous carrying amount
of the associate attributable to the retained interest and
its fair value is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that
associate.
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When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits EEETEREHBESNRETSSE W
and losses resulting from the transactions with the REE QB 2 R B AR S E HRE - B
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated BRNEIRGPNERSEEE 2 GREMTE
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the MRFER o

associate that are not related to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE s

(continued)

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which ventures have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the jointly
controlled entities. When the Group’s share of losses of
a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest
in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of a jointly controlled
entity recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeHBE s
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(continued)

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly
controlled entity. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that results in
the Group losing joint control over that jointly controlled
entity, any retained investment is measured at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the previous
carrying amount of the jointly controlled entity attributable
to the retained interest and its fair value is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the jointly
controlled entity. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that jointly controlled entity on the
same basis as would be required if that jointly controlled
entity had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that jointly controlled
entity would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when it loses joint control
over that jointly controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 454 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 —FE——F+ - A=+—HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IE&HBE®)
(continued)
Jointly controlled entities (continued) ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂgﬁﬂ( 4%)
When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled EEBELEHEHEAREHERBETRS

entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the
Group’ consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts, return and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial

involverment to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods

sold;
o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
o it is probable that the economic benefits associated

with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the
ordinary course of business is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and delivered
to the buyers. Deposits and instalments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities.

Service income for drilling services is recognised when
services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Rental income and licence fee income are recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
and licence agreement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE s

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Properties held for development
Properties held for development for sale in the future are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties,
comprising prepaid lease payments for lands and
development costs, are included in properties held for
development until such time when they are completed.

The Group transfers properties held for development for
sale to investment properties when there is a change
of intention to hold the properties to earn rentals or/
and for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the
ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party.
Any difference between the fair value at the date of
transfer and its previous carrying amount of the properties
is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeHBE s
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(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties, plant and equipment under
construction) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of properties, plant and equipment (other than
properties, plant and equipment under construction) over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account
of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes, are carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties, plant and equipment are classified to the
appropriate category of properties, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeHBE s

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

If an item of properties, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of properties, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Licenced properties, plant and equipment
Licenced properties, plant and equipment (included in
properties, plant and equipment) held to earn licence
fee income are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised as to write off the cost of items
of licenced properties, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE s
(continued)
Inventories FE

98

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sales.

Licenced inventories

Licenced inventories shown as other non-current assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimate costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Intangible assets BREE
Intangible assets acquired separately BRWEzBEEE

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effective of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the profit or loss in the period when
the asset is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IE€HHZE®)
(continued)
Intangible assets (continued) BRERE#E)
Impairment RE

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired (see the accounting policies in respect of
impairment losses (other than goodwiill) below).

Impairment losses (other than goodwill (see the
accounting policies in respect of goodwill))

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE s
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(continued)

Impairment losses (other than goodwill (see the
accounting policies in respect of goodwiill)) (continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases and licence fee
income are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease and licence
agreement.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased assets are consumed. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recongised as expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE s

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as properties, plant and equipment,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases,
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZE - F——%F+ - =+—HI - F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Company’s
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity and
will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
of the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except
for exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE )

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or jointly controlled entities that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE s
(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued) JNHE 4=)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
equity under the heading translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
before 1 January 2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign
currency items of the acquirer and reported using the
historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognizes as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognized as a deduction
from the carrying amount of the relevant asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the
related assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE s
(continued)
Borrowing costs BERA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sales, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
consolidated income statement because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reserve in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE s
(continued)
Taxation (continued) BE#E)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IE&HEX®)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) EWMIEB%E)
Financial assets MKEE

108

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-
for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised

AEBEZHMBEEDBRERMEKEE
A RKEZIHRERAHLENBEE
Eo DBEATHMBEEMERBOME
ENRERANEE - FEREREE MK
BERRX S ARARIGER - BFEER
Z BB ERARBETISRAKIERIET L

and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way CREAARKEEESE -
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial

assets that require delivery of assets within the time

frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method ERFIFE

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including other non-current assets, trade
and other receivables, bills receivables and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE s

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent
to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Investments in debt instruments may be reclassified out
of available-for-sale financial assets to held-to-maturity
investments if the entity has the intent and ability to hold
the assets to maturity. The financial assets reclassified
from available-for-sale financial assets should be
reclassified at its fair value at the date of reclassification.
Any gain or loss already recognised in profit or loss
should not be reversed. The fair value of the financial asset
on the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised
cost.
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110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Any previous gain or loss on available-for-sale financial
assets that have been recognised in other comprehensive
income should be amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
method in the case of instrument with a fixed maturity.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include significant financial difficulty
of the issuer or counterparty; or breach of contract,
such as default or delinquency in interest and principal
payments; or it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the
disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE )

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss is recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEeiHBE s

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the
impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company to acquire a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments for a
fixed amount of any currency are equity instruments if the
Company offers the warrants pro rata to all of its existing
owners of the same class of its own-derivative equity
instruments. Warrants are recorded in warrant reserve
at fair value on initial recognition. When the warrants are
exercised, the portion of subscription money with the
nominal value of the ordinary shares is recognised to the
share capital account while any excess of the subscription
money over the nominal value of ordinary shares is
taken into the share premium account. Upon exercise
of warrants, the relevant portion of warrant reserve is
reallocated to share premium account.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial liabilities at FVTPL comprise
financial liabilities held for trading. A financial liability is
classified as held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bills payables and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify to hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading and are classified as current
assets or current liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ITE€HHZE#)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SRITE#E)
Hedge accounting Yhesk

The Group uses derivative financial instruments (i.e.
interest rate swap contracts) to hedge its exposure
against changes in interest rate on bank borrowings.
At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group
documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument that is used
in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting
changes in cash flows of the hedged item.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in hedging reserve. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as other gains or losses.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (hedging reserve)
are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the
hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, in the same
line of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group
revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or
loss recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IE&HEX®)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) eMIAE)
Derecognition HIBRTERR

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted on or before 7 November
2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested
before 1 January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in profit or loss in respect of the value of
option granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal
value of the shares is recorded as share premium.
Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their
exercise date are deleted from the register of outstanding
options.

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested on or after 1 January 2005

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share Options Granted to Directors and Employees of the
Group

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in share
options reserve.

At end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss, such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In applying the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in note 3, management has made the following
estimation that have significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the next financial year.

The estimates and underlying assumption are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if revision affects both current
and future period.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in consolidated financial statements.

Legal claim

The Group is involved in legal proceeding as disclosed
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
Management has evaluated and assessed the claims
made against the Group based on legal advice received
and information presently available and are of the view
that the Group has grounds to successfully contest the
claims. Accordingly, no provision and accrual are made in
the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

The directors have reviewed the Group’s held-to-maturity
investments in the light of its capital maintenance and
liquidity requirements and have confirmed the Group’s
positive intention and ability to hold those assets to
maturity. The carrying amount of the held-to-maturity
investments is approximately HK$972,883,000 (2010: nil).
Details of these assets are set out in note 23.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. At 31
December 2011, the carrying amount of goodwill arising is
HK$2,288,149,000 (2010: HK$2,288,149,000). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note
21.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Income taxes

At 31 December 2011, deferred tax assets of (i)
approximately HK$12,522,000 (2010: HK$12,522,000)
in relation to unused tax losses; (ii) approximately
HK$2,270,000 (2010: HK$5,580,000) in relation to loss
on cash flow hedge recognised in hedging reserve; and (iii)
approximately HK$19,933,000 (2010: HK$17,023,000)
in relation to write-down of inventories have been
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of HK$361,863,000 (2010:
HK$305,289,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future assessable
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less than expected, a material reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal
takes place.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of properties, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual value and related depreciation
charges for its properties, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of properties, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are expected
to be shorter than previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Change in these
estimations may have a material impact on the results
of the Group. The Group tests whether properties,
plant and equipment have suffered any impairment in
accordance with its accounting policy whenever there is
any indication that the assets may have been impaired. If
the management’s expectation is different, it will impact
on the carrying value and write downs of properties, plant
and equipment in the periods in which such estimate is
changed. At as 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010, the carrying amounts of properties, plant and
equipment are approximately HK$18,357,984,000 and
HK$17,574,362,000, respectively (net of impairment loss
of HK$136,738,000 (2010: nil)).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2011
and 31 December 2010, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables are approximately HK$5,203,420,000 and
HK$5,159,244,000, respectively (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$559,306,000 and HK$502,232,000
as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010,
respectively).

Estimated impairment losses due to flooding and
estimated insurance claim

During the current year, a principal subsidiary of the
Group which carried out the Group’s PCB manufacturing
operation in Thailand had made an impairment charge
on property, plant and equipment and inventories due
to impact of the severe flooding in October 2011 are
described in note 13.

The losses on the damaged property, plant and
equipment, and the inventories were covered by the
comprehensive insurance plan of the Group. However,
the Group is now claiming losses including the accidental
physical damage of the property, plant and equipment,
inventories and loss on business interruption. The amount
of the ultimate insurance claims to be claimed back
will be in accordance with the terms and provision of
insurance policies based on the replacement cost basis
of the damaged property, plant and equipment, and
the ascertainment of ultimate loss on gross profits and
additional increased cost of working during the indemnity
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #&
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated impairment losses due to flooding and
estimated insurance claim (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, claim
compensation amounting to HK$62,680,000 has been
recognised and included in other income as disclosed in
note 9 to the financial statement.

In making their judgment, the directors considered
the detailed recognition criteria as set out in HKAS 37
“Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets”
and, in particular, whether it has become virtually certain
that an inflow of economic benefits to the Company will
arise.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each
class of capital. In the opinion of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. E@MTA
6a. Categories of financial instruments 6a. SEITEAER
2011 2010
—F——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Finance assets BgEE
Loans and receivables (including ERNERER(BIERS
cash and cash equivalents) MIRE&EEEE)
— trade and other receivables —E 5 MHE M EER R 5,441,796 5,687,262
- bills receivables —rENZE 2,120,683 1,032,724
- bank balances and cash —RITEHB LIRS 4,437,442 5,143,658
11,999,921 12,663,644
Held-to-maturity investments BEEEHKRE 972,883 -
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 4,285,141 2,299,936
Financial liabilities B®Ras
Fair value through profit or loss BATEFAER
(FVTPL) CEsaE
— derivative financial instruments — TSI A
(held for trading) (HIEE=E) = 33,493
Derivative financial instruments in ~ {F& 8T et #&
designated hedge accounting ZUTEeMIA
relationships 13,761 64,332
Amortised cost BB
— trade and other payables —E 5 REAMEMNRR 3,866,352 3,297,220
- bills payables — B 1,001,947 1,163,337
— bank borrowings —RITIEE 18,174,570 12,328,108

23,042,869 16,788,665
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR M s
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. LRI ER%)
6b. Financial risk management objectives 6b. BHHEEKREEBEZERBER
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, bank
balances and cash, held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale investments, derivatives financial
instruments, trade and other payables, bills
payables and bank borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

AEBZIESRTABEESR
Hib IR - BRI - IR1THE
HERE  FHAZIMKRE  AH
HERE  TESRMIA BHK
Hib R - BN RIERIRTTE
B - 2SR T ANFBENSME
T 2SR TAEBZERE
EmERR(EERR - M EER
EEABERRR) - FEERBRER
BE SRR o TICEF R
ZERBRZBEK - EREERNE
EZERR - AR RENE MM
REVEE 216 °

Market risk % &
Currency risk B

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately
26.6% (2010: 28.9%) of the Group’s sales
are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity making
the sale, whilst almost 25.2% (2010: 35.5%) of
purchases are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the relevant group
entity.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in respective notes. The management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency risk should the need arise.

AR EVETHIE A T AN T8
ERIRE - SAEBEEEINER
B o NEEL26.6%( T —TF :
28.9% ) K HE AFE B BB IREE
BEBIE » ME25.2% (- T —T4F ¢
35.5% ) HYEREE LASFABRA SR E E BE L)
BEEMTIE o
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BERRERERE 2 REERHER
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B YN AREHERE—TYH
FRONE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against
foreign currencies of United States dollars (“US$”),
Euro and Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"). The following table details the
Group’s sensitivity to a 10% (2010: 10%) increase
and decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign
currencies. 10% (2010: 10%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 10% (2010: 10%) change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, bank
balances, held-to-maturity investments, available-
for-sale investments, trade and other payables,
bills payables as well as bank borrowings. A
positive number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit for the year where RMB strengthen
10% (2010: 10%) against the relevant currency.
For a 10% (2010: 10%) weakening of RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %n4& B F& R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 —FE——F+ - A=+—HIFFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

6.

EMI Rz

MHEREERBERBERE)

Market risk (continued) SRR E)
Currency risk (continued) B (&)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BREE ST (E)
2011 2010
—E——F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FHET
uss$ E (151,640) (168,565)
HK$ BT 752,141 364,919
Euro BT (5,524) (1,940)
JPY A 1,984 7,072
Interest rate risk FFE 7 e

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings
(see Note 33 for details of these borrowings). In
relation to these variable-rate borrowings, the
Group aims at keeping certain proportion of its
borrowings at fixed rates. In order to achieve this
result, the Group had entered into interest rate
swap contracts to hedge against its exposure
to potential variability of cash flows arising from
changes in variable interest rates (see note 31 for
details). The management continuously monitors
interest rate fluctuation and will consider further
hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

REERZBRITEEAERESR
ENER ﬁ(% ZEEHBRWE

33)  MRFZEBEME - A&
I@UJH%%T:F*B“F”‘?”HJW%H%
TE o AEBWLA R - RNEEETF]
EIHEIAK) - LAEHREE S #Em
EEZRSREBCEEZE (FER
Mi5E31) « BEERE BT XK
B WEREBERERZR#E—IH
SRR R E R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EMIAm®

6b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

6b.

MHEREERBERBERE)

Market risk (continued) SRR E)
Interest rate risk (continued) FlF e (48)

The Group’s exposures to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see
Note 33 for details of these borrowings). The
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider repay the fixed-rate bank
borrowings when significant interest rate exposure
is anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate in Hong Kong dollars (“HIBOR?”) arising from
the Group’s bank borrowings.

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
balances. The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk which relates to its fixed-rate
short-term bank deposits. The Directors consider
the Group’s exposure of the short-term bank
deposits to interest rate risk is not significant as
interest bearing bank balances are within short
maturity period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR M s
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SEIR®
6b. Financial risk management objectives 6b. BIBEAKEEEERBE®)
and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) TG R (Z)
Interest rate risk (continued) FlF e (48)
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for interest bearing bank balances and bank
borrowings as well as interest rate swap contracts
at the end of the reporting period. The analyses
are prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points (2010: 50 basis points) increase or 10
basis points (2010: 10 basis points) decrease are
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable
possible change in interest rates.

If HIBOR interest rate had been 50 basis points
(2010: 50 basis points) higher and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2011 would increase by
HK$16,640,000 and decrease by
HK$62,836,000 and HK$3,729,000 (2010:
increase by HK$1,065,000 and decrease
by HK$43,378,000 and nil) as a result of
the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its interest bearing bank balances and
variable-rate borrowings and change in
fair value of available-for-sale listed bond
securities with fixed coupon interest
respectively; and

AT SRR E ST IR IR 3R B A R
B RMBRITARR - RITEERA
K MA NN REARETE - HE
ZEDIE - RN IRERARER
EARIHMZEMTANEFELD
REIH - BOMEEF(—F—FF :
SOfERE ) Z Ik 10MER (=T —
TEA0ERTFIRLRATERE
BASERABMNEREBRBREMA
MEEREHN RSP EEEIN
A o

S4B (TR £ 47 B FIHF501HE
F(ZZ—24 : 0BT + TH
AEMEETS  A%E

. HRANEE AT BRI
HEHREZEREEZFER
& AR S EE B HE
AREE ETEFESFZ
ATFEZYHER  HEZ
Z——&+Z-A=+—H
LEFE 2B BE T 5 Bl
# hn 16,640,000 78 T K
B 4> 62,836,000 7 T &
3,729,000 L (= E — &
£+ 301,065,000 7T &
B 143,378,000 L R ) ;
&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

6.

EMI Rz

6b.

MBEREERRREK E)

Market risk (continued) ik 1 HE D)

Interest rate risk (continued) FlF e (48)

Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRED (&)

. the debit side hedging reserve would . B FEEE R

decrease by HK$3,773,000 (2010:
decrease by HK$11,669,000) mainly as
a result of the changes in the fair value of
interest rate swap contracts; and

3,773,000 L (= — =
£ 4 11,669,000 76
JL) 0 EEEAEF R
BHNTEES K&

° investment valuation reserve for the year . HE2_Z2Z—ZF+=A
ended 31 December 2010 would decrease =t+—HIEFERESHHE
by HK$25,422,000 (2011: nil) as a result 8 $0BR 4925,422,00078 7T
of the change in the fair value of available- (ZE——%F :8\)  Eh2
for-sale listed bond securities with fixed EEETEESAFMAHEE E

coupon interest.

If HIBOR interest rate had been 10 basis points
(2010: 10 basis points) lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s:

o post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2011 would decrease
by HK$3,328,000 and increase by
HK$12,567,000 and HK$756,000 (2010:
decrease by HK$213,000 and increase
by HK$8,676,000 and nil) as a result of
the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its interest bearing bank balances and
variable-rate borrowings and change in
fair value of available-for-sale listed bond
securities with fixed coupon interest
respectively; and

° the debit side hedging reserve would
increase by HK$756,000 (2010: increase
by HK$2,334,000) mainly as a result of the
changes in the fair value of interest rate
swap contracts; and

o investment valuation reserve for the year
ended 31 December 2010 would increase
by HK$2,631,000 (2011: nil) as a result of
the change in the fair value of available-
for-sale listed bond securities with fixed
coupon interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR M s
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. tRMIEA%)
6b. Financial risk management objectives 6b. HERREEBEEEREEK#)
and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) SRR E)
Equity price risk RANEIE 2

The Group’s exposure to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles and the Group has appointed a special
team to monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale
equity listed securities, which have been impaired
at the end of the reporting period, had been 10%
higher (2010: 10% higher):

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2011 would increase by
approximately HK$12,374,000 (2010: nil)
as a result of the change in fair value of
these available-for-sale investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale
equity listed securities, which have been impaired
at the end of the reporting period, had been 10%
lower (2010: 10% lower):

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2011 would decrease by
approximately HK$12,374,000 (2010: nil)
as a result of the change in fair value of
these available-for-sale investments.

REEEIRE R LW RANE S &
ERAERRR - BEEBHEIEET
ARk IEREHE BRILERE
REBMZE— LR BB EEER
R - BEEEBEELRREMR o

BB T
FXNOGBEA T - TR AR
R4 SR B R B AR B AR R
M -

MR RESFHERERSEREZ
A ERA LT ES 2 BN
10% (= Z—Z4F  #HN10%)

e HE-FT-——%+ZAH
=+ —BIEFEZRBIER
) #518 hN#912,374,00074 7T
(ZZ2—ZF: 8|) RAR
ZEAHHERENTEE
& o

MR RESMERE B REZA
HEERALTES ZERRD
10%(=ZF—ZF  JHP10%) ¢

° Bz ——F+=A
=T -HIEFEZREES
iR > #912,374,0007 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl &SRR M aE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZF - F——%F+ - H=+—HI- F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EWMIAmw

6b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

6b.

MHEREERBERBRZ)

Market risk (continued) TSR (E)
Equity price risk (continued) RAEE A ()
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRED ()

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale
equity listed securities, which have not been
impaired at the end of the reporting period, had
been 10% higher (2010: 10% higher):

° investment revaluation reserve would credit
by approximately HK$373,790,000 (2010:
credit by HK$171,534,000) as a result of
the change in fair value of these available-

W F ¥R & AR A RE B I RRIEZ
AT ERA E &S 2 BB
10%(=F—F4F : HEHN10%) :

. BEEHBHEBT AL
373,790,000 L ( =& —
T4 1 171,534,00087T)
RERZEAHEERER

for-sale investments. EHES -
If the prices of the respective available-for-sale M mE HBERE B ST ERE

equity listed securities, which have not been
impaired at the end of the reporting period, had
been 10% lower (2010: 10% lower):

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2011 would decrease by
approximately HK$87,212,000 (2010: nil)
as a result of the change in fair value of
these available-for-sale investments; and

o investment revaluation reserve
would decrease by approximately
HK$286,578,000 (2010: HK$171,534,000)
as a result of the change in fair value of

ZAMEHERA T RS2 BRI
DPI0%(ZF—ZTF  H10%) ¢

. Hz-_ZT——F+=A
=+ —HIFEZBRI%ES
R 4987,212,00078 7T
(ZZ—ZF : &) FRA
ZEHLEREATEE
£/

. REEHBEBRLH
286,578,000 7T ( — & —
T4E 171,534,000 7T) -
REAZSAHEEERER

these available-for-sale investments. HEEE) -
Commodity price risk A mERRER

The Group was exposed to commodity price
risk from the outstanding commodity forward
contracts at the end of the reporting period. The
management consider that the price risks of these
derivative instruments are not significant to the
Group.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EWMIAmw

6b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations at 31 December 2011 and 2010
in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has delegated the members of the
board of directors responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank
balances exposed is considered minimal as such
amounts are placed with various banks with
good credit ratings and there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk on trade and other receivables with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers. However, the Group is exposed
to the concentration on geographic segment of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). At 31
December 2011, approximately 90% (2010: 86%)
of the Group’s trade and other receivables are
arising from counterparties whose principal place
of operation is the PRC.

6b.

MHEREERBERBERZ)

FERR
HMRGHR_E——FR_T—F
FHZA=+—BREBTRS
BB ERMBEEZAE - A
AEBBEAZZ&EREERBAR
FAMBRARFEZEEERE
B - RBEERREERE &1
BoZkESENEREHFIEE
REE - EEELREMERER -
VARECR BRERBR A $5 hp U [ 780 A R A
Z MBI © IS RERE R
B AEBEEHEZEMERE SER
Z AR EISFE - ARERBL T AT UL B
TRFHEAMEER - st
5 EERR AEEZEERR
ERIEREE -

AR TR SRAT R B O T MR
ERIBRTZET WREHE
YEEARBUTRE  AEEE
K EEER -

REBE S K H IR &=
EEFZEERR  BEARKRES
BEXPHREEHE - Rif - A&
EASME S PERERE AR
ME(TFREDzZER - RZT——
F+ZA=+—8  KEBE40%
(ZZE—T4F :86%) 28 5 M EM
FE U BE 7R E o B S B A
ZRPEHEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EMIAm®

6b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

At 31 December 2011, the Group has exposed
to concentration risk its available-for-sale
investments with 76.7% of the total available-
for-sale investments concentrated in two listed
equity issued by two listed issuers in Hong Kong.
The Directors considered that the credit risk on
these investments are limited as the listed equity
were issued by issuers listed in Hong Kong with
strong financial background and assigned with
high credit ratings by international credit rating
agencies. At 31 December 2010, the Group has
exposed to concentration risk its available-for-
sale investments with 17.5% of the total available-
for-sale investments concentrated in three listed
bond securities issued by two listed issuers in
Hong Kong. The Group’s available-for-sale listed
bond securities are exposed to credit risk due
to the default of repayment by the bond issuers.
However, the Directors considered that the credit
risk on these investments are limited as the listed
bonds were secured by certain assets of the
issuers and issued by issuers in Hong Kong with
strong financial background and assigned with
high credit ratings by international credit rating
agencies.

At 31 December 2011, the Group has
concentration risk on its held-to-maturity
investments with 65% (2010: nil) of the total
held-to-maturity investments concentrated in a
listed bond securities issued by a listed issuers in

6b.

MHEREEEBERBEZ)

FERKE)
R-T——F+-_A=+—H K
EEMATHEEREEEFRR
AR B ERERED  76.7%E
FEMEEES E T ANM
e c EERA - RERE
WEERERBRAER - REER LT
REITAERB LT REGEEY
7 ERREEFILARESTSE
EEFH R _ZT—ZTF+_-A
=+—8  AEENITHLERE
EEPRR  EAHEERERE
FoAT SR EREMBER S LW
METANZRETELEFES -
REBMHAHEE FHESFFHFE
REERR  REREHEITAL
REI - R BEERE - %ZSFK
EMEERBER  REER LT
EHUBITABS TEEFEER - m
B BOANEESBBEEY N
BB EETAMELSTSEREE
A o

RZF——F+ZA=+—H XK
SENBAEIHRARRTR
% ERAEIHRARET
B5%(—F—ZF  B)EHRE—F
EEB EMOEITAN R ENE

Hong Kong. The Group’s held-to-maturity listed FEF ARBENF/ERIH LT
bond securities are exposed to credit risk due EFEFEAZEERR  RASE
to the default of repayment by the bond issuers. FETANERER - A » EFR

However, the Directors considered that the credit
risk on these investments are limited as the listed
bonds were secured by certain assets of the
issuers and issued by issuers in Hong Kong with
strong financial background and assigned with
high credit ratings by international credit rating
agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants during the year.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. At 31 December
2011, the Group has available unutilised
bank borrowings facilities of approximately
HK$11,136,273,000 (2010: HK$11,142,634,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting
period.

=)
ma

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

PR ERAR Y RE

6. E@mIAE

6b.

MHEREERBERBERE)

rEBREERDESRER - BE
RehReFEEBOKFE - §E
HREREEBRBBEAKFE - L
B AKEMER - TRERESR
BERBOTE - RFR - ERER
ZIRTTEENERBR - BRTA
B R -

REBEKBRITEEBIEATDAS
MEBRR R_F——F+=
A=+—0  REEKREHRT
EEXE#A11,136,273,0007%8 7T
(ZZ—FF : 11,142,634,0007%

o

N

TRALAEESRTITERN KA
BEHNAORHBER - REAEEEA
NUBRERFZ AN RES
MEBUIABIERE - AWM= - M5
REFEFIERZRITER - T
RITREAIRERBTEABEN
—FEFARPIHARHEERE - X
ITER B REREIHE 2 ER
HEEERIMA -

RBE/MNERASRERE -
MERBTE  FFRSBREBE
HREERE B Z M ERRETE -
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

In addition, the following table details the Group’s
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial
instruments. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
(inflows) outflows on derivative instruments that
settle on a net basis. The liquidity analysis for
the Group’s derivative financial instruments are
prepared based on the contractual maturities as
the management consider that the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the
timing of the cash flows of derivatives.

Weighted

6.

average  Ondemand
effective  orless than

interest rate 3 months

nETs  EERY
ERAZE ZEAR

BB ERAR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZF - F——%F+ - H=+—HI- F/Z

TRMI B
6b. HKEAKREEEERBEE®)
REBESRER(E)
REEE RFIFRERE
gboh - TREFRASEST A SR T
B2 RBEEDN - MBZKRE -
FIRiBE BAFREENITEER
TAZFREORSORA) R
FE o AEETESR I A ZRE
BeoMUEHNINBERERE
% RAEREEERAS LTS
AYTHITETIARSRERAR
Over Over Over
3 months 1 year 2years
but not but not but not Total
morethan  morethan  more than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2years 5years  cash flows amount

ZEANE  -ERE WEML Fi%
BFER  BTEAE ATER  RiRE
=4 (3 ik 48 RAEE

% HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Thn T Thn Thn Thn Thn
At 31 December 2011 R-E—-&
tZA=t-A
Non-derivative financial HTERKEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B REMERED - 3,866,352 - - - 3,866,352 3,866,352
Bills payables EREE - 1,001,947 - - - 1,001,947 1,001,947
Bark borrowings HRE
- fixed rate -E8 6.1 265,860 321,251 69,429 70,717 121,257 689,947
- variable rate -8 1.7 1,557,714 3475460 2,354,418 10,000,050 17,387,642 16,617,956
- variable rate hedged ~ZE(UFEES
by interest rate Swap A1)
contracts 27 218,129 663,163 - - 881,292 866,667
6,910,002 4450874 2423847 10,070,767 23,864,490 23,042,869
Derivatives - net settlement  fi4 T 2~ £EFE
Interest rate swap contracts  F|RIgEIAH - 5,868 8,316 - - 14,184 13,761
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 454 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z - F——%F+ = H=+—HI-F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EWMT R
6b. Financial risk management objectives 6b. HERBREEBEEEREEK#)
and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESERE)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) TEE 2 R EE R (&)
Over Over Over
Weighted 3months 1 year 2 years
average  On demand but not but not but not Total
effective  orless than more than more than more than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2 years Syears  cashflows amount

SEARE  —EHRE mENE E3iE]

TnE®sE RErd  EMEE BAEA  BNEE ReRE
ERAE =[AARA —F M ik g FaE
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
T TEL T TEL TETL TEL

At 31 December 2010 RZE-2F

tzR=t-H
Non-derivative financial ~ 3{74BHHEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BB REMERE - 1768271 1,538,949 - - 3201220 3297220
Bllls payables ERER - 1,163,337 - - - 1163337 1,163,337
Bank borrowings HiTfEE
- fixed rate -8 42 574,447 68,069 174,898 - 817,414 760,629
- Variable rate -8 1.3 1167509 2182908 2594629 2898681 8793777 8216579
- variable rate hedged -ZE(HEES
by interest rate swap ahEm)
contracts 26 390,465 1,215,668 1,909,817 - 3515950 3,350,900
5054079 4955594 4679344 2898681 17,587,698 16,788,665
Derivatives - net fiEIE-£8
settlement F8
Commodty forward contracts  ERiEEA - 29,429 8,499 - - 37,928 33,493
Interest rate swap contracts ~ F|Z g A4 - 6,012 9470 52,095 - 67,577 64,332

35,441 17,969 52,0% - 105505 97,825
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

6¢C.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 3
months” time band in the above maturity analysis.
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
these bank loans amounted to HK$306,463,000
and HK$420,769,000, respectively. Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The Directors
believe that such bank loans will be repaid three
(2010: four) years after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
At that time, the aggregate principal and interest
cash outflows will amount to HK$321,086,000.

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively; and

° the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as input; and
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BB ERAR P RE

6. E@mIAE

6b.

6¢C.

MHEREERBERBERE)

REESRE(Z)

M RERERBERZBRITER
R EME AR AMRER
“EARIZHE - RZT——F
+ZA=F+—HBRZZE—ZTF+=
A=+—R  ZFRITERZ IR
K & 48 58 5 511306,463,0007% 7T
12.420,769,000 7T © & &2 A&
BBk - EFMEE - RIT
TRAREITEHIERE  ERkEE
ERIEER - EEMEE - REE
RpEMH AT ERBE - Z
ZROEFERRERERE=
F(ZE—ZTF -MOF)EE-E
W R @ERFNERSREES
321,086,000/ 7T, ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR M s
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. £RIT A%
6¢c. Fair value (continued) 6c. DFEEE)

° the fair value of derivative financial
instruments are measured at fair value
by reference to the valuation provided by
counterparty financial institutions for these
instruments.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels
1 to 8 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active market for identical assets or
liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the assets or liabilities
that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

. TEERTARFERAF
BHif 8 2EXS5HT 8K
BRZETARKNGE -

RRAREBRRR - AR AR
WERB BB IRER 2 M EE R
BEZREAEREAFERE -

REAUBRRABEZAVE
HE

TRRBUERAFEIEN SRR
HEZSRIAZHI - KBE
ez AFESRAEREES

-

« ER UBIEERAR
EERTISHECRER)
P8 AT & -

. BTR BEGHROR
B BAERAEEE
(EP{EHR) Sk 32 (B B3 (RIS
12 ) BB {3 A5 IR
P82 ATETE -

. BT ARBEERN 8
FERARET RTS8
B TR ME 2 HE)
BEMEELAE  HHA
FEHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl &SRR M aE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZF - F——%F+ - H=+—HI- F/Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. E@MITHE%)
6¢c. Fair value (continued) 6c. ATEE)

Fair value measurements recognised in the A " U
consolidated statement of financial position REBMBRRRBEZAFE

(continued) TEE)

At 31 December 2011
R—ZE——F+=-H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 g8 =41 st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
F#ExT FHET FHET FHExT

Available-for-sale financial ~ AJ{t & KB EE

assets
— Listed equity securites - _FHIRAE S 3,861,639 - - 3,861,639
- Listed bond securites - &S &S - - 271,635 271,635
3,861,639 - 271,635 4,133,274
Derivative instruments HEETEhest
in designated hedge BMEZITETA
accounting relationships - 13,761 - 13,761

At 31 December 2010
RZZE—ZF+=-RA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—4 £ F=4 HBET
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT FHT FHT BT

Available-for-sale financial At Y EB S EE

assets
- Listed equity securites  ~ — ERAZE A 1,715,337 - - 1,715,337
— Listed bond securities — FTfEAEES - - 403,191 403,191

1,715,337 - 403,191 2,118,528

Financial liabilities at FVTPL &2 &zt AlBz5 2

Derivative financial AR
instruments PTESRMT A - 33,493 - 33,493
Derivative instruments (SRR hak AN

in designated hedge BRZHTETA

accounting relationships - 64,332 - 64,332
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 3 BHE-_ZT—ZTFER-T——F1+=
during the years ended 31 December 2010 and B=+—BI&FE £ E5%
2011.

B RAMEETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 454 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 —FE——F+ - A=+—HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. %ﬁﬂlﬂ(f
6c. Fair value (continued) "\SF{E(/F’)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

REEHBRREXERZATVE

consolidated statement of financial position STEE)
(continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of FEoHHBEEE N FEGEZ
financial assets E303
Listed
bond securities
EmESES
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZTF—H—H =
Purchases A 406,664
Loss recognised in other REAM 2N ERER BB
comprehensive income (3,473)
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 R-ZE—ZF+_A=+—HK
—E——F—A—H 403,191
Reclassification to held-to-maturity ENMOBERAZREBKRE
investments (79,064)
Gain recognised in other EAbh 2 E =R 2 W
comprehensive income 2,108
Disposal HE (54,600)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+_A=+—H 271,635

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain
of HK$2,108,000 (2010: loss of HK$3,473,000)
relating to listed bond securities held at the end of
the reporting period and is reported as changes of

Hth 2T RN RE B RE
HASE EMEAESE B2 W
2,108,000 (=T —ZF : [HE
3,473,000 7TT) * EMAEE_ZT

investment revaluation reserve for the year ended
31 December 2011.

——F T A=t HLEFEZER
BEEHHHED -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

7. REVENUE 7. HEEER
Revenue represents the net amounts received and SEEEAEENSTNEHIINEFHEE
receivable by the Group from the sale of goods and ERORII - RENEERBEHRE) - 2

services rendered to outside customers, net of discounts, HARTE 2 it K FE U & 58 F BB DA M B U K&

returns and sales related taxes, and rental income RS WA - 2T ¢

received and receivable, for each year and is analysed as
follows:

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT BT

Sale of laminates HEBEINAER 11,178,410 10,559,428
Sale of chemicals HELCTER 16,268,851 13,701,813
Sale of PCBs e E R AR B AR 8,116,138 8,704,865
Rental income Be A 236,874 125,679
Others (Note) Al (P 5T) 758,799 799,737

36,559,072 33,891,522

Note:  Amount included service income of HK$62,745,000 (2010: Mz : HEZZ-——F+ZA=+—HILFE 8

FERTS A 62,745,000 0 (=T — T4 -
50,753,00078 7T ) bA K 565 7R &% BE RE R 7 % B
% I 696,054,000/8 T ( ZF — T4 ¢
748,984,000/ 7T) °

HK$50,753,000) and sale of LCDs and magnetic products of
HK$696,054,000 (2010: HK$748,984,000) for the year end
31 December 2011.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”)
in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess
their performance. Specifically, the Group’s operating
segments under HKFRS 8 were organised into five main
operating divisions — (i) manufacture and sale of laminates,
(iiy manufacture and sale of printed circuit boards (“PCBs”),
(iii) manufacture and sale of chemicals, (iv) property
development and investment (“Properties”) and (v) others
(including manufacture and sale of liquid crystal displays
and magnetic products).

Under HKFRS 8, reported segment information is based
on internal management reporting information that is
regularly reviewed by the executive directors, being the
CODM of the Group. The measurement policies the
Group used for segment reporting under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its HKFRS financial statements.
The executive directors assess segment profit or loss
using a measure of operating profit whereby certain items
are not included in arriving at the segment results of the
operating segments (share of results of associates and
jointly controlled entities, impairment loss on available-for-
sale investments, gain or loss on disposal of available-for-
sale investments, gain on disposal of a subsidiary, income
tax expenses, finance costs, share-based payments and
unallocated corporate income and expenses).

=)
ma

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z
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PR ERAR Y RE
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EREMBHRRENFERET - AREH
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KR EEMER - (i) BL1E K 34 & EDRI AR B
IR(TENRIAREEAR 1)~ (i) B3 R S8 &0 T
m o (VIRBERERE (WX RVELD
(BREBENHERSBRTF REEE

an) °

RIBBABPISRRERZESS - 2HRNHE
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FORED AWM ERR - BEARE
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VARR & M| 2 5 8 2R FF il 0 5B 2 m F s
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DB R BN (EIE S N R R A RE
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Al ) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to

market prices.

R —FFHR BELCIER
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER ()
(a) Segment revenues and results (@) DHBRERFES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue UTRERRSHE D 2 AEEE
and results by reportable segments: ESEYES i
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others  Eliminations Consolidated
BRER g ) o &8
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TA7 TAn T4 T TAT
Vear ended BEog—-f
31 Deoember 2011 TZRZT-ALER
Segment revente Bk
External sales HEER 11,178,410 236,874 758,799 - 36,559,072
Iner-segment sdles AR HER 2,661,214 - 11530 (3,480,597) -
Total Ait 13,839,624 236,874 710329 (3480,597) 36,559,072
Resul |
Segment resut NEE 1,724,292 503,121 50,532 4,251,064
(Gal on disposal of LEREAT YA
asubsidiary 34,592
Impairment oss on avalale- THHEREL
for-sele Investments fiREE (83,878)
Loss on disposal of avlable- LETHIERE,
for-sale vestments fig (30,161)
Share-based payments HRBFAHR (236,099)
Unallocated corporate FARZ DA
income 194,591
Unallocated corporate FARZATRE
£ADENSES (302,339)
Finence costs EEi (361,881)
Share of results of associaes [N 24823
Share of results of jointly controled ElaEsEREE
entlies (1,075)
Proft before taxaton B 3,719,637
Income tax expense HERRR (513,061)
Proftfor the year TERRR 3,206,576

SHEZ HERHBETEEH -
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PR ERAR Y RE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER (#)
(@) Segment revenues and results (continued) (@) IR BEREEE)
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others  Eliminations - Consolidated
ERER HRSER  tIER S it Faf e
HK§'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$'000
Th T T Thr Thr T T
Year ended HEZT-3FTZ
31 December 2010 =+-ALLFE
Segment revenue Aibla
External sales HINHER 10,659,428 8,704,865 13701813 125679 799,787 - 33,891,522
Inter-segment sales PPRIHER 2,948,161 - 763699 - 1679 (3,728,656) -
Total Air 13507,589 8,704,865 14465512 125679 816533 (3,728,656) 33,891,522
Result 5
Segment resul nE%EE 2612545 1080157 1296569 165100 64,658 5,219,029
Gain on disposal of avallable- HETREEREL
for-sale investments ey 296,012
Unallocated comporate income— RAELZAFIA 32,457
Unallocated corporate expenses 2Bz AR (270,958)
Finance costs BERA (304,040)
Share of results of associates EBERTZE 200873
Share of resuls of jointly EEAREHER
controlled entiies E (7,085)
Profit before taxation BEaas 5,166,338
Income tax expense SRR (516,221)
Profit for the year TEEER 4,650,117

Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to

market prices.

S WEE NS E TR -

Annual Report 2011 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 145

A RECTRE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl &SRR M aE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZE - F——%F+ - =+—HI - F/Z

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. PEHER &)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) SBEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets AT BB Ry D 2 NEBE
and liabilities by reportable segments: ERBEZON :

Laminates PCBs Chemicals Properties Others ~ Consolidated
BRER  ORSER {tIER hE 4 &8
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK§ 000 HK$000 HK$000
Tin Tén Tin Tin Tén Tén
At 31 December 2011 WE-—Ff2F=+-8
Assels (413
Segment assels AEE 16514200 1157740 10691916 12799604 50804 52082413
Avaleble-or-sale nvestments THHERE 4,285,141
Held-to-maturty investments REZHERE 972,083
Investments n associaes RERRTZRE 146,359
Unalocated corporate assets FORZDAEE
-Bark bances and cash BB 1,381,531
- Deferted tax assets -EHEEE 14,342
- Taxaton recoverable ~TRE7HE 42580
-Others -Ef 963,918
Consolcated tofal assets GREEEE 60,459,227
Libies af
Segment libities ek (1,826,450) (2,282,459) (1,496,122) (1,750,374) (22,560) (7,321,965)
Unallocated comporats liblties L WANGEL
- Bank borowings -Hi1E (18;174,570)
- Taxafion payable -[EaHE (660,336)
- Defemed tax lbites -EltHEaR (167,194)
- Otfers -Eft (134,576)
Consolicated ot abifes hhafaE (26,464.841)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 —FE——F+ - A =+—HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. AoIERE)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) b) SBEEREGES)
Others  Consolidated

Laminates PCBs Chemicals Properties
BAER  DRISHR [cTER S
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

Thn Thn TAT Thn

LU k8
HEGO0  HKSm
AL ThL

At Decermber 2010 R-E-Fr-f=1-R
Assels EE
Segment assets AHEE 15,622,590 11144818 11,090,458 6,989,386
Avaliblefor-sale vestments THHERE
Iterestsnjointly convoled entfes  HA R4 B 7 5
Investments n associaes ABRRFZRE
Unalocated corporate assets FARCLAEE
- Bank belances and cash -Hiiskae
- Defred tax assefs -fithEEE
- Tavalion recoveratle -ThEfE
- Others -kt
Consoldated fofa assefs GEAESE
Liabies 8
Soqment s 5986 RTINS RO (0134

Unalocated corporate fabiies F I

- Bank borrowings ~FfRE

- Taxgtion payatle il

- Defered tax febiifes -EiEREaE

-Others £t
Consolicated ot ablfes fFaAREE

460,767 45,308019
2,299,936

1075

564,447

246973
5549
4693

556,795

51267210

(9119 3B

(12328108
591,764
7347
(550

(19684875)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER (#)
(c) Other information (c) EHuEH
Laminates PCBs Chemicals Properties Others ~ Consolidated
ERER  ORGER {tIER h 0 48
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000
TEn Tén Thn TEn Tén THL
Vear ended 81 December 2011 ZTE--E+2fE1-f
LLER
Capita aciions ERER 408,340 918,697 1,494,887 5,287,605 0145 8149674
Depreciaton and amortiseion frEREY 793285 54144 To1,14 1397 %765 2134650
Impaiment loss recognisedl inrespect  StE B RERENEED
of trade and other recelvables HEEE 5,882 49,491 556 - 366 56,315
Release of prepaid eesepayments A EETERT 8331 459 1219 - - 24,146
Impairment loss recognised in % - BERRERLL
respect of popertes, pantend~ [BEE
equipment - 136,738 - - - 136,738
Impaiment loss recogpised n HFEHI BER
respect of inventories - 25,042 - - - 25,42
(Gain) loss on disposal and wite o of  HERMENE - BRRZEZ
propertes, plnt and equipment (k) (36%2) 17,928 (191) - 25 14310
Loss on disposal of LETHIERE/BR
avalable-for-sale investments - - - - 30,161 30,161
Share:based payments WRhFAXH - § - - 236,091 26,09
Laminates PCBs Chemicals Properties Oters— Consolidated
BOER  ORlsER {LIER U i 8
HKS000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK§1000 HK$000 HKS 000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Tin
Year ended 31 Decsrmber 2010 BECE-ZETCA-1-A
IR
Capladdiions EIER 730,480 500,765 985 8850 DIy 50055
Depreciation and amortisation HERES 778462 542,018 698,651 800 38,994 2,069,115
Impeirment loss recognised inrespect ESREMENETRTL
0f tade nl ot eceiveles HEER 24 45,469 60,243 - - 108,164
Release of prepaid lease payments ~ RHEE3EAD 7,180 6,527 712 - - 2083
Lossondisposa andwiteoffof ~ HERMENE  BEREEL
propertes, plantand equipment B 8258 4892 - - 149 13259
Share-vased payments WRAFARH - 3 - - - 03

AEBENEZEBMRFRE LR
B o

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC
and Thailand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER ()
() Other information (continued) (c) EHuER#E)
The analysis of the Group’s revenue from external RNEBBIBINE P FTEH = R E]
customers by geographical location is as follows: DZEEBAWTIT

2011 2010

—E——F —EFF

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FHT

The PRC (country of domicile) PR (FTEREZ) 32,091,302 29,364,098

Other Asian countries =R RN BT 2,683,453 2,888,851

Europe BN 1,227,246 1,054,252

America EM 557,071 584,321

36,559,072 33,891,622

No single external customer of the Group BE_Z-ZTFR_FT——F+=
contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue for A=+—HLFE FEEWES
each of the years ended 31 December 2010 and —ZINBER A EEE X ER
2011. 10% °

The analysis of the Group’s non-current assets RIELERIBEE « HMIEREBDE
other than deferred tax assets, other non-current E - AHEERE AR
assets, available-for-sale investments, held-to- BRIEMEBFT RN - AEEFERE
maturity investments and non-current deposits by BEREEMESITZINNT

location of assets is presented as follows:

At 31 December

+=A=+-H
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHT FAIT

The PRC (country of domicile) PR (FTEEISR) 25,014,866 22,630,553
Thailand Z=E 254,405 261,136
United Kingdom T 576,638 584,031
Singapore N = 1,836

25,845,909 23,477,556
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HflgA
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FAT
Other income includes: HAM W ABLE
Dividends from available-for-sale AHEEREZRE
investments 121,113 29,785
Gain on fair value changes of WEMERNTFEZE 2 W
investment properties 412,361 68,824
Net exchange gain P& W a F 58 85,191 55,373
Claim compensation BEPR 62,680 -
Interest income F B A 49,488 38,639
Interest income on held-to-maturity BEZRIERE 2 FBIWA
investments 81,582 -

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON AVAILABLE-FOR- 10. AI{HEREZREEE
SALE INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, impairment REBEEZE—F+_A=+—BLFE
loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$83,878,000 A BRASERFENE T EmRAKRE
(2010: nil) was recognised as a result of significant or MAFEFEZIRPHERERAE - UKk
prolonged decline in its fair values below its cost of certain AR—RLEmEFESFAFERREMR
of the Group’s listed equity investments and impairment B SREEER At HEEAHIEE
loss of a listed bond security because the fair value of the & 2 R EE1E83,878,0008 L (—E— =%
listed bond security is below its costs. FREB) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR M s
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BERK

2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Interest on bank borrowings wholly BERAFRNEHEEZ
repayable within five years RITIEE ZFE 315,103 194,007
Other finance charges Eihph&E s A = 7,392
315,103 201,399

Interest paid in relation to the interest  Fl| &z B34 4 AT~ 2 FIL &

rate swap contracts 55,219 111,774
370,322 313,173

Less: Amount capitalised in the cost i : & &R EERA
of qualifying assets EEN o (8,441) (9,133)
361,881 304,040

FRAZERNMBERATIN —REERE
general borrowing pool and were calculated by applying £ RZE——FUEGEREERSCE
a capitalisation rate of 1.1% for 2011 (2010: 1.1%) per TMEFEREAAR(ZE—FF  1.1%) 5
annum to expenditures on qualifying assets. B o

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FIS®iBxX
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAT
The amount comprises: FIBEIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNED
Charge for the year RFEFEZRIEZH 6,078 8,007
Under (over) provision BEFEREBTR
in previous years (FRZERE) 322 (1,616)
6,400 6,391
PRC Enterprise Income Tax APl EEFTIS AR
Charge for the year RNEE 7 RES H 399,590 478,808

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions  HAth 7l AMER 2 FH18

Charge for the year REFEZRIBEZH 2,839 9,025
Deferred taxation IRAETR I
Charge for the year REETH 104,232 21,997
513,061 516,221

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BBEFE IR S F 2 (BT ER T s R 3
estimated assessable profits for both years. 216.5% 2 MEFE -
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the R REARKMBCEMETE]([H
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, EFREPAD REEN - BRARARE
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. B BIP B A L2 (R PTISB  /R25% ©
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the HahafgE R o BB R B @R EEE 2
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. HRAMEANE -
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FEHMX®
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before RELE 7 BB AR Z HERAT -

taxation as follows:

2011 2010
—=——fF —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Profit before taxation Szl 3,719,637 5,166,338
Tax charge at the domestic income ABI A1 PRISH E25%
tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%) (Note &) (=T —Z4 : 25%)
STE 2B (MiiEa) 929,909 1,291,585
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  NAJ NI E A~ B a2
for tax purpose 121,907 19,945
Tax effect of income not taxable for WDERBRIN S 2 RIE 2
tax purpose (63,542) (109,544)
Tax effect of share of results of BRI N RIEE BT E
associates (63,706) (50,218)
Tax effect of share of results of PR RS B RS R 2 B
jointly controlled entities e 269 1,759
Under (over) provision in respect of BEFERETR(BERE)
prior years 322 (1,616)
Tax effect of tax holiday (Note b) ERE ST 2 (M) (93,864) (258,563)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K FHERFHIBEE Z IS 2 26,744 33,755
Utilisation of tax losses previous A AE AR 2 BB R 18
not recognised (10,809) (1,856)
Effect of different tax rates of FAFR B LASNEL At B[ M
subsidiaries operating in [@ACEHTEB RN R 2 TRIFE R
other jurisdictions/areas 2
other than the PRC (46,043) (34,834)
Tax exemption (Note c) FIEEA % (H5Ec) (297,311) (381,419)
Withholding tax (Note d) TEHH (MiEEd) 9,224 7,227
Others Hith (39) -
Tax expense for the year RNEFZHBEHEL 513,061 516,221
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z —F——4#+_-A=+—HIFFZF

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%) represents
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax of which the Group’s operations
are substantially based.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are exempted from
PRC Income Tax for two years starting from their first profit-
making year in which profits exceed any carried forward tax
losses followed by a 50% reduction in the income tax rate in the
following three years (“Tax Holiday”). The Tax Holiday enjoyed by
these subsidiaries will expire on or before 2012.

In addition, certain subsidiaries also enjoyed a preferential tax
rate and the preferential tax rate will be gradually increased to the
new tax rate of 25% over five years from 1 January 2008.

Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau
are exempted from profit tax.

The withholding tax represented the deferred tax recognised on
the 5% withholding tax in respect of the distributable profit from
the PRC associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & —&F——

13.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. AXNFEEF

2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAT

Profit for the year has been arrived RE M E AR (hn_E) A

at after charging (crediting): TIER :
Depreciation of properties, plant and  #% - B &R EITE

equipment 2,134,650 2,058,419
Amortisation of intangible assets BEE#HE(ET AT

(included in administrative costs) AA) - 696

2,134,650 2,059,115
Net exchange gain P i Wz F 28
—included in cost of sales — Rt ABER A (80,704) (54,121)
—included in other income —BEFAEMKRA (85,191) (65,373)
(165,895) (109,494)
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETE S 11,200 10,301
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAEMAL ZFERAR

expenses 30,613,372 26,802,759
Loss on fair value change of EmEREHN A FEES .

commodity forward contracts B8 (Bt AHERA)

(included in cost of sales) = 33,493
Impairment loss recognised BE S R E M EUERRIER 2

in respect of trade and other BEEE (BRI AITR

receivables (included in BH)

administrative expenses) 56,315 108,164
Loss on disposal and write off of HE RIMEDE - BB MR E

properties, plant and equipment ZEE 14,370 13,259
Impairment loss on properties, Y - B KRR 2R EREE

plant and equipment 136,738 -
Impairment loss recognised MIFERER OREEBBEFA

in respect of inventories SHE RO (B EE)

(included in cost of sales) (Note) 25,942 -
Release of prepaid lease payments TEfH R EIE 2 B0 24,146 20,832
Share-based payments LARRAR 2 A5 3K 236,099 303
Total staff costs, other than B TABLERE (ARG ER

share-based payments including BRI - BIEESE

directors’ emoluments (see note 14)  (RizE14) 1,941,920 1,823,176

Note:

During the year, there was a severe flooding in Thailand and one of the
Group’s manufacturing plant which carried out certain PCB production
operation of the Group was affected. Impairment losses on the damaged

i

inventories at net book value amounting to HK$25,942,000 were

recognised and charged to the profit and losses.

FA - REBEREKL KAEB—FELEETHRIR
BIREEFBHIERZIFE - XEFEREMFE
25,942,000/ 7L HERIR B E1E -

FEIRZPINE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 14. EEK{EE#MS

EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve ONgENt+ ZZ(ZE—FF : +—%)
(2010: eleven) Directors were as follows: BEx2ME0T
Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-E--FTA=t-ALEE
Mok Lai Cheng
Cheung Chan  Cheung Chang Ho  Cheung Cham Chung Wai Tse
Kwok Wing Kwong Wing Yin  Wailin, Hung, Chen Wing, Henry Ches, Kam
Wing Kwan Kwan Yiu Sang  Stephanie  Chadwick Maosheng Robert Tan  Christopher Hung Total

REAR Rk FRE B G HfEE Rt e 235 weA 885 EES &l
HKS000 ~ HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR Thn Th7 ThR Thn T TR TR TR Thn ThR Th7 ThR

(Note 1) (Note 2)
(W &1) (H2)
Fees #s = = = = = - - - 19 180 480 360 1,216
Other emoluments:  £f8H4 :
Salaries and HERAMER
ofher benefs 2450 108 247 2255 2% 137 252 11% = = - - 154
Contributions RINEREEIS
toretirement
benefits
scheme 118 - M M 105 63 120 52 - - - - 680
Performance TfeRREEE
related (Pfzta)
incentive
payment
(Note 3) 23,800 6,600 12,800 12,800 12,800 6,000 13,700 1,850 - - - - 90,350
Share-based R AR
payments 16,703 - 15,511 15,511 15,511 15,511 15,511 - = - - - 94,258
Total emoluments ~ B{&4a3 43071 7,653 30,829 30,677 30,685 22,941 31,903 3,028 196 180 480 360 202,003
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 14. EEZEREEME %)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2010
HE-T-TETA=T-HIEE
Mok Lai
Cheung Chan  Cheung Chang Cheung Cham Chung Cheng Tse
Kwok Wing Kwong Wing HoYin  Wailin, Hung, Wing, Henry - Wai Chee, Kam
Wing Kiwan Kwan Yiu Sang  Stephanie  Chadwick Robert Tan  Christopher Hung Total
RER Rkg  REE  OkE  @RE  REE EEE RER B geE AR At
HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HK$000  HK$000 HKSO00  HKS'000  HK$000 HK000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
T i TiEn T Thn  TEn TR T i  TEn T T
Fees L - - - - - - - 180 180 480 B 1220
QOther emoluments: S
Salaries and other benefits 4 R 5| 2,480 2,193 2247 2,399 2,109 1,183 2412 - - - - 16,028
Contributions to refirement  &{RiERIsH 813
benefits scheme 111 %8 104 104 %8 5 112 - - - - 683
Performance related TfeRBREE
inoentive payment (Hzk3)
(Note 3) 26,016 14016 14,000 14,016 14,000 6,500 15,016 - - - - 103,564
Total emoluments HakE 28607 16307 16361 16519 16207 778 17540 180 180 480 380 120490
Notes: B sx -
(1) Mr. Chan Wing Kwan resigned as an executive director and © BB AENR = ——F— B+ — AEHTHT
becomes a non-executive director of the Company on 11 B% - WRKAARRFNITES -
January 2011.
©) Mr. Chen Maosheng is appointed as a director of the Company @ BRXBAEER _T——F—AT—BREZER
on 11 January 2011. RARES -
(3) The performance related incentive payment is determined with 3) TERBFBEEBMFIEN2EZMEAFE 2L

reference to the operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics during both years.

EERE  EARBRLBETSBEMETE
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 14. EEREEME &)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
No Directors had waived any emoluments during the BEEENHE _E—ZEFR_T—F
years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 and the five TZA=ZFT—HLFERETAME - &
highest paid individuals in the Group for the year ended SEREE-_T——F+-A=+—H1t
31 December 2011 included five (2010: three) Directors. FERERRHFATERA(ZE—ZF
=RIREE -
The emoluments of the remaining two individuals in 2010 BRTMBEATRZZE—TF2HE&WT :
were as follows:
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$000
FTHET FHIT
Salaries and other benefits e MHEMER] - 4,732
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKEFIFTEIE R
scheme - 207
Performance related incentive T ERIAEE)TE
payments - 32,000
- 36,939
Emoluments of these individuals were within the following HZEANLZMEENTHRER :
bands:
Number of individuals
ATEE
2011 2010
—B——F —T—TF
HK$16,500,001 — HK$17,000,000 16,500,001 7.2 17,000,0005% 7T = 1
HK$20,000,001 — HK$20,500,000 20,000,001 7EZ20,500,0005 7T = 1
- 2
During both years, no emoluments were paid to or RREFERN  EFSAEEREH=H
receivable by the Directors or the Group’s five highest AT (BIEES) B8 U=k fE Y F m B
paid individuals, including Directors, as an inducement to © - {ERRSI M EF MBI BRIz 8
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss EhsERBERL 2 M8 -
of office.
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15. DIVIDENDS 15. KE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx
Dividends declared and paid EERRIKERE
Interim dividend for 2011 of —E——FhEIR s
HK40 cents (2010: HK50 cents) R E FAR408(L
per ordinary share (Z=—FF : 50%1L) 341,867 424,567
Final dividend for 2010 of —E-TERBRBER
HKB0 cents (2010: final dividend LBRe0BII(ZE—FF
for 2009 of HK45 cents) k7 —TTNE
per ordinary share REAAR S, © 457841) 512,800 380,133
854,667 804,700
Dividend proposed EERE
Proposed final dividend for 2011 of BRIT—FREKRE
HK25 cents (2010: HK60 cents) TR EAR25E
per ordinary share (ZZ=—FF : 60%1L) 213,667 509,698

The final dividend of HK25 cents per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 has been
proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

ARREFRER _ZT——F+-A
=+ RENFERERARSSRER
P25l - HEAF AR R BRI EERER
BEANGHE - TREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BREF
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per AREHAE AL ESRER RS R FIE
share attributable to the owners of the Company are THBUEEE -

based on the following data:

2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Earnings for the purpose of calculating stE &S IEAREF| 2 ZF|
basic earnings per share 2,594,142 3,620,818
Less: Adjustment to the share of profit & : #5% G IR FE(SEEIC R &K
of EEIC and its subsidiaries BRRAENZaF A
based on dilution of their
earnings per share (103) (1,473)
Earnings for the purpose of calculating =+ ZE &% #E 2 F 2 2
diluted earnings per share 2,594,039 3,619,345
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 16. BREF#)

Number of shares

R EE
2011 2010
—=——f —E—FF
Weighted average number of ordinary s+ &S MIEAREF| ~ @M
shares for the purpose of calculating — Jn#EFE5
basic earnings per share 853,625,108 846,433,936
Add: Effect of dilutive potential ordinary it : EEE#EE0ES
shares relating to: LB
- outstanding share options — RARIELTM
issued by the Company RITE 2 B IChERRE = 6,687,049
- outstanding warrants issued —NARELTM
by the Company RITIE 2 SR HEE 2,104,142 1,249,070
Weighted average number of ordinary s+ E &SR 2
shares for the purpose of calculating @A IIEF I
diluted earnings per share 855,729,250 854,370,055
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year REBE-T—F+A=1+—HIEFE
ended 31 December 2011 does not take into account A FTESREE RN EEEARA A
on the effects of share options granted in 2011 as the RIEBE-——SERHECELBERECZE
exercise price of the outstanding share options of the EZ R EE M ARITHEELEERE TR
Group was higher than the average market price during B HRERMNHMISFHEERS -

that year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BEWHE
HK$'000
FA&T
FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1 January 2010 RZZE-ZTF—H—H 1,423,437
Exchange adjustments [ o, = 42,462
Additions NE 585,987
Transfer from properties, plant and equipment — #E#BE Y% - HE k&G
(Note i) (BI5ED 9,500
Increase in fair value AFEE N 68,824
At 31 December 2010 RZE—FF+-A=+—H 2,130,210
Exchange adjustments IE W% 102,431
Additions NE 4,813
Transfer from properties, plant and equipment — #EEF )% - W= LEHE
(Note ii) (CagzaD) 1,560
Transfer from properties held for development #5552 R Y5
(Note ii) DD 854,235
Increase in fair value AFEEN 412,361
At 31 December 2011 R-_E—F+_A=+—H 3,505,610

Notes:

(i)

The fair value of the properties transferred from properties, plant
and equipment at the dates of transfer for the year ended 31
December 2010 had been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that day by Messrs. Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited, independent qualified valuers not connected to the
Group. Change of fair value of HK$7,268,000 was credited to
property revaluation reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, certain properties
under development were reclassified to investment properties
upon change in use, evidenced by commencement of operating
leases. The fair value of the properties transferred from properties,
plant and equipment and properties held for development at the
date of transfer for the year ended 31 December 2011 had been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that day by
Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuers
not connected to the Group. At the date of transfer, the change
in fair value of properties transferred from properties, plant and
equipment of HK$691,000 was credited to property revaluation
reserve and the change in fair value of properties transferred
from properties held for development was recognised in profit or
loss and included in the increase in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #&
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2011 had been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on that date by Messrs. Roma
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. Messrs. Roma Appraisals
Limited are members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation was arrived at by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2010 had been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on that date by Messrs. Memfus
Wong Surveyors Limited, independent qualified valuers
not connected with the Group. Messrs. Memfus Wong
Surveyors Limited are members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

17.

PR ERAR Y RE

REWE #)
AEBREYER -_E—— G+ A
S+—BZATENREREEY EE
B A BREENESRETEERA
A RZBBRTHEEZELEN - BEE
S EERARASSIBMEERS -
RIEEN2ERAUDER HEBEZ TS
.

=
E
BEEE -

FEBRENMER_Z—ZF+-A
=t HZAFETHR BN B I 5 s
2B A ERGEMEFAEAFITAER
DA RRAETHREZEEEZR - &
ERGFMTARARIREBAEMESS
8- BRGEEDZERUNEXSEEZ

MIZBREETE

AEERRNESHERAEELRELE
MOBAEZMBENEREZ  OFNARTE
B E - YD BRIEREDEX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl &SRR M aE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZF - F——%F+ - H=+—HI- F/Z

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. BREWXE#®)

The carrying value of investment properties shown above

comprises:

A ERTRREYEREERR

2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FExT
Property interests situated ETNHAOREERE
in Hong Kong under: ZNEREL
Medium-term lease FREBFRAY 25,780 19,650
Property interests situated outside ZRFITRLZREBIAIN
Hong Kong under: Rz R
Medium-term lease FRERFR 4 2,870,269 2,078,760
Long lease REAFAY 609,561 31,800
3,479,830 2,110,560
3,505,610 2,130,210
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =&

=)
e

—— A= AR

BB ERAR Y RE

18. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - BEKRE
Property,
Furniture, plant and
fixtures equipment
Freehold Buildings Leasehold Plant and Licenced and Transportation under
lands  forownuse improvements  machinery assets  equipment  equipment  construction Total
X B RE i aEYE.
ERLH 2Nt 53 bE= S BER#E FREE RERRE Eanhk BERRE Ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL Th TAT THL ThL Th THL THL ThR
COsT s
At 1 January 2010 RZE-%F
-A-B 60,826 2,879,271 398,173 19,409,852 - 72,672 291,119 1,786,193 25,597,106
Exchange adjustments EREE 86 69,075 12,385 618,858 - 30,920 491 87,653 823,854
Addltions #E - 5,084 30,469 536,985 - 102,901 10,682 1,007,229 1,743,360
Acquired from acquistion HEHBARmER

of subsiciaries (Hz£39)

(Note 39) - 3,685 - 249 - - - - 3934
Disposals and write off HERRNE - (209) (2972 (435,738) - (29,115) (9577) - [477,611)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAA

(Note 40) (Hst40) - (30215) - (428,737) - (2967) (687) - (462,606)
Transferred to investment ERZRENE

properties (Note () (GiE:) - (4.961) - - - - - - 4.961)
Reclassifications v - 87,345 101,727 838,426 - 119,971 - (1,147,469 -
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-ZF

TZB=+-8 60912 3,009,075 539,782 20,639,895 - 994,382 296,514 1,782,506 21,223,066
Exchange adjustments EXRE (158) 95,802 8,488 1,068,598 14,047 50,045 7,040 91,464 1,336,326
Addltions HE - 49,867 14,506 579,835 - 81,267 35,457 2,008,890 2819812
Acquired from acquistionof ~ WEEHBATTER

subsicfaries (Note 39) (HE30) - - - 307 - - - - 307
Disposals and write off HERME - (132,850) (17,706) (458,055) - (10,438) (16,075) (347) 635,471)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF

Note 40) (Ka40) - (33613) - 223,059) - [13171) (1,19) - (071,087)
Transferred tolicenced assets ~ BRZRREAEE

(Note i) (BisEi) - (366.281) - 060405 2428209 - 052) - -
Reclassifications ENE - 23239 15,069 1,661,970 - 134,916 - (1,835,194) -
Transferred to investment SRTHRENE

properties (Note (j) [GE) - (1,445) - - - - - - (1,445)
At 31 December 2011 R_E——%

TZR=1-8 60,754 2,651,794 560,139 21,109,086 2442256 1,236,991 312219 2,097,319 30,470,558
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z —F——4#+_-A=+—HIFFZF

18. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥¥ - BEKRXRE#)

e

R

(continued)
Property,
Furniture, plant and
fixtures equipment
Freehold Buildings Leasehold Plant and Licenced and  Transportation under
lands  forownuse improvements  machinery assets  equipment  equipment  construction Total
XX it bl ] i it
EELH HAET nExk BER#E FREE RERRE Eanhk BERRE Ait
HK$1000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$ 000
TERL AL T AT ThR Tin FE AL ThR
DEPRECIATION AND TERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-TF
-A-8 - 431,542 178,657 6,807,856 - 209,238 122,440 - 7,749,633
Exchange adjustments A% - 11,210 11,306 191,510 - 7543 37 N 224,686
Provided for the year TEERE - 64,731 61,290 1,774,652 - 128,006 29,740 - 2,068,419
Eliminated on disposals HERTERIE
and wite off - (179) (2,699) 331477) - [24.459) [B415) - (367,228)
Bliminated on disposal of HENBAAREE
subsicares (Note 40) (Hisa0) - (6547) - 8289) - (17 69) - (14,077
Eliminated on transfer to SRTREANER
investment properties (k)
Note {) - 2729 - - - - - - P79
At 31 December 2010
- 499,029 248,454 8,434,256 - 320,151 146,814 - 9,648,704
Exchange adjustments EX#E - 19222 4589 1,14 9517 18,787 2,574 - 476,403
Provided for the year TERRE - 95,273 64,432 1,758,001 50,632 133,402 32,910 - 2,134,650
Eliminated on disposalsand B R34
wite off - (5201) (17,566) 202,481) - 8118 (13,008) - (046,464)
Eliminated on dlisposal of HENRARRRE
subsidleries (Note 40) (i3k40) - (1,209) - (32,676) - (2,09) (902) - (36,881)
Elminated on transfer to ERBRANER
investment properties REIGRI)]
(Note i) - (576) - - - - - - (576)
Impairment loss recognisedin ~ MERREZZ HESE
proft orloss (Note (i) () - 20,184 - 113759 - 27% - - 136,738
Transfer to icenced BRERECRAE
assels - (122,409 - (1306418 1437889 - 0070) - -
At 31 December 2011 n-EF——%
TZR=1-8 - 504,323 299909 9,186,157 1,498,038 464919 159,228 - 12,112,674
CARRYING VALUES EEE
At 31 December 2011 Rn_E—-%
TZB=1-8 60,754 2147471 260230 11,922,929 944,218 772,012 152,991 2,097,319 18,357,984
At 31 December 2010 RZ%3-%F
tZA=t-R 60912 2,510,046 291,328 12,105,639 - 674,231 149,700 1,782,506 17,574,362
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of properties, plant and equipment
other than those under construction are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Freehold lands Nil

Buildings for own use

Over the remaining
unexpired terms of leases
or fifty years, whichever is

the shorter

Leasehold improvements Over shorter of lease terms
or 10 -20%

Plant and machinery 10-20%

Licenced assets 10-20%

Furniture, fixtures and

10-33"/3%

equipment

Transportation equipment

10 -20%

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s freehold lands of
HK$60,754,000 (2010: HK$60,912,000) are situated
outside Hong Kong.

Notes:

During the years, the Group changed the use of certain of its
leasehold properties and rented them out to independent third
parties for rental income. When there was a change in use,
upon the transfer from properties, plant and equipment to
investment properties, these properties were revalued at fair
value with a gain on revaluation of approximately HK$691,000
(2010: HK$7,268,000), which has been credited to the property
revaluation reserve.

During the year, the Group also conducted a review of the
Group’s manufacturing assets. Due to the sustained losses in
the cash generating unit (“CGU”) which carried out one of the
Group’s PCB manufacturing function and determined that a
number of those assets were impaired. Accordingly, impairment
losses of HK$20,184,000, HK$77,021,000 and HK$2,795,000
have been recognised in respect of properties for own use, plant
and machinery and furniture, fixtures and equipment respectively,
which are used in manufacturing PCBs. The recoverable
amounts of the relevant assets have been determined on the
basis of their value in use. The discount rates in measuring the
amounts of value in use were 10% in relation to the relevant
assets.

In addition, there was a severe flooding in Thailand and one of
the Group’s manufacturing plant which carried out certain PCB
production operation of the Group was affected. Impairment
losses on the damaged properties, plant and equipment at net
book value amounting to HK$36,738,000 were recognised and
charged to the profit and losses.

=)
ma

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

18.

BREZWME - WER&EI

PR ERAR Y RE

M - - BMERREZ)

A utyE

MR R AESEEZ TIFEL

REHRITE -

KAEELH BHE

BREF ERALRFIFRART
H) & Bk 504 (LA
BREEBE)

AL EEE R L) FHIX
10 — 20% (LAE RS
EHLE)

B 5E M Bs 10 - 20%

FiEFRERE 10 - 20%

B HEBREE  10-33/5%

BERSRE 10 - 20%

R-E——F+-_A=+—H0 £K&
HAE60,754,000F L (ZFE—FF :
60,912,000/ 7T ) Sk A ERE L HI T A B SR

G\ o

P5E

0

(i)

FA - AEEREETHROWERSE  UHAE
TEUE=7  NWEGSHSKA - HEEE
BERNE  BERIBTEREREANE
B ZEMERLFEERL  EREEOA
691,000/ 70 (=ZZ—Z4F : 7,268,000/ 7T)
BEFAMEE-EE

FH - ARENENTREEE - N AKE
—(EETENRIAREE IR B R A VIR B A AR B AL
(REELBEM)RXEL  AMETXSE
ELBRRE - Ut - AREFAREUEHRIAR
BIRERET - WE RS BA - KE
Koy B i R R 1B 5 18 20,184,000/ 7T ~
77,021,000/ 7T 52,795,000/ 7T © & E AHRA
BEMAKOSBESREMEERER - 55
EREESENTRE BRMEEN10% °

AN - FEBEEBREKRIK - NEE-REEE
THIRISRBEAR EERX B BERTEIRE - X
B - BB KR B R AR F(E36,738,0008
TURERIRERE - TERERP NG -
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18.

.
B SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZF - F——%F+ - H=+—HI- F/Z

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

(ha .

.
o '

21
LT
1L .| | [

18. YW¥ - BEKRXRE#)

BisE : (4F)
Licenced assets comprised of the following: (i) REGCREEREUNTEE
Buildings for Plant and Transportation
own use machinery equipment Total
BREF P K2R B E A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHIT FHT FHT FH#T
COST D%
At 1 January 2011 RZE—%F—A—H - - - -
Reclassification BN 358,281 2,060,405 9,623 2,428,209
Exchange adjustments & 5 % 2,152 11,840 55 14,047
At 31 December 2011 RZZT——F+=A
=+—8 360,433 2,072,245 9,578 2,442,256
ACCUMULATED ZEtiE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2011 RZT—F—A—H - - - -
Provided for the year R E B 2,374 48,117 141 50,632
Reclassification EFOLE 122,403 1,306,416 9,070 1,437,889
Exchange adjustments [EE 5 % 844 8,617 56 9,517
At 31 December 2011 RZT—F+=A
=t+—8 125,621 1,363,150 9,267 1,498,038
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2011 RZT—F+=A
=+—H 234,812 709,095 311 944,218

On 3 August 2011, a subsidiary of Kingboard Copper Foil
Holdings Limited (“KBCF” or the “Licensor”) (KBCF is a listed
subsidiary of the Group), entered into a licence agreement with
Harvest Resource Management Limited (the “Licencee”), who
is an independent third party in the opinion of the directors,
to licence KBCF’s copper foil manufacturing facilities located
at Fogang and Lianzhou to the Licencee for the period from
1 September 2011 to 31 August 2013 because after the
mandate of interested party transaction could not be approved
by the KBCF’s shareholders at annual general meeting, KBCF
is unable to transact with the Group. To get steady stream of
income, KBCF entered into licence agreement with the Licencee.
Summary of the details are as follows:

() to use the leasehold properties, comprising factory
buildings in Fogang and Lianzhou; and

(b) to use, consume and dispose of the inventory which
shall include consumables and stocks in trade; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 454 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z - F——%F+ = H=+—HI-F/Z

18. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥¥ - BEKRXRE#)

(continued)
Notes: (continued) fieE - (48)
(iii) (continued) (ii) (#)
() to use the machinery, together with all other equipment © RS - B R TRRI R FRE fid
and facilities as from time to time located at the M2 P E bR A AR o
properties in Fogang and Lianzhou.
The licenced properties, plant and equipment tabulated above ERARERERYE « BRE RERERKE
and the licenced inventories in note 20 were licenced for licence AT REGERFENREERRAREA
income of HK$10 million per month payable in advance on the 10,000,000/ 7T » ZBRXEE MR EER T
first day of each and every calendar month, as a short-term B - YERKBCOFHE 858 Y3 3% e 2 A A
measure by KBCF to generate income from the copper foil BREHRRE G o UL - RIEE R - BB &R
manufacturing facilities. Accordingly, the licenced properties, BEFDERME - BE MR EE T REER
plant and equipment have been reclassified as licenced assets BEE -

under properties, plant and equipment.

The Group conducted a review of the recoverable amount AEEBRBEC-FRESREEAAENER
of its licenced properties, plant and equipment determined BE  HHEREBEYE  BENLEREN
based on their value in use calculated using seven-year AIREIEHE - EABEFENEFERER
cash flow projections. The key assumptions for the value REBERENENEAERIZSEEREH
in use calculations are in relation to the Group believes A& EKBCFRR R @8 [k 2) fER#EF A
that 1) the interested party transactions mandate would mEEmE - REERYE  BEREE
not passed by the shareholders of KBCF shortly and AR T A AEHAREAM A -
2) the licenced properties, plant and equipment can be BREFERBRAIZGFRIZ6%ET  sr2{F
licenced to other party after the licence agreement is FREBERFTARITIRE RS - RIFEHA
expired for the further periods over the remaining useful R WERERRERRE -

lives of the licenced properties, plant and equipment at a
licence income based on incremental growth rate of 6%
per year. The discount rate used in measuring value in
use was 5%. Based on the review, no impairment loss is

recognised.

Management believes that any reasonably possible ERERE  EAZERINERETH
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the ISR RECHAME  BFELRRED
aggregate carrying amount of licenced properties, plant RHAERaETNE SR

and equipment to exceed their aggregate recoverable
amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. BNHHEENE
All of the Group’s prepaid lease payments are prepaid for REBE 2 IIBNEEZTIEN AT AEIGD
medium term leasehold land outside Hong Kong. BRFR A+ FERTROE o
2011 2010
—B——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MIBMESFTAOT -

Current assets MENEE 26,034 23,617
Non-current assets IEREEE 947,807 919,313
973,841 942,930
Movements of prepaid lease payments are as follows: TENTEERIE 2 EEINT
HK$'000
FA&T
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZTF—H—H 955,897
Exchange adjustments [ 5, B 36,325
Additions V=8 135,205
Disposals k= (172,973)
Acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries L B BT 28 2 ) i JE B
(Note 39) (Ki7E39) 15,953
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 40) HEMB AR (MiEE40) (6,645)
Charge for the year REETH (20,832)
At 31 December 2010 W-E-TEF+=-A=+—H 942,930
Exchange adjustments [ 5 =L 40,121
Additions NE 77,702
Disposals HE (47,776)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 40) BT A A (FFFE40) (14,990)
Charge for the year REFEEZH (24,146)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE—F+-_A=+—H 973,841
The lease term over which the prepaid lease payments B EZIBIRN F35FEE50F ~EFHHA
are amortised ranged from 35 years to 50 years. o o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

20.

21.

.,

i
bt L
waim !
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PR ERAR Y RE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20. HFRBEE
This represents inventory licenced to the Licencee IR E——FhLA—RE=-_Z—=
(see note 28) for the period from 1 September 2011 to NAZ+—BEEEREAFERANETEER
31 August 2013. Under the licencing agreement, the Fi3E28) o IRIFIRIEE R sk - BRIEAME
Licencee may use, consume and dispose of the licenced A EAMEREFERFEE 49 aE
inventories which include consumables and stocks in SHEMMESESE - AR RIREFERHE
trade. However, the Licencee is required to replace R BREANERNAEEEENESR
and return the licenced inventories used, consumed or BER - AL ENREEREE -
disposed during the licence period to the Group at the
end of the licence period.
GOODWILL 21. BE
HK$’000
FABT
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 AN—E-TF—HA—H-
and 31 December 2011 ZE-FF+ZA=+—HRK
—E——F+ZA=+—H 2,288,149

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill
arising from acquisition of subsidiaries are disclosed as
follows:

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has
been allocated to groups of cash generating units
(“CGU”) of laminates, PCBs and chemicals business
segments. At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the
carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to the CGUs of
laminates, PCBs and chemicals business segments were
approximately HK$390,781,000, HK$1,717,519,000 and
HK$179,849,000, respectively.

BT B 2 R TS 4 2 R 2 R
HEERENT

BAEEARNE  AEESETEEE
AR - EDRIARBER KL TE RO ER
Nz ReEESM([ReEESM])AE
e RZE——FRZFE—TF+=A
=+ —BHETEAEIR - ERIZEIR &
CTIEREBKHB2REEESBMMERZ
P BR T (A 5 B 49 43890,781,000% 7T
1,717,519,000/% 7T ). 179,849,000/ 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZF - F——%F+ - H=+—HI- F/Z

21.

GOODWILL (continued) 21. BE@w
The recoverable amounts of the laminates’, PCBs’ and BIER - ORIGBEREECIERZES
chemicals’ CGUs have been determined based on a value ELEfzakb¢ERERBEIEL
in use calculation. Goodwill is expected to generate cash BT o TEHIREENG T BFES0FE
flow for 50 years of remaining useful life. To calculate EReRE - RFTEFREE  BensE
this, cash flow projections are based on five year periods TERA L SR E IR E AT E 2 AF IR
financial budgets approved by senior management. FBE AEE
The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations for BINMER - ENRIAREEIR b TEREBR D
the CGUs of laminates, PCBs and chemicals business HReEFEM 2 ERBEFEEZFE
segments are as follows: (EEFENNE
Laminates PCBs Chemicals
A E R ED il 4 % AR tIER
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
=25 —T-TF =ZB—-—-F —T-TF ZB—-—-F —T-ITF
Discount rate PR = 13% 13% 12% 12% 15% 15%
Growth rate R R
(foryear 1to5) (1E5%) 5% 5% 4% 4% 4% 4%

The key assumptions are determined based on the unit’s
past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industries. The cash
flow beyond the five year period are extrapolated using
zero growth rate.

Since the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
is higher than its carrying amount, the Directors consider
that the carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period is not impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 B #53R R Mist
For the year ended 31 December 2011 &t & —E——4%+ = H=+—H I FEZF
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REENTZ2ER
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Cost of investments in associates REE N a2 IE A
Unlisted in the PRC AHEEIE T 298,218 211,230
Share of post-acquisition profits and ~ FE{5 UkBE &5 FIl &2
other comprehensive income, net of  Efh 2
dividends received (B D WAL E.) 448,141 353,217
746,359 564,447
At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had interests R ——FRZE—TFF+ZA=+—
in the following associates: B RNEEHEAUATHA NG
Place of
Form of business registration/  Principle place  Equity interest held by Attributable equity
Name of entity structure incorporation  of operation the subsidiary interest of the Group Principal activities
BEER EBRBER T/ RIBEY  FREEBY B PEiiEsEie AEBEERE TEEH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2—-f T2 ZB--§ _T-TH
CNOOC Kingboard Chemical Incorporated PRC PRC 40% 40% 40% 40% Manufacture and
Limited# FEAL el h distrioution of
FEARRE IERARN methanol
BERHHTE
LRSEERE Incorporated PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Coal mining and
BRAFN AL H H distribution of coals
Linkfit Investment Holdings ~ Unlisted private entity ~ Samoa PRC 29.67% - 12.72% - Investment holding
Limited (“Linkfit") FEMLEER EED H REER
BEREZRERAR
(e ])
# These companies were established in the PRC in the form of # HERBTIURINEEEGERERAER
Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures. DAVAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

22,

174

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22,

The principal activities of Linkfit's principal subsidiaries are
hotel operation and property development.

On 21 June 2011, the Group subscribed the shares in
Linkfit for a total cash consideration of HK$30,000,000. As
a result, the Group’s interest in Linkfit was increased from
11.34% to 21.57% and Linkfit became an associate of
the Group. Accordingly, the Group’s investment in Linkfit
had been reclassified from available-for-sale investments
to investment in an associate.

Subsequent to the subscription of Linkfit’s shares, the
Group acquired further interest in Linkfit for a total cash
consideration HK$20,988,000. As a result, the Group's
interest in the associate was increased from 21.57% to
29.67%.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associates is set out below:

REEENT) 2w ()
BRI TEMBARZ TREKABEY
BRYMEHR -

R-ZE——FA=-+—8  KEELE
15 4 X8 30,000,000%8 7T R HEBEZE AL D ©
FElt - AR B A BB AR R 11.84% 3 A1
£21.57% @ MK AREEB L AR -
Fit - AREBERBZEHRERTHEER
EEHHEARBERFZRE -

ERBHEBRG%E  AEENERERE
20,988,000 T it — U B B EE AR (D) o
I ANEE R B ERERA21.57%E e
29.67% °

AEERENR 2 ERBURT

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Total assets BERE 3,388,992 2,144,253
Total liabilities B &R (1,394,041) (748,422)
Net assets BEFE 1,994,951 1,395,831
Group’s share of net assets of REFEEGE S AR
associates BEZFE 746,359 564,447
Revenue (Note) R (FsE) 1,900,569 4,678,253
Profit for the year (Note) ANEEmF (HFE) 629,100 501,948
Other comprehensive income for the A4 EH M2 E kS
year (Note) (Hi&E) 69,868 45,695
Group’s share of profits of associates 7N [F fE(GHE & A 7
for the year (Note) NEF 2uM (M) 254,823 200,873
Group’s share of other comprehensive 7%= & fE {5 B2 A 7]
income of associates for the year REEZHAMEE
(Note) Yk (P EE) 28,296 18,785
Note:  The amounts in 2011 included the revenue, loss and other st : RIT——FrZESeHeRaBERALE

comprehensive income of Linkfit for the period from the date of
which Linkfit become an associate of the Group to 31 December
2011.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

23.

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

23. BFEZIHRE
2011

—EgE——F
HK$’000

T

2010

—TTF
HK$’000
TAT

Listed bond securities issued by
corporations and listed in the

RBETWRH IR EH R B
BRAR([FA]) EHE L

MESFES

Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX”)

Included in the listed bond securities as at 31 December
2011 is HK$634,247,000 from one listed issuer in Hong
Kong and listed in SGX.

Included in the above held-to-maturity investments are
fixed coupon bonds which carry coupon rate ranging from
7% to 11.13%. The investments will be matured from 29
April 2014 to 3 August 2018.

On 1 January 2011, the Group has reclassified certain
bonds from available-for-sale investments to held-to-
maturity investments. The total fair value as at date
of reclassification amount to HK$79,064,000, which
becomes the investment’s new amortised cost.

Included in held-to-maturity investments are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they

972,883 -

RNZTB——F+_A=1+—0 " Z2EB
E—RHEBLMETABITRHAR LT
2 & E%634,247,000/8 T ©

e BERERERTRENT7%
Z113%HEEERES - ZFKRET
HEANFZE—NFEHAZ+TNAAEZZE
—NEFENA=H -

—E——F—A—R AEEEFHHE
ETES BAHEHERANARER
FEARE - REFHERBAATERER
79,064,000 7T+ L T4 1% & RO FTEESH K
7N o

FEZIHREBETIIAEEERAH
ZNBERBIASNE B ETHEZ 3R

relate:
2011 2010
—EB——fF —E-TF
Amount Amount
cia-} o
’000 ‘000
T Tt
us$ =TT 119,009 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24, THHERE
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHEERE B -
2011 2010
—EB——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Listed investments, at fair value (note a): FmM#%%& @ I AFE
(M7¥a) -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ~ M&E L 2 IAE S 3,841,588 1,710,259
Equity securities listed in United RER T2 RAES
States 3,461 5,078
Equity securities listed in Singapore FRET NG £ 2 AR 5 16,590 -
3,861,639 1,715,337
Listed bond securities issued by listed & a7 A TR
issuers in Hong Kong and listed inthe £z FifE5ES
SGX, at fair value (note b): B AFE (D)
— with fixed coupon interest at 6% per —R-_ZT—AF+A-++
annum until 27 October 2015 and HAIABEE6EZEE
at 4.885% per annum over 5 years 28 MR-ZE—RF
US Treasury bonds rate from +A-+ N \HEZZ_Z
28 October 2015 to 27 October F+A-Zt+tHILAEBF
2020 and at 5.638% per annum BARFHHEBEBEZSM
over 3 months London Interbank 4885 EFRE - H
Offered Rate thereafter on 1% F BHRSE A REBIRTT
perpetual basis [EZHF S N5.638[F 2
KAMES 271,635 324,127
— with fixed coupon interest at 8% —ABFESEZETE
per annum and maturity date on 1 B YR -ZE—RF+=
December 2016 A—BZIH = 38,694
- with fixed coupon interest at 9.65%  — BB E9.65E 7 BT E
per annum and maturity date on 3 B WRA-ZE—+%FNA
August 2017 = HE|H - 40,370
271,635 403,191
Unlisted equity investments, at cost JE LTI E - TR
— private equity investments in the — R EZ ALERA
PRC (note ¢) & (MisEe) 525 36,525
- private equity investment in Hong —EB/BZLERAR
Kong (note d) % & (MtEEd) 151,342 144,883
151,867 181,408
Total A&t 4,285,141 2,299,936
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24,

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

At the end of reporting period, all listed available-for-sale
investments are stated at fair value. Fair values of those
listed investments have been determined by reference to
bid prices quoted in active markets. The unlisted equity
investments are stated at cost as their fair values cannot
be measured reliably.

Notes:

(@) Included in the listed investments as at 31 December 2011 are
HK$3,286,511,000 from two listed issuers in Hong Kong.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group purchased
listed bond securities issued by listed issuers in Hong Kong and
listed in SGX. These listed bond securities were designated as
available-for-sale investments at the date of acquisition.

On 1 January 2011, the Group changes its intention to hold
certain listed bond securities of approximately HK$79,064,000 to
maturity. As a result, these listed bond securities are reclassified
to held-to-maturity investments (note 23).

At 31 December 2011, the entire amount of listed bond securities
is from one (2010: two) listed bond security issued by one (2010:
two) Hong Kong listed company.

() The unlisted equity investments as at 31 December 2010
represented (i) 11.34% equity interest in an unlisted private entity
established in the PRC which is engaged in hotel operation;
and (i) 5% (2011: 5%) equity interest in an unlisted private
entity established in the PRC which is engaged in property
development. The equity interest in the unlisted private entity
engaged in hotel operation has been reclassified to investment in
associate in the current year.

(d) During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
subscribed for 10% interest in a private entity incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands which is engaged in the property
development business in Hong Kong. This entity currently holds
a number of properties in a building situated in Hong Kong which
is intended for redevelopment purpose (the “Redevelopment
Project”). The total participation amount in the Redevelopment
Project committed by the Group amounted to US$21,000,000
(approximately HK$163,800,000) and the Group has contributed
approximately HK$151,342,000 (2010: HK$144,883,000) as
part of the participation as at 31 December 2011.

The investment is measured at cost less impairment at the end
of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimate is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that
its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

RN

zai Wi
L] i";
b |

it
i

i

PR ERAR Y RE

AHHERE®)

RE

HEERER  AEAHEE LT

BREDBRAVEINER - ZFLHEREZR

FETY

RSERERTISMRBIRERE

E o AN TRER SERHEIF ERARE
RNHE - HIERARTIRR o

o

RIT——F+ZA=+—H  ETREEE
MfE & 81T A#3,286,511,000/8 7T °

HE-_Z-TF+-A=+—ALFER " K
SEBERS LMBETABITRITMSE ETH
BHES o %F LTEFEFRUREE B
EARAEHERE -

RoB——F—A—B AREERAR #
BT L E % E $1979,064,00075 T E 3
# - B RS ETEAEAENOBERE
EHRA(HiE28) -

RNZZE——F+ZA=+—R  EHEHZ?
2ReERE —(Z2—2F : MAEELH
RABITH—(ZFT—FF : MRLHESE
%o

RZZB-—ZF+-A=+—RFLTREARE
(AR BIRRIL 3F AL B A2 11.34%0%
T ZEBRFBEEEEE - RN EK
SN2 EMIEERE 5% (ZF——F 1 5%)
etk - ZEBUSVEER - WAFE - (tF
BEEEENE LML EREEER DR
RRBERRZIRE °

HEZZ-—ZF+-PA=F+—HIEFER "
AEBRE -HEREBRELHESEMRK T2
TLEEBZ10%AHE - ZAEEENEBR
EYEBRRES - ZERBRES —RUINE
BrEFLEMESN  ZAERTEE(E
BEE]  cAEES2FHERHEZESE
#21,000,0003 7t ( 47163,800,000/ 7T ) © A
—E-—F+-A=+—H " AEEKL2T
HEIEF49151,342,0008 0 (— 2 — T4 ¢
144,883,000/ 7T ) °

REEHERER AR A FEZAEEER
EREA  BEEFR/AREAEFHELLT
B - MR BRI R ERH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZE - F——%F+ - =+—HI - F/Z

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24. n#tHE®RE#)

(continued)
Included in available-for-sale investments are the following AHEEREBRETYIAERETEHRE
amounts denominated in a currency other than the Nee B AINEEE B 2 T0EE -
functional currency of the group entities to which they
relate:
2011 2010
—B——F —ETEF
Amount Amount
x| ©F
’000 ’000
F T
Us$ ETT 54,672 70,917
HK$ HBIT 3,842,110 1,746,783

25. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 25. RiEE4|=0e >

ENTITIES
2011 2010
. —F—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT BT
Cost of unlisted investment in jointly HEEHITEE Y
controlled entities FEEMIRERA 15,953 15,953
Share of post-acquisition losses FEAL U R & 1B (34,175) (33,100)
(18,222) (17,147)
Amounts due from jointly controlled FEUTH RIS B B
entities (Note) R (FFEE) 18,222 18,222
- 1,075
Note: ~ The amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, BRRE : PEUREERITE

BRRBLAEER 28 BE
interest-free, with no fixed repayment terms and are not B @ERE - BENT] RIS RER -
repayable in the foreseeable future.
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25. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 25. RiEiE4|=E > #ES )

ENTITIES (continued)
Included in the cost of investment in jointly controlled NEEE4EEEEKNABIEBEFER
entities is goodwill of approximately HK$10,943,000 B LR RS BB T E 4 A E4910,943,000
(2010: HK$10,943,000) arising on the acquisition of jointly BT (ZZ—Z4F : 10,943,000/ 7T) 2/
controlled entities in prior years. =
Goodwill
BmE
HK$’000
FHET
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 RZZ2—ZF—-H—A-
and 31 December 2011 —E-ZEF+-_A=+—HEK
—E——F+=-A=+—H 10,943
At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had interests RIE——FR_T—ZEF+_A=+—
in the following significant jointly controlled entities: B REBERTIIERNKRIEHIEEES
s
Place of
registration/ Proportion of nominal value
Name of jointly Form of business incorporation of registered/issued capital Proportion of
controlled entity structure and operation held by the Group voting power Principal activity
a2 8703 FEEFFEIMES/
HEEHEREE B3 23 3 BRI BRTRFEELS RRLA TEEH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2-—-% -T-TF %% _"T-FF
Concord Modern Technology  Incorporated Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% 50% Manufacture and sale of
Limited il % optical discs
RERERAR EER D
Full Summit Development Incorporated Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% 50% Manufacture and sale of
Limited il % optical discs
HEBRERAR ER D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

25. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 25. RiEE4|=8E S0

ENTITIES (continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of the AREZSEYBR 2 REE 7 LRI H| T e
Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities which are w2 IS ER AT

accounted for using the equity method is set out below:

2011 2010
—F——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHT
Total assets BEEE 3,437 13,576
Total liabilities B &Rz (38,810) (41,666)
Net liabilities BEF5 (35,373) (28,090)
Group’s share of net liabilities of IR EE B FE A H B
jointly controlled entities ERAGETE (35,373) (28,090)
Revenue [ x| 5,692 19,517
Loss for the year RNEE B (7,283) (7,035)
Other comprehensive income for REEEMEEWE
the year = -
Group’s share of loss of jointly AREE (L TSI E S
controlled entities for the year NEE 7 518 (7,283) (7,035)
Group’s share of other REFEFE(L LRG| E
comprehensive income of jointly REEZ 2 EBE

controlled entities for the year = -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

25. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share
of losses of jointly controlled entities. The amount of
unrecognised share of losses, both for the year and
cumulatively, are as follows:

i
bt L
waim !
i)

PR ERAR Y RE

REREHER 2 Em @)

REBK I HEREEHKFIZEHEEES -
BUBRER N EEBERESERNANFE LR
W

2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Unrecognised share of result of jointly- B RESRRE(S t[E 122 5 B 52
controlled entity for the year RNEE 7 ¥EE (6,208) -
Accumulated unrecognised share of — ZEEUS R ME(S T [F 124
losses of jointly-controlled entity BRER (6,208) -
26. NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS 26. ¥FREBFTE
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Non-current deposits for JERENRT & FE -
— acquisition of properties, plantand ~ —BEEW¥ « HE RS
equipment (Note i) (BED 971,172 664,702
— acquisition of investment properties —BEEREME
(Note ii) (B i) 462,738 1,050,637
1,433,910 1,715,339

Notes:

0] The amounts represent deposits paid for the acquisition of
properties, plant and equipment, and the deposits will not be
realised within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the amounts were included in the non-
current assets.

(ii) The amounts represented deposits paid for acquisition of
investment properties situated in the PRC.

0) FORERBENE - BERREBEXN 2T
SRl EHRSPMAR AR 12AAR
TEEER - Bt - ZEREFAIERBDEE -

(i RIEERB BN BRI EMEE 2T
4o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

27. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 27. EREE
Know-how fee
HEARE
HK$'000
FAT
cosT s
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZTF—HF—H 3,605
Exchange adjustments I& i % 144
Disposals HE (2,304)
At 31 December 2010 and 2011 RZBE—EERZT——F
+—-A=+—H 1,445
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2010 R-ZZE—ZTF—H—H 2,983
Exchange adjustments T S E 70
Charge for the year REELH 696
Eliminated on disposals HER T (2,304)
At 31 December 2010 and 2011 RIE—ZEFR-_FT—F
+-A=t+—8 1,445
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2010 and 2011 RZBE—ZEER-T——F
+-A=+—8 -
Know-how was acquired from third parties, has finite ME=FWE s BXMNBEETEEAE
useful life and is amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 B - WiREREEN T F NN -

years.
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28.

PR ERAR Y RE

INVENTORIES 28. FE
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Raw materials Fxt 1,888,037 3,021,324
Work in progress EES 798,565 784,295
Finished goods Uk 239,526 217,609
2,926,128 4,023,228

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Group changed the use of certain of its inventory of
approximately HK$712,707,000 and licenced them to
the Licencee for licence fee income. Under the licence
agreement, the Licencee may use, consume and dispose
of the licenced inventory which include consumables and
stocks in trade. However, the Licencee is required to
replace and return the licenced inventory used, consumed
or disposed during the licence period to the Group at
the end of the licence period. Accordingly, the licenced
inventory are reclassified to other non-current assets (note
20).

HE_T——F+_A=+—HILFE "
REBRBEHEE TH712,707,0008 L7 E
WAR  BRREERBAEAZEEFE U
MEREBWA - BEREFRHR &
BREAER ERARLERECHEFS
ERREFRMRESEE - Al - WX
EFRBE RN BREAERNASEE
BENMREDHFR  RAXNHENREFER
FE Al RECRFESFHIEAR
i FEBNE E (FE20) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 —FE——F+ - A=+—HIFFZE

29. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 20. FREWE
Movements of properties held for development are as FERRYESSNOT
follows:
HK$'000
FA&T
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZTF—H—H 1,980,068
Exchange adjustments T S E 79,203
Additions NE 2,566,128
At 31 December 2010 R-Z—ZF+-_A=+—H
and 1 January 2011 r—ZE——F—AF—H 4,625,399
Exchange adjustments PE 5 2 209,159
Additions NE 4,842,812
Acquired from acquisition of subsidiary (note 39) Lk i — Rk B A 7 m L (Fi:E39) 404,228
Transfer to investment properties EER TG (854,235)
At 31 December 2011 R-_Z—F+-_A=+—H 9,227,363

184

Properties held for development are situated in the PRC
with medium-term leases and are stated at cost at 31
December 2011 and 2010.

Properties held for development which are expected to
be recovered after next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period are classified as current assets as it is
expected to be realised in the Group’s normal operating
cycle. Included in the amount are properties held for
development for sale of approximately HK$7,580,403,000
(2010: HK$4,625,399,000) that are expected to complete
after one year from the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
received the government grants of HK$168,499,000
for property development project in PRC. The amount
received has been deducted from the carrying amount of
properties held for development.

Annual Report 2011 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
T —FFH EELIEKER

R R _F-FFF+_A=+—
B BERVELNTE - ZFREOR
B WA

TEHR RS ML RE BRI RKI2
BRABREBENSERMEEDEARATD
BE REAAEHEAEBEELER
HANEER  JFEHELHFERDES
& #7,580,403,0008 T ( Z T — T F ¢
4,625,399,00078 7T ) TA BA A # 5 HARI 45 R
E AR —FRERE

HE-ZE——F+-_A=+—HLEE -
N5 B BE AR B Y 3 2 R 1A B W T & B
168,499,000 7T - S FHEHFEHED
FHEEEPR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR M s
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

30. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 30. HtMBEE
Trade and other receivables and prepayments EZRHMERERREMRER
and bills receivables BWEE
2011 2010
—2——5F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$000
TR FHT
Trade receivables e E TN 5,203,420 5,159,244
Advance to suppliers TEHE R FE 1,052,656 947,077
Prepayment and deposits BRRERES 981,017 947,868
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable — mJ:R[EIEEFR ([1ZEF ) 815,339 631,864
Land appreciation tax on pre-sale TAEMEZ Lith
properties EEF 123,297 -
Other receivables HAb FEUER K 238,376 272,458
8,414,105 7,958,511
The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days, REBGTEFEFP 2 EERARRA120
depending on the products sold, to its trade customers. A REMEENEDRME « KNikE A
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at HERALE - BSREERZERSTIOT

the end of the reporting period:

2011 2010
—E——F ZE—TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
0 -90 days 0£90H 3,923,013 4,190,710
91 - 180 days 91£2180H 1,223,439 907,357
Over 180 days 180H A 56,968 61,177
5,203,420 5,159,244
All bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days AEBARKEEREKY SRS BHELA
at the end of the reporting period. RIEHQOH Z I °
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30. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 30. HMtHMBEE®
Trade and other receivables and prepayments EZRHEMEREFRREANRER
and bills receivables (continued) EWEEE)

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit grading system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the board of directors
has delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for any
customers. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed every year. 85% (2010: 88%) of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have
the best credit scoring attributable under the credit
grading system used by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$779,943,000 (2010: HK$596,868,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss as the Group considers that
these debtors are financially stable and the management
has taken action to recover the outstanding balances.
The Directors are confident that these amounts are still
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. The average age of these receivables is
136 days (2010: 133 days).

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired at the reporting date:

TEBEWNERFEPA - AEBNRI{EAT
SHEGTHBEEEP 2 ERER &S
EEAGERERERENE,PEEREE
REREEME BEPZRERTISEF
R o 85% (=T —TF : 88%) 2HEBE
W RS e B sURE - WA EEETRA
ZERFAHEz &S ERTD -

RNEEE 5 MEWER R RE B 15 R B IR
o BEREEAT779,943,0008 T ( —F —
=4 1 596,868,000/ L) + MN¥kE HE L
EH - AEE W ERZ S RIAED AR
BEE REAATEERE  ZSEBA
BiEkEfE - BERECKIUNERERS
EREVTTE) - BEIRE - ZERIBEMAT A
Yersl o 7SR B 5 5% S5 SR EE AL MR A (R AR
Am o ZERWERRZ THERRR136H
(ZZ—ZFF :133H) -

o

RER  BHRERREZESREIRN
ZERER DA

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#&T BT

91-120 days 91%F120H 198,450 202,050
121-150 days 121£150H 330,121 260,305
151-180 days 151£180H 194,404 73,336
Over 180 days 180H A E 56,968 61,177
779,943 596,868
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30.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Trade and other receivables and prepayments
and bills receivables (continued)

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are
past due beyond 240 days because historical experience
is such that these receivables are generally not
recoverable. Allowance on trade receivables between 120
and 240 days are made based on estimated irrecoverable
amounts by reference to past default experience and
objective evidences of impairment determined by the
difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the estimate future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables,
the Group monitors any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivables since the credit was granted and up to
the end of the reporting period. The Directors considered
that the Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

30.

BRI P RE

Hith i &EE )
ESZRHEMEVRKRRAEEASRER
A ELAE )

BEEHBEREE2408 A £ IR —
WaSEWE - MK B ZERKERE
HIELBME - BRERN T 12022408 28 5
EUEER 2 £E - H2EBRARELRE
FIZEE T A E S AR - REZE
BEEREREERARA BEEN RN
Mt ARRERERER 2 518 -

HEEEZREIER 2 TIRE LR - BF
FRAREEEREHMEDRRAERR/L - K
SEEREHREERERERZEME
B-EERR AREUEEAEFEER
Rk - RRmZERZ T REFI# -

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIBREEZBE

2011 2010

—E2——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Balance at beginning of the year FHEEER 502,232 410,841
Exchange adjustments TEH 759 -

Impairment losses recognised on R RS ER R BB T8

receivables 56,315 108,164
Amounts written off as uncollectible s AUk B 2 FRIE - (16,773)
Balance at end of the year FREHR 559,306 502,232
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30.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
(continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of HK$559,306,000 (2010: HK$502,232,000)
which have either been placed under liquidation or in
severe financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables and bills
receivables are the following amounts denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the group
entities to which they relate:

30.

HtuBEE#)
REREHEZEH ()

RBREFOEERNEREZE S ERE
3K B K82 5559,306,0008 L (ZE—F
F 1 502,232,000/ 70) * ZERBAER
SR T 25018 - AEBRZELE
BRI A A AR IR o

B85 REMBRERALERERBRE TS
NEEBERERNEESUINEBEZ
TR

2011 2010

—EB——F —E-TF

Amount Amount

o TF

’000 ’000

Fr T
uss$ ETT 264,598 318,279
HK$ BT 815,275 1,345,469
Euro BT 3,602 160
JPY H 120,175 -

Bank balances and cash BITEBRES

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. At 31 December 2011,
the bank balances and deposits carry interest at the
prevailing market interest rate which range from 0.01% to
3.30% (2010: 0.01% to 1.26%) per annum.

Included in bank balances and cash are pledged bank
deposits of HK$133,245,000 (2010: HK$121,636,000) at
31 December 2011 which are pledged to banks to secure
short-term banking facilities of the Group.
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RZZB——F+-A=+—8H  RIT&EH
EH S BIEREMIRTTFR133,245,0008
T(ZZ—F4 : 121,636,00087T) * 2%
BERBITERDARITER - ERAE
EREARTRENERS -



LY

L
LLI

o
it
P

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR M s
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30. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 30. HtMBEEw)
Bank balances and cash (continued) RITEBRRESE)
At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had bank RIE——FN_E—EF+_A=1+—
balances and cash that were either not freely convertible B AEERATEHLRKBESZHBEINE
or were subject to exchange controls in the PRC, EHITER ZRTERERS SN A
amounting to approximately HK$2,933.4 million and 2,933,400,0007% 7t 1 3,609,800,000/% 7T, ©

HK$3,609.8 million, respectively.

Included in the bank balances and cash are the following RITEB LR SRE T NERTERA
amounts denominated in currencies other than the 2N EE NGB SHE 2 FRE -
functional currency of the group entities to which they
relate.
2011 2010
—E——F —EFF
Amount Amount
£ ©F
’000 ’000
F T
uss$ ETT 96,403 83,548
HK$ ABIT 611,760 673,339
Euro BT 4,006 2,814
JPY HIE 524 7,612
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31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31. {fTE€s®mT A
Liabilities
=N
2011 2010
—2——5F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHT
Interest rate swap contracts FRBERE A
- derivatives under hedge accounting  — LAY R & EHESIBR 2
PTAET A 13,761 64,332
Commodity forward contracts AmERAEL - 33,493
13,761 97,825
Analysed for reporting purposes as PEmEDTUT -
Current binE2) 13,761 47,070
Non-current IEE - 50,755
13,761 97,825
(@) Interest rate swap contracts under cash (a) BEREYHEBETIXREHS

flow hedges

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010, the Group used interest rate swap contracts
(net quarterly settlement) to minimise its exposure
to certain cash flow changes of its variable-rate
Hong Kong dollar bank borrowings by swapping
floating interest rates to fixed interest rates. The
terms of these interest rate swap contracts were
negotiated to match with those of the hedged
bank borrowings (i.e. same notional amount of
the derivatives match with principal amounts of
bank borrowings, same currency and interest rate
index). The Directors consider that the interest
rate swap contracts are highly effective hedging
instruments and have designated them as cash
flows hedging instruments for hedge accounting
purpose.
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31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31. {T4€@TIEHE#)
(continued)
(@) Interest rate swap contracts under cash (@) BREREHHEBETIXREHE
flow hedges (continued) KoE)
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Bz—_T——%+-_A=+—H
hedge was 95% to 116% (2010: 89% to 119%) IFEE - BREHhEAZR FEE
effective in hedging cash flow exposure to interest SRS REMS @ P A%
rate movements. Fair value gain of HK$50,571,000 E116% (T — T F : 89% &
(2010: loss of HK$44,088,000) for the year ended 119%) B - BE T ——F
31 December 2011 have been recognised in +ZA=F+—BIEFEAFEKE
other comprehensive income and accumulated 50,571,000 T( —Z—ZTF : [
in equity and are expected to be released to the 844,088,000/ 7T ) 7 H fh 2 F UL
consolidated income statement when the hedged HNERARAERR R - FEHY
interest expense was charged to profit or loss WA ERYSFERNEBIZANBER
quarterly. RAEWERED -
Included in bank borrowings as disclosed in note RIS RS R AL - BIEES3ATH
33 were bank loans of HK$866,667,000 (2010: BHRITEERFERSEYHPIE
HK$3,350,900,000) which were under cash flow TER1TE 7866,667,000/8 T (—F
hedges and the major terms of the interest rate —Z 4 : 3,350,900,000%7T) + i
swap contracts under cash flow hedges at the ZEBSREENBE T XRISEA
end of the reporting period are as follows: D2 FEHEFAT
Outstanding Notional Receive
contracts as at amount  Maturity floating Pay fixed
R B i R
Bz EH HE ZIHA FrCE R R ER
HK$°000
FHET
31 December 2011 866,667  Within 1 year HIBOR 2.66% t0 3.11%
WZE——F —FR EERITFAEFE 2.66EZE311E
+=—A=+—H
31 December 2010 1,423,100  Within 1 year HIBOR 2.34% to 3.88%
WZE—ZTF —FRN EBIRTTRIZERE 2.34E=%3.882
+=—A=+—H
1,927,800  Within 1 to 2 years HIBOR 2.66% to 4.04%
—EWFR EBIRITRZERE 2.662F4.042

PR ERAR Y RE
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31.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31.

(continued)

(b)

Commodity forward contracts not under
hedge accounting

At 31 December 2011, the Group did not have
outstanding commodity forward contract.

During the years ended 31 December 2010, the
Group entered into commodity forward contract
to hedge against part of the Group’s exposure
in copper price fluctuations. At the respective
maturity dates, the contracts are settled net in
cash with the issuers. The major terms of the
outstanding contracts at 31 December 2010 are as
follows:

At 31 December 2010

.....

BB ERAR P RE

TTE€®MI A ®)
(b) YU T EVIER2E M

BHEXN
RZZE——F+ZA=+—H &
SEWE AR BEREREL -

BE—TZFF+t_-_A=1+—HL
BFE AEEFUERERE
7)o B A EEAR RERE
Bk - REIHE - ZEFEH
HETANRSIEFEGEE - %F
RZZF-FF+-A=1t—HHERK
Mz AN TE2EFMT

R-Z—-ZTF+=-HA=+—H

Contract

amount

ERLE Commodity

Currency Quantity Maturity forward price

g% HE A AmEHE

uss$ Copper 200 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,350/metric tonne
T 20072 A S —T——%ZA—H REAWESIL0ETHE

us$ Copper 200 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,320/metric tonne
ET 2007 A SH ZT——%-A—H ZREANES320ETHE

Us$ Copper 200 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,335/metric tonne
ETT 200 A WS “T——F"HA—H REANE3IBETHE

uss$ Copper 200 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,380/metric tonne
T 20072 A S —T——F%ZA—H REAWESIBOETHE

us$ Copper 200 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,365/metric tonne
ET 20072 A SH ZT——%-A—H ZREANESI65EITHE

uss$ Copper 1,000 metric tonnes 1 February 2011 Sell at US$8,420/metric tonne
ETT 1,000 WA 3R “T——F-"HA—H RERANE420ETTHE

US$ Copper 1,000 metric tonnes 1 March 2011 Sell at US$8,900/metric tonne
T 1,000 A 3R —T——F%=A—H REAWES0ETHE

us$ Copper 1,000 metric tonnes 1 April 2011 Sell at US$8,800/metric tonne
ET 1,000 AW 8 ZT——HMA—H ZREANEB00ETTHE
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32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 32. S REMENESIRENEE

BILLS PAYABLES

2011 2010
—EB——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FBT
Trade payables Z S EMER 2,968,157 2,197,025
Accrued expenses FETEH 579,290 728,226
Payables for acquisition of properties, B - BiE LR EN
plant and equipment JEAS R IE 571,269 698,828
Receipt in advance TEU A 221,342 176,111
Other tax payables HAb IR 210,593 135,892
VAT payables FETISETR 145,577 87,525
Other payables E A EA R 326,926 345,278
5,023,154 4,368,885
The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables at RpEHEERAL  EFEAERRZE
the end of the reporting period: AT
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHT FAET
0-90 days 0—90H 2,191,413 1,658,076
91 - 180 days 91—180H 592,294 347,702
Over 180 days 180H A E 184,450 191,247
2,968,157 2,197,025
All bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days at REEMEENZRBEREE AIRE AR
the end of the reporting period. RIEAIOBZA °
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32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 32. E5REMENEZRENZE

BILLS PAYABLES (continued) (%)

Included in trade and other payables and bills payables B NEMEMERRENZERIETY
are the following amounts denominated in currencies NEE BRI EEAINEEETE
other than the functional currency of the group entities to A

which they relate:

2011 2010
—E——F TETE

Amount Amount

ot} S

’000 '000

Fr FIT

Uss$ E 113,456 114,122
HK$ &It 161,708 180,321
JPY = 391,462 947,961
Euro BT 817 341
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33. BANK BORROWINGS 33. BITEE
2011 2010

=== —F—FfF

HK$’000 HK$'000

T BT

Bank oans RITER 17,536,007 12,044,008

Trust receipt loans ERWIEE R 638,473 284,100

18,174,570 12,328,108

Carrying amounts repayable*: RERZREE"
On demand or within one year EERS N —FR 6,417,294 4,821,205
More than one year but not more than —%E A H BT EBBRE

two years 2,338,033 4,412,447
More than two years but not more than M4 LA H{E BB =4

three years 3,559,393 1,315,564
More than three years but not more ZFHETEBRRAT

than five years 5,859,850 1,778,892

18,174,570 12,328,108

On demand or within one year JEE RSN —F A 6,417,294 4,821,205
Carrying amount of bank borrowings /B RE B4R E HiEsT

that are not repayable within one year —FREBEHGIRENR

from the end of the reporting period B (& (B B REI B &)

but contain a repayment on demand 7 $R{TIEEREEE

clause (shown under current liabilities) 306,463 420,769

Amounts due within one year shown 7| &REEEZER—FR

under current liabilities EE A 6,723,757 5,241,974
Add: Amounts under non-current e EREAE s HIE
liabilities 11,450,813 7,086,134

18,174,570 12,328,108

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set * R SRR E R R WA EE B EIR A -
out in the loan agreements.
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33.

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)
The bank borrowings are unsecured and bear interest at
market rates.

Included in the above bank borrowings are the fixed-
rate bank borrowings of HK$689,947,000 (2010:
HK$760,629,000) at 31 December 2011 which are
repayable within five year from the end of the reporting
period. The fixed-rate bank borrowings carry interest ranging
from 5.31% to 7.93% (2010: 1.22% to 5.4%) per annum.

The rest of the bank borrowings are variable-
rate borrowings which carry interest ranging from
HIBOR+0.54% to HIBOR+1.9% (2010: HIBOR+0.4% to
HIBOR+2%) per annum.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank
borrowings are as follows:

33.

BRI P RE

RITEE®E)
SIS AEIEM  WIRTISFIR S -

A\—TE——F+-F=+—H b7
EREBERHREHEERE BRTASE
EiE 2 F B8R 1T 8 B 689,947,000/ T
T—F4F : 760,629,000/ 7T) © F LR
BEEFERNT531EER7.BENE(Z
T—4E 1 22@BEL4E) o

leéﬁﬁngt%
I miE @ A

BRTIRITEERZEEE  FEENTR
TRIZEFREN0.54E ZRITRZEFR B9
E(ZZ—%2F : RITAEFREN04ESE
RITRIZEIFBIN2E )T o

ARERITEEZERNE(EEREH
AR

2011 2010
—2——F T TF

Effective interest rates BB =
Fixed-rate borrowings EREE 5.31% to 7.93% 1.22% 10 5.4%
531E £7.93E 1222 £ 54
Variable-rate borrowings FREE 0.90% to0 6.56% 0.82% t0 2.49%
0.90E £ 6.56Z 0.82F = 2.49

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

RITIEEBETIASE TR 2 B4
EREAINEEHEZ S

2011 2010

—E——F TETE

Amount Amount

X} TR

’000 ‘000

T T
uss$ EVI 122,438 70,476
HK$ BT 14,895,082 8,450,855
JPY H 72,000 162,995
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION 34. EZEHIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) TRARNREHERUABNRESH[AD T
recognised and movements thereon during the current WA TEEIEREAE(EE)ARE S
and prior reporting periods: 2 EEp

Undistributed

Accelerated Write-down  Revaluation profits

tax Tax of of Hedging ofan

depreciation losses inventories  properties instruments  associate Total
-BHELT

IEBBHE REER BEME NREM IR ZRARER ait
HK§000  HK000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKBOO0  HKBOOO  HKS000
TEL THTL TEL TEL THL TEL TEL

At1 January 2010 RZZ-ZF-5-H 41690 (12522) (15,185) 24,586 (15,650) - 22919
Exchange aojustments [E3F L 70 - - - - - 70
(Credi) charge to TERGANERL

consolidated income (BE)x

statement for the year (Bzt12)

(Note 12) (599 - (1,8%9) 17208 - 7007 21,997
Credittoequity forthe year 3 ARFE RS - - - - (8379 - (8379
Released to consolidated ~ BRAFERANER

income statement

for the year - - - - 18,443 - 18443
Utlised during the year TEEEHA - - : - - (7.227) 7.227)

At 31 December 2010 RZZ-%%

T-A=t-H 41,162 (12,622) (17,023) 4,792 (5,580) - 47,829
Exchange adjustments [E3E 5 2480 - - 4205 - - 6,705
(Credit) charge to REERANGRY
consolidated income (BB
statement for the year (Bst12)
(Note 12) 2299 - (2910 100217 - 9,224 104,232
Charged to equity NErEERR
for the year - - - - 3310 - 3310
Utiised during the year TEERHA - - - - - (9,204) (9,224)
At 31 December 2011 RoE——F
T-A=t-H 41343 (12522 (19,933) 146,234 (2.270) - 152,852
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34.

198

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

For the purposes of the presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

34.

ERERIE ()
ETELTHAELERE EREGAMBR
RESTRBAMIELIE - UTARZE
S TS TE 45 £ PR VE B 75 £ 9R ) FR IR B R 1
DA -

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

Amount Amount

| k|

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH&xT BT
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEAE 167,194 73,378
Deferred tax assets IRIEFT IR E B (14,342) (25,549)
152,852 47,829

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, a withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 amounting
to HK$6,873,785,000 (2010: HK$4,348,959,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

At 31 December 2011, deferred tax assets of (i)
approximately HK$12,522,000 (2010: HK$12,522,000)
in relation to unused tax losses; (ii) approximately
HK$19,993,000 (2010: HK$17,023,000) in relation
to write-down of inventories and (iii) approximately
HK$2,270,000 (2010: HK$5,580,000) in relation to loss
on cash flow hedge recognised in hedging reserve have
been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position.
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FPRCEMBRERE BZTTN\F
—A—H - BRaRhERNHEA R
H A B E 25 1 i B R 2 BB Bk E N
o RRARIZHBWNBARIE ST )\F
—A— BRI R EL 2B
Z ¥ 56,873,785,0008 L ( Z T —ZF ¢
4,348,959,000% 7T ) + AN KB R B ZIE
ERMIBRGE MEREIELRE  RER
AEEETHEOERERE o N[ BA
PARERF =TS A e e A A R A SR o

R—_EBE——F+_A=+—8 1A
BABDRABRESBEZEECHNBEELN
12,522,000/ T (= Z —Z4F : 12,522,000
I ¢ (i)VEEMORF & 2 IEERRIBE A EL
19,993,000/ 7 (ZE —Z4F : 17,023,000
BIT) ¢ KRB R LR REERR ZIRER
SEREE R IEE E 42,270,000/
TL(ZF—FF : 5,580,000/ 7T) ERAREE
Eire AR R IR o
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 34. EZEMEw)
At 31 December 2011, the Group has not recognised R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H KA&EHHF
deferred tax assets arising from tax losses amounting to AEREERBEE  RAAEEEG
approximately HK$369,029,000 (2010: HK$305,289,000) 5 E#47369,029,000 B L (= —F F :
due to the unpredictability of the future profit streams. 305,289,000/8 7T ) 2 B IAE EFTE £ 2
All tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. The RACH M B o 2 20F 18 18 0] MR Bl 4
Group also has no unrecognised deferred tax assets in B oo AN REB T E R E PR P R
2011 (2010: HK$1,623,000) in relation to loss on cash R EEY EARARELEFIEE
flow hedge recognised in hedging reserve due to the E(ZZT—ZF :1,623,000871) - RAA
unpredictability of future profit streams. HORTERT AR ST R
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. BA
Number Share
of shares capital
R BE [
HK$'000
FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE0A0B T TR
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2010, 31 December e
2010 and 31 December 2011 —E-EF+-A=+—HK
—Z——%+=-A=+—H 1,200,000,000 120,000
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 35. BA&#®)
Number of shares Share capital
ROEE BRA
2011 2010 2011 2010

—B——F —ET-TF =—B—-H "—T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHT
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
At beginning of the year PAFA]) 849,497,222 344,739,046 84,950 84,474
Exercise of share options  17{F 18 5t B A% HE
(see Note 37) (RKIE37) 4,474,000 4,670,000 447 467
Exercise of warrants (see  77{# 2B A%
Note 36) (RKIEE36) 695,542 88,176 70 9
At end of the year NG 854,666,764 849,497,222 85,467 84,950
36. WARRANTS 36. RARER
On 2 March 2010, a bonus issue of warrants (“Warrants”) RZTE—ZTF=RA=H " ARFEREN
to the shareholders of the Company on the basis of RZZE-—TFMNAZ+NARBINEARFR
1 warrant for every 10 shares held by shareholders of Rz REBEITALFIRAREZ ([ SRR
the Company whose names appear on the register #l) BEEREHETRROER —HR
of members of the Company on 26 April 2010, was BEHERE o E 1% 84,473,041 AR #E 5 1
proposed. Consequently, 84,473,904 Warrants were BT RERREEE T EBEEAER -
issued, conferring rights to the holders of the Warrants AR ZE-—EFRARARE-_Z—_F
from any time on 5 May 2010 up to 31 October 2012 TA=+—H(REEEMB) ARERZY
(ooth days inclusive) to subscribe for up to an aggregate FREBEGRRNDA0E T (A] FULAR) &
of 84,473,904 shares of the Company at an initial % RIS 84,473,904 AR R AIMRAD A
subscription price of HK$40 per share (subject to HIREEEE 71 4)3,378,956,000/8 7T °

adjustment), representing an aggregate subscription price
of approximately HK$3,378,956,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36.

37.

WARRANTS (continued)

The fair value of equity component of the Warrants was
amounted to HK$675,791,000 based on the quoted
price of the Warrants at the first day of their trading on the
Stock Exchange and the amount was transferred from
retained profits to warrant reserve as a bonus issue of
warrants.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 695,542
(2010: 88,176) new shares of the Company were
issued on exercise of the Warrants. Exercise in full
of the remaining outstanding Warrants would, under
the present capital structure, result in the receipt by
the Company of approximately HK$3,347,607,000
(2010:HK$3,375,429,000) in subscription monies and the
issue of 83,690,186 (2010: 84,385,728) new shares of
the Company.

SHARE OPTIONS
(@) Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company

The Company adopted its first share option
scheme on 11 May 1998, and such share option
scheme was terminated upon the adoption of its
second share option scheme (2002 Scheme”) on
2 July 2002 for the duration of 10 years. In view
of the changes to the Listing Rules, a new share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) was approved by
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 23
March 2009. The 2002 Scheme was accordingly
terminated on the same day without affecting
the rights of holders of any options granted and
outstanding under the 2002 Scheme.

=)
ma

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

PR ERAR Y RE

AREREz)
REEE IS D>D2ATER
675,791,000/ 7 « REERFTE ER S A%
RREEZREET  Z2EARBEF
ERERRETER  (ERLARRAEE
BT o

B2 Z——F+_A=+—8BL*F
E AR RBRREETEMS T
695542 (ZF — =4 : 88,176/% ) &
RAEF By - BEBBRITRALE 20
TEBRTERITERREFT HEBRR
&) U B 3,347,607,00078 T ( =T — &
3,375429,000 8 71 ) RE & 7 R 17T
83,690,186 % (= Z — T 4 : 84,385,728
P& AN RIFTRRD -

ErBERE
(@) AorFAESELERETS

ARRBR—NANANFRA+T—HIK
MEEEECERESE - HRZ
BEBREFEN BT _FLH
“HERSE _ERHTF2ER
B EI([ — 2T ZF5t8 Dif
b - AN EWARR 2% - AR
ARRER-_ZETENF=A=-+=
HAMZ AR ABRRERIARE L4t
M — IR E B ST O R B ([ %5
gll) o —TE_FFFEITFELMR
RAKIE T _FFFEET
ERERERERTTERZ BB
BFAAZBENETZEZE
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 37. BERBRE®)
(@) Employees’ share option scheme of the (a EATEEELERESE
Company (continued) (&)

Under the Scheme which is valid for a period of
ten years, the board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, grant options to subscribe
for shares in the Company to eligible participants
(“Eligible Participants”) who contribute to the long
term growth and profitability of the Company.
Eligible Participants include (i) any employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interests (“Invested Entity”),
including any executive director of the Company,
any of such subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (ii)
any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier
of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any shareholder
of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and (vi) any person or entity who from time to time
determined by the Board as having contributed or
may contribute to the development and growth of
the Group based on his or its performance and/
or years of service, or is regarded as valuable
resources of the Group based on his/its working
experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors. The subscription price for the
Company’s shares shall be a price at least equal to
the highest of the nominal value of the Company’s
shares, the average of the closing prices of the
Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of an offer of the grant of the options and
the closing price of the Company’s shares quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the date of an offer
of the grant of the options. The options must be
taken up within 28 business days from the date of
grant upon payment of HK$1 and are exercisable
over a period to be determined and notified by
the Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence from the date of acceptance of the
offer of the grant of the options but shall end in
any event not later than ten years from the date of
adoption of the Scheme.
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 37. BERBRE®)
(@) Employees’ share option scheme of the (@ ALFEEELEREE
Company (continued) (%)

The total number of the Company’s shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group (excluding options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Group) must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at the date of adoption of
the Scheme. The limit on the number of the
Company’s shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group must not exceed 30% of
the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
The total number of the Company’s shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each grantee (including both exercised
and outstanding options) under the Scheme or
other schemes of the Group in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant must not exceed
1% of the Company’s shares in issue at the date
of grant unless approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.

In accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme
and the Scheme, share options issued by the
Company vest at the date of grant.

During the year, the share options under the
Scheme were granted on 21 March 2011 and
the estimate fair values of the share options are
approximately HK$279,054,000.

As at the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 28,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 3.28% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

ERIEZET 8 R AR B HAb st
EIFMERTRE 2 BEERECT
BIEREZAT S R A S B A
Bl Z IGREB KR 2 BBk E)
BT M Al BT 2 AR ARG 2
- AHTBBBANRRIEZ
FEIBEE ETRH10% - BR
BT 8l R A S B E A E b ET ST
FEREMRITEREFITEZE
FRERERI TR M Al BT 2 A AT
RDEEREE - NMEHBEMBAARART
BB BTRD380% - REEF A
BRI+ A A - FREZ
Bl AEE AR EMET SR TS
ARAZBLEEREBRERTE
KM RITE 2 BERERE) EITE
MmETRETEITZARTRMN LR
- TMEBBAARNRELASE
BATRD1% + BRIEEARDRIRE
RERREAEHAE - BITER o

RE-_FT_FirEI Rkt 8215
R ARBAEITZELBERER
R A MRS -

FA - ZEEETELEBRER
ZE-—F=AZ+—HEH -
ZEBRBERENATEOR
279,054,000/ 7T °

BEARFREH - ZFHEETAT
BEITH) 1) B2 28,000,000/
HERARTZEITAAKI3.28%
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 37. BERBRE®)
(@) Employees’ share option scheme of the (@ AXAFEEELXERESE
Company (continued) (%)
A summary of the movements of the number of FRN - BT -FEHEIRZEEIE
share options under the 2002 Scheme and the T ELEFESESITnT
Scheme for the year is as follows:
Balance at
31 December
Balance at 2010 and Granted Balanceat  Exercise
1 January 1 January during Cancelled/ 31 December price
Date of grant 2010 Exercised 2011 theyear  Exercised Lapsed 2011 pershare Exercisable period
R-Z-2%
tZA=t-H RZ%--§
K-%8-%f% R-%--% Bif#/ +=A=t-A
REAH —-A-AfEe B -A-RAMge ERR Bl d %% hes  BRORE RS
Under 2002 Scheme
ZBRCEHE
Granted to directors
RPEZ
11 October 2002 3914600  (1,8750000 2,089,600 - (2,039,600 - - HK$3.74 15 October 2002 to 2 July 2012
(Notei)
—EE-EtAtop 374 —FE-FTATRAZ
—E-ZE AR
Granted to employees
RTES
11 October 2002 5229400 (27950000 2434400 - (2434400 - - HK$3.74 15 October 2002 to 2 July 2012
(Notei)
ZRE-ETAT-B 374%n —TIZETATRAR
—E-ZE AR
Under the Scheme
EAE |
Granted to directors
RTEZ
21 March 2011 - - - 15,800,000 - - 15800000  HK$40.70 21 March 2011 to 22 March 2019
(Note
—§-——F=A-1-R 070k —F-—5=f-1-R%
ZE-NEZ AR ()
Granted to employees
RTES
21 March 2011 - - - 12,200,000 - - 12200000 HK$40.70 21 March 2011 to 22 March 2019
(Note
—§-——F=A-1-R 070k —F-—5=f-1-R%
ZE-NEZ AR ()
9,144,000 (4,670,000) 4474000 28,000,000 4,474,000) - 28,000,000
Exercisable at the
end of the year
RERT TR - 4,474,000 7,000,000



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a)

Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company (continued)
Notes:

(i) The share options under 2002 Scheme were granted
on 11 October 2002 at an exercise price of HK$3.74
per share. These options are exercisable during the
period from 15 October 2002 to 2 July 2012.

(ii) The share options under the Scheme were granted
on 21 March 2011 at an exercise price of HK$40.70
per share. 25% of the total share options are vested
immediately at the date of grant. The remaining 75%
will be splited evenly into three lots and will be vested
at 21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. The closing price of
the Company’s shares immediately before the date of
grant was HK$39.55.

In respect of the share options exercised during
the year, the weighted average closing prices
of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately
before the exercise dates was HK$42.80 (2010:
HK$35.79).

The fair values of share options under the Scheme
were calculated using The Black-Scholes pricing

=)
ma
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37. BELABERE=)
(@ XAFEEELBERESE
(%)
i -

(i) ZET-FHEETELBERER
ZET-F+A+—BELE 17
BAERITIET - ZSEBABR
EAR-ZTE-_F+A+AAE=
T4+ A= HEHRTE -

(ii) ZEtEE T EEBRER T ——
FZAZ+—BEE  TEERE
f&40.70%8 T - BEBRERTE 2
5% NEHBHEESEE - 2 T
5% N B=HE  ARIR=E
——F  ZE-=FRZZT—NF
ZAZ+—BRE - EERHEH
Al — B AR GBI 89 1T B R39.55
BIT ©

RERNITEHELERENS @ B
BEUFEAHAAMEARS AEER
FTFTsR AR AR T E A
42,80 L (— T — T4 : 35.79/%

JL) °

ZEER T EEBREQFERE
BhR—REERAAE - %

model. The inputs into the model were as follows: B R ASIRINT -

2011 2010

—E——fF —T-TF

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Weighted average share price I RRE HK$40.68 N/A
40.687& 7T TNER
Exercise price 1B HK$40.70 N/A
40.7038 7T TNER
Expected volatility TEERR IR 33.03% N/A
33.03% NE A
Expected life TEAAF A 5.3 to 6.3 years N/A
5.3%6.3F TNER
Risk-free rate EIE T P 1.87% to 2.14% N/A
1.87EZE2.14E TNER
Expected dividend yield TEEIR B X 3.12% to 3.31% N/A
3.12EZ331E NE A
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 37. BERBRE®)
(@) Employees’ share option scheme of the (@ ALFEEELEREE
Company (continued) (%)

(b)

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price
over the previous one year. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted, based
on management’s best estimate, for the effects
of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
HK$167,039,000 for the year ended 31 December
2011 (2010: nil) in relation to share options granted
by the Company under the Scheme.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been
used to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC
The 2002 Elec & Eltek Employees’ Share Option
Scheme (the “2002 EEIC Scheme”) which was
adopted from 12 November 2002 for the duration
of 5 years, had been terminated in November
2007 without affecting the rights of holders of any
options granted and outstanding under the 2002
EEIC Scheme.
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 37. BERBRE®)
(b) Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC (b) EEICEEEtERETE(Z)
(continued)

Since 1997, EEIC has had in place share option
schemes to acknowledge the contributions of and
to motivate employees to contribute to EEIC and
its subsidiaries (“EEIC Group”). With the expiration
of the 2002 EEIC Scheme in 2007, the directors of
EEIC wished to have in place a new share option
scheme to replace the expired 2002 EEIC Scheme
for the purpose of providing an opportunity for
employees who have contributed significantly to
the growth and performance of the EEIC Group to
participate in the equity of EEIC so as to motivate
them to greater dedication, loyalty and higher
standards of performance, and to give recognition
to past contributions and services as well as to
align the interests of employees with the interests
of shareholders.

The 2008 Elec & Eltek Employees’ Share Option
Scheme (the “2008 EEIC Scheme”) was approved
by the shareholders of EEIC at the extraordinary
general meeting of EEIC held on 21 April 2008
and was adopted and took effect from 9 May
2008 upon approval by the shareholders of the
Company.

The 2008 EEIC Scheme which shall be
administered by the committee of directors of
EEIC as authorised by EEIC’s directors, is open to
full-time employees and directors of any company
within EEIC and its subsidiaries, the parent group
and of an associated company of EEIC, subject to
certain conditions being satisfied.

B— NN EFi  EEICRIZEE
BREE WEEREBIES A
EEICK EME AT ([EEICEE E
BB - R T T ZFEEICHE
R-TTLFER  EEICEZEE
BB ERAERT S - LIRE
Bz —ET _FEEICFTE - §&
MY AEEICEEIER REEFLE
RERZBERHKS - 2HEFIC
iR VEHB S E B
RARRBHESKTRR  HESE
BENBBEBRBELERE - UKk
&1 B |2k BLRR R F 251 4A -

ZEEN\FRNEZEREELER
EEEI([ ZZZ \FEEICETE DR
—ZTTN\EFA =+ — B LEEICHK
RAEEICIR R AFRI A& E#ER
W WRARRIRRIEBEN =T
T NFRANBRER -

ZE2Z N\FEEICFH E|REEICEE &
B CEEICESZE8®ERE  WER
AETHET - AMAEEICKE T A
REIREWBAR - BAREER
EEICEtE ARz 2 REERESFS
o
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 37. BERBRE®)
(b) Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC (b) EEICEEELERESE %)
(continued)

The 2008 EEIC Scheme entitles the option holders
to exercise their options and subscribe for new
ordinary shares in EEIC either at an “Exercise
Price”, which equals to the average of the last
dealt prices for an EEIC share for a period of 5
consecutive market days immediately prior to
the relevant date of grant, or at a discount to the
Exercise Price as defined earlier, whereby the
discount shall not exceed 20% of the Exercise
Price.

Options granted at the Exercise Price or discount
to the Exercise Price is exercisable after the first
or second anniversary respectively of the date of
grant and expiring on the fifth anniversary of the
date of grant.

The duration of the 2008 EEIC Scheme is 10
years and the total number of shares in EEIC
that may be issued shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of EEIC shares in issue as at the
adoption date or subject to certain conditions
being satisfied, 156% of the total issued shares of
EEIC excluding treasury shares from time to time.
The total number of EEIC shares issued and to be
issued upon the exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the total number of EEIC shares
in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, there is no
EEIC shares available for issue under the 2008
EEIC Scheme.

Share options may be accepted within 30 days
after the relevant date of grant accompanied
by payment of US$1.00 (or its equivalent) as
consideration by the participants, but the grant of
share options do not confer rights on the option
holders to any dividend entitlement or to vote at
any shareholders’ meeting.
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37.
(b)

Annual Report 2011 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 37. BEBRE®
Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC (b) EEICEEEXLBEREE (2
(continued)
In accordance with the terms of the 2002 EEIC BIE—ZEE - FEEICHE N =TT
Scheme and the 2008 EEIC Scheme, share options J\EFEEICETEIAI & - EEICETTHY
issued by EEIC vest over five years from the date of BABREAR L AR AFTA
grant. BE .
There was no share options granted under the B —ZZ \FEEICFT & 549 D/{;K
2008 EEIC Scheme since its adoption. However, MEELERERE ST NF
there are outstanding share options under the 2002 EEICET &85 - A - MR ABIR
EEIC Scheme and the summary of the movements B -TE - FEECHERE 2 Hk
of outstanding share options under the 2002 EEIC TRELERE FATET_F
Scheme for the year is as follows: EEICFTEIIB T M ARTTE 2 BELER
7 EEHBRENT ¢
Balance at
31 December
Balance at 2010and Balance at Exercise
1January Canceled/  1January Cancelled/ 31 December price
Date of rant M Exercised lapsed 0 Erercised lapsed MM pershare  Exerisableperiod
R=B-%%
t=A=t-H R-F—-£
R-E-2F k-5—-% T-A=1-H
RiLAH —-f-BHLEs B BRE/AN  -A-RiEHR BT EEE/AX hes  SRAEE GRS
Granted o dirctors of EEIC
RFECEZ
24 dne 2015 360280 B850 - - - - S USR 26Nowmeer 200602
Mey 2010
(Note)
“EEREAACTEA 2NEL ZFENET-ACR
RE-3-%F1A
A )
Grantedto employess
RTEE
24 4re206 438400 BT 520 - - - S USRB 26Noemer2008
1024 Mey 2010
(Note)
ZERRERACTRA 2BFET ZEEET-ASTR
RE-2-3F1f
ZHIAME)
29Sepienber 2005 120000 ooy B0y - - - - US55 Seplemter 206
{04 Seplemter 2010
MNoted)
ZETRENACTAR 275%F T TEEAENARAZCE
—ZENAMA ()
12 Decermoer 2006 731000 B30 £0000 316100 2300 8100 - USS24  13Nowemoer 2008
t0 12 November 2011
(Notei)
ZEENETCATCR 25T ZTE)\ET-R
e
t-At+zR
(Wi
912820 M0 (105200 316100 P30 8100 -
Exercisable at the end of the
year
RERIFR - 316,100 -
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37.
(b)

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

(continued)
Notes:  The interests in share options arise by virtue of:

0] 4,055,000 share options accepted by the Directors and
5,745,000 share options accepted by the employees
of the Group on 24 June 2005, and would entitle
the relevant directors and employees to subscribe
for shares in EEIC at an adjusted subscription price
of US$2.033 per share after the 1 for 5 bonus issue
effected by EEIC on 13 October 2005 (“Bonus Issue”).
The share options are exercisable in whole or in part
at the staggered manner within 5 option periods,
commencing on 26 November 2006, 26 November
2007, 26 November 2008, 26 November 2009 and
26 March 2010 respectively and all ending on 24 May
2010.

(ii) 150,000 share options accepted by the independent
non-executive directors of EEIC on 29 September
2005, would entitle the relevant directors to subscribe
for shares in EEIC at an adjusted subscription price
of US$2.375 per share after the Bonus Issue. The
share options are exercisable in whole or in part
at the staggered manner within 5 option periods,
commencing on 5 September 2006, 5 September
2007, 5 September 2008, 5 September 2010 and 5
July 2011 respectively and all ending on 4 September
2010.

(iii) 1,020,000 share options accepted by full-time
employees of EEIC and its subsidiaries on 12 December
2006, which would entitle the relevant employees to
subscribe for shares in EEIC at a subscription price of
US$2.400 per share. The share options are exercisable
in whole or in part at the staggered manner within 4
option periods, commencing on 13 November 2008,
13 November 2009, 13 November 2010 and 13
September 2011, respectively, and all ending on 12
November 2011.

In respect of the share options exercised during
the year, the weighted average closing prices of
EEIC’s shares quoted on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited on the five trading days
immediately before the various exercise dates was
US$3.23 (2010: US$2.76).

The Group recognised the total expense of
approximately HK$8,000 (2010: HK$303,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2011 in relation to
the share options granted by EEIC.
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(b) EEICEESEXBERES(ZE)

e : ZEELEBRERSAUATIRE

A

0] REHSEDERE_STRAF A
ZtTMABESKALEEED S
# 44,055,000 & 5,745,000 &
SEREmMER - ZSELBRE
T AEBESRIESEF - REEIC
R-TERF+A+=BEZ A
EREEITHAAREAT (AIREAT])
BRI A EREESR2.033E T
RIBEEICHK ) - EXBRES R
BEZZEERF+—AZ+RHE =
TR E+—H- X H - 2T
NE+—AZ+AREB ZTThF
+—AZF+RARZZE—ZTF=
A-t+ABREE-_ZT-—ZTFHA
—+B LR EEEERESRER
DERITERPHERHS -

(i REEBEENREECE I IENITE
ERETAFAATNARER
150,00017 8 S FE R E M A © %
ZSEEBRER TAEBESERN
RAIREITRIZEHERBEER
2.375% JURIBEEICAR 1 » B
BUSRBE=TETNFALARAB -
T EFNARAR - ZETNF
NARR - ZZ-TFAARAR
—E——F+tARAARE-ZT—F
FAAMA 1T EE SRR R
R BRITERFRER LD ©

(i) 5B S IR HE A 2 BN EEIC K
HIfE AR 2HEER -TT X F
+= A+ = A % 41,020,00015 &
FIERAEMA - 2 ELERE
BYEBEEESN ZREEER
2.400% T RBEEEICR D - BRI
AR =TT N \E+—A+=
B ZTEAF+—A+=A =
T—ZF+—A+=AR=F——
ENA+=BRE-_T——F+—
A+ = B 1 PO {E 2 5k B A i ER R
DERITEEIHER IS -

MERNTENELEREMS -
EEICRR MM B ZE/TE B HRT A
AR S BEMINHEFHFZZHBR
A E TR 2 NiE T YT E £3.23
EL(ZE—FF 1 2.76%7T) °

AREFREBEE-_T——F+_A
=t+—HIEFEREEICKRH 2B %
BB R 48,0008 T (— T —=
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of
KLHL

The share option scheme of KLHL (the “KLHL
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of
KLHL and the shareholders of the Company on
18 May 2007 and 25 June 2007 respectively.
The KLHL Scheme has been taken effect after
obtaining the approval from the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2007.

The KLHL Scheme would be valid for a period
of 10 years. The directors of KLHL may, at its
discretion, grant options to subscribe for shares
in KLHL to eligible participants who contribute to
the long-term growth and profitability of KLHL and
include (i) any employee or proposed employee
(whether full-time or part-time and including any
executive director), consultants or advisers of or to
KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“KLHL’s
Invested Entity”) in which KLHL and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “KLHL Group”)
hold an equity interest; (ii) any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any
KLHL'’s Invested Entity; (i) any supplier of goods
or services to any member of the KLHL Group or
any KLHL’s Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of
the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity;
(v) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
KLHL Group or any KLHL's Invested Entity; and
(vi) any shareholder of any member of the KLHL
Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by any member of the
KLHL Group or any KLHL'’s Invested Entity.

.....
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(c)
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AR—_ZFTLFRATNAR=
BTAF A THEERNRE
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EHREERE BT B
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HEAHBERERRREREREA
MBEBBIZ AL BIE)EEEE
R« EATAME AR (G s
EIREE ) ST ARERERE S
BEZEE([EEEEREEER
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wEBAFEE  BeEEaniTe
F) - HABEMKER  ()EEE
[E1R - EATEIFE A B sk E RS
BERSEEEE AN TES
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EEEEREEEMAKE AR KT
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37.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of
KLHL (continued)

The subscription price of KLHL'’s share in respect
of any option granted under the KLHL Scheme
must be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares of KLHL as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the option, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares of KLHL
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (i)
the nominal value of the shares of KLHL.

The option may be accepted by a participant within
28 days from the date of the offer for the grant of
the option upon the payment of a consideration
of HK$1. An option may be exercised at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by
the directors of KLHL to each grantee, and in the
absence of such determination, from the date
upon which the offer for the grant of the option
is accepted but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. The directors of KLHL may, at their
absolute discretion, fix any minimum period for
which an option must be held, any performance
targets that must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled before the options
can be exercised upon the grant of an option to a
participant.
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 37. BRBRE®)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of
KLHL (continued)

The total number of shares of KLHL which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the KLHL Scheme and any other
share option scheme of KLHL (excluding, for this
purpose, options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of
KLHL in issue as at the date of approval of the
KLHL Scheme.

The maximum number of shares of KLHL which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
KLHL Scheme and any other share option scheme
of KLHL must not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of KLHL from time to time.

The total number of shares of KLHL issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including both exercised and outstanding options)
to each participant in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the share capital of KLHL then
in issue unless approved by the shareholders of
KLHL and the Company in general meetings.

During the year, the share options were granted on
21 March 2011 and the estimate fair values of the
share options are approximately HK$114,945,000.

As at the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares of KLHL available for issue
under the KLHL Scheme is 100,000,000 shares,
representing approximately 3.33% of the issued
share capital of KLHL.

(c)

ZHEEERESE CBREST
gle)

REBZEREBRECBRETE X
2B TE B R T ) E A B S R A
AEIRMZ A BB AE (Bl
mE T ERRREERERELE
gt &) KRR AR A
BB 2 IERERBZ B
B BITEEA TRITZEE
BERRM B X GEBRE
ERERNEEEREERE LR
BT ZEHCHITRNAR L
10% °

REBZERERECBRETE X
J2 B T8 B R ) E A B S BB A
sHEIPT AR M ARITERAFT
B2 @ BT ] T 39T
EEREERRNEE RZTE
HBEERERTR 2 2 BITRA
30% °

REM+—EABARZ2EE
BREZEBEBERE(BESITER
RITEEESE B ) BT M E 3%
TRBETRITEERERBN &
g THEARERERERDH
TR Z1% » BRIFREERER
RARBZBRIERA S AR
1ER °

FRN - EBABRER_ZE—F=
A=+—B8E  ZSELERE
K EF A FE 4 A 114,945,000
ﬁ: °

BEATHAS BEREERESL
AT & T A T RITHRER
JE A% 7 #4222 100,000,000 % -
HMERERTREEBRRALN
3.33% °
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 37.
(c) Employees’ share option scheme of
KLHL (continued)
A summary of the movements of the number of
share options under the KLHL Scheme for the

BEBREZ)
(c) BEBEBEWESELERES
Bl#)

FA - BEREBRE BT S
ATz @rBERES R ZFRdm

year is as follows: N
Balance Balance
at Granted at Exercise
1 January during Cancelled/ 31 December price
Date of grant 2011 the year Lapsed 2011 per share Exercisable period
R=B--F
R=B--% BHE#/ t=A=t-H
REHAH —-B-RHEH FRRH %% igs BRORE TEH
Granted to directors of KLHL
RTEEEBREE
21 March 2011 - 64,000,000 - 64,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to
17 May 2017 (note)
—T-—5=f=t-H 654%T —ET-—F=A-T-HZ
ZE-tERATER
(Fi3)
Granted to employees
RTER
21 March 2011 - 36,000,000 - 36,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to
17 May 2017 (note)
ZZ——5=A=1-A 6548 —F-—FZR-1-HZF
“E-tFRATLAN)
- 100,000,000 - 100,000,000
Exercisable at the end
of the year
RERT T - 25,000,000

Note:  25% of the total share options are vested immediately
at the date of grant. The remaining 75% will be splited
evenly into three lots and will be vested at 21 March
2012, 2013 and 2014. The closing price of KLHL
shares immediately before the date of grant was
HK$6.3.
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of
KLHL (continued)

These fair values are calculated using The Black-
Scholes option pricing model. The inputs into the

.....

BB ERAR Y RE

37. BREBERE®
(c) BEBEERESELERES
8l#)
ZEATEREN S % — L
BEEERSE - ZEANH AR

model were as follows: BT
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$ HK$
BT I
Weighted average share price R #H B EARghnie HK$6.46 N/A
on the date of grant FRR(E 6.4678 7T T EA
Exercise price TEE HK$6.54 N/A
6.5478 T TE A
Expected volatility TEERR 1R 34.42% N/A
34.42% TiEA
Expected life TE A HA 4.1 to 5.1 years N/A
41E51F T EA
Risk-free rate 42 [ o FI R 1.49% to 1.81% N/A
1.49EZ1.81E T EA
Expected dividend yield TEEAR B & 5.66% to 6.18% N/A
5.66/£%6.18& TE A

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price
over the previous one year. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted, based
on management’s best estimate, for the effects
of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
approximately HK$69,052,000 (2010: nil) for the
year ended 31 December 2011 in relation to share
options granted by KLHL.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been
used to estimate the fair value of the option. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

TEHURRIZA R R EFRERBERIEE
E o R TARSFHREREH A
HEE  TERVIRTAEERZNTE
R B EMEHEHTEE

BE-_ZT—F+-_A=+—HILEE"
AEBREEREERIT H BB
2532 #2%869,052,0008 70 (- T —ZT4F ¢
) o

11705 — 47 B B AR U DA 2148
SR AT - SHEE AWM T
PR 02 BUR 332 0 B B RO BB T
o BEBREEERTET ERERY
TRSHME -
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38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 38. FIERBFER
Share of Share option
net assets of reserve of
subsidiaries  a subsidiary Total
—EHELE
EBEMBAR ZBLBERE
EERE e At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHET
At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZTF—F—H 4,603,325 14,374 4,617,699

Share of increase in fair value of available-  FEA A] &R E N T(E 2 211

for-sale investments 1,656 - 1,656
Share of exchange differences arising on  [E{FEITEINIEE E 2IRE

translation of foreign operations and to MEEZERZRE

presentation currency 123,231 - 123,231
Share of profit for the year E(EARNEEHF 1,029,299 - 1,029,299
Recognition of equity-settled AR AN

share-based payments - 303 303
Capital contribution from minority DEIRE HETIA

shareholders 163,500 - 163,500
Acquisition of additional interests in W B B A R B MER

subsidiaries (259,910) - (259,910)
Disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries HEMBE A B2 % 706,517 - 706,517
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 40) eI E A R (P FE40) (82,935) - (82,935)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders of S FHB AR Z

subsidiaries PEREZRE (473,322) - (473,322)
Transfer upon lapse of share option FREYS e PRUGIE 2 - (13,877 (13,877
At 31 December 2010 RZZ—Z2F+-A=+—H 5,811,361 800 5,812,161
Share of decrease in fair value of fE(EAIHH ERERAFEZRD

available-for-sale investment (40,618) - (40,618)

Share of exchange differences arising on ~ EIERFTEIMIEL T 2 IREH
translation of foreign operations and to MEEZERZRE

presentation currency 172,011 - 172,011
Share of profit for the year E(EREEHH 612,434 - 612,434
Recognition of equity-settled AR TEANS

share-based payments - 69,060 69,060
Capital contribution from minority DB R LS 208

shareholders 4,437 - 4,437
Acquisition of additional interests in WEERE A R RS MER

subsidiaries (89,627) - (89,627)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 40) HEMB AR (5E40) (105,826) - (105,826)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders X FHBARZ

of subsidiaries DR IS (484,793) - (484,793)
Transfer upon exercise of share option E{B S BB N T T B 575 (575) -
Transfer upon lapse of share option P e PG e - (233) (233)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=-A=+—H 5,879,954 69,052 5,949,006
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39.

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. WEMEAR

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
had the following acquisition of a subsidiary:

@)

RRE-T——£+-A=t+-ALEE
P AEERRLA T — R E AR

In February 2011, the Group acquired 100% @ R=F-—F-A AREW—H

equity interest in a company, principally engaged in
property development, from an independent third
party for a cash consideration of approximately

BYFE=—HWE—HEEBNEDE
BREZ AR Z100%%#E - LK
B %) 5404,555,00078 7T ° Itk I8 UL

} o BRIAEEEAE -
HK$404,555,000. This acquisition was reflected as
purchase of assets.
HK$’000
FAT
Consideration transferred: BEoRE:
Cash paid YRS 404,555
Assets acquired and liabilities RBRBAHBAEERBREE
recognised at the date of acquisition:
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 307
Properties held for development FERERYHE 404,228
Trade and other receivables and B 5 R E MW AR R B ROR
prepayments 12
Bank balances and cash IRITEBER S 36
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMBESIRR (28)
404,555
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WiEEE>R$FHFE
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (404,555)
Bank balances and cash acquired BARITEHERS 36
(404,519)
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39. ACAQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. WHEKEB AT (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group REBE-ZT-—ZEFF+_A=+—RLLFE
had the following acquisition of subsidiaries: W AKBEWRETIIMEAR
() In March 2010, the Group acquired 100% equity ) R=F-FF=A AREW—H

BYFE-—HAWE—HEENEDE
BREZ AR Z100%M%# - LK
{E#9/485,800,00078 7T ° Itk I8N BE

interest in a company, principally engaged in
property development, from an independent third
party for a cash consideration of approximately

. . RBEEEE -
HK$85,800,000. This acquisition has been
reflected as purchase of assets.
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred: HESRE
Cash paid TS 85,800
Assets acquired at the date of RUBEHBALE :
acquisition:
Prepayments for acquisition of HE B T (S AR 2 TR FRIR
land use rights 85,800
Outflow of cash and cash equivalents WE—RBHfBATIZES
in respect of the acquisition of kESEEEBERZRS
a subsidiary:
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (85,800)
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39. ACAQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. WHEKEB AT (&)

(c) In April 2010, the Group acquired 100% equity (© R-IE—ZFNA  KEEMR—F
interest in a company, principally holding a land BUYE =AW —RHEBEREE
use right in the PRC for redevelopment purpose, BB+ ERAEEEN SRR S
from an independent third party for a cash Z AT Z100% R - HeREL
consideration of approximately HK$13,700,000. 718,700,000/ 7T © It I8 R B I A
This acquisition has been reflected as purchase of BEBEEE -
assets.

HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred: EHESRE:
Cash paid YHRRE 13,700
Assets acquired at the date of RBBRPBALE :
acquisition:
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 3,685
Prepaid lease payments FERHAERE 10,010
Bank balances and cash RITEBER® 5
13,700

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEE4+ RS RHTE
Cash consideration paid BESRE (13,700)
Bank balances and cash acquired BARTESRNES 5

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BEEAWE RS RIRSSEER
in respect of the acquisition iiaebecx:cl (13,695)
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39. ACAQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. WHEKEB AT (&)

(d) In June 2010, the Group acquired 100% equity (d) RIZE—ZTEXRA AEER—F
interest in a company, principally holding a land BUYFE=ZHWE—RHEBEREE
use right in the PRC for redevelopment purpose, BB+ ERAEEEN SRR S
from an independent third party for a cash ZREZ100%Em - HeRER
consideration of HK$10,526,000. This acquisition 10,526,000 7T - WIBEWERK A
has been reflected as purchase of assets. BEEE -

HK$’000
FAT
Consideration transferred: W RE
Cash paid TS 10,526
Assets acquired at the date of RUBEHBALE :
acquisition:
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 249
Prepaid lease payments JERAERE 5,943
Other receivables HAth EUER K 4,252
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER® 82
10,526

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEE4+ RS RHTE
Cash consideration paid BESRE (10,526)
Bank balances and cash acquired BASRTESRNES 82

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BEEAWE RS RIRSSEER
in respect of the acquisition TR (10,444)
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40. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES 40.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
had the following disposal of a subsidiary:

HERE AT
BE_F-—FT_A=tAILFE
AREHEAT - EHEAR -

(@) In April 2011, the Group disposed of its entire (a)
equity interest in a company, principally engaged
in manufacture and distribution of methanol, to an
independent third party for a cash consideration of

RZZ——FNA  AEBE[BEL
FoHHEXFBRERERDEF
gz aElz 2 EpeE - HeREY
7£169,280,000/8 7T - RHE R

approximately HK$169,280,000. The net assets at ZEEFENT :
the date of disposal were as follows:
HK$’000
FAT
Consideration received: 2UWRE -
Cash received [EA ¢k 169,280
Analysis of assets and liabilities over Ak EEERBBIEFIEZ DM
which control was lost:
Properties, plant and equipment Wz - BB REE 234,156
Prepaid lease payments FERHAERE 14,990
Inventories FE 3,213
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAEBERR 32,958
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 3,318
Trade and other payables Z 5 REMBERER (46,310)
Taxation payable FEREIE (1,811)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFAE 240,514
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—EMBARMEE 2K !
Consideration received BURIE 169,280
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (240,514)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR A R A 105,826
Gain on disposal o S P A 2 e 34,592
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEECHSRATE .
Cash consideration received BKERSRE 169,280
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERS MFREEEY (3,318)
165,962
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40. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40.
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
had the following disposal of subsidiaries:

HEWB AT &)
BHE-—T-—THF+-A=t+—HIEE -
AEEHETHHBEAT :

(b) In January 2010, the Group disposed of its entire (o)
equity interests in companies, principally engaged

RZT—FF—F  AEERET
FEoAHEFENFRERDHEE
FRMEZAEz2HBEE  Be
RIE#5115,584,000/87C - A

in manufacture and distribution of electronic
raw materials, to independent third parties for

a total cash consideration of approximately ERAHEEFENT
HK$115,584,000. The combined net assets at the
date of disposal are as follows:
HK$’'000
FAT
Consideration received: BURE :
Cash received BUYERE 115,584
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KEBEEREBEESIE
which control was lost: 2o
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BB N&E 131,256
Non-current deposits EREET® 172
Prepaid lease payments TETRERIE 1,507
Inventories ey 37,767
Trade and other receivables E 5 K E At R AR K 251,317
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 80,045
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMEMER (262,188)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (41,357)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 198,519
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HENBARMEE 2 WS
Consideration received BARE 115,584
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (198,519
Non-controlling interests FEPERRAE R 82,935
Gain on disposal o S P A 2 e -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZHSRATE
Cash consideration received BUERERE 115,584
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of i : HEHRITEHRIES (80,045)
35,539
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40. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

©

In January 2010, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in a company, principally engaged
in investment holding, to an independent third
party for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$8. The net assets at the date of disposal are as

=)
ma

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ = H=+—HI - F/Z

PR ERAR Y RE

HEMBAR 2

()

RZE—ZF—F AEEA—%
BUF=FPE—MEBRERE
Bl REz 2R RE - ReRE
HR8ET - REERHZEEF
[ERCRNE

follows:

HK$’000
FABT
Consideration received: BURE :
Cash received BUERE -
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KEEEREEZEGIRE
which control was lost: ZAH
Other receivables HAb fEUER R 17,738
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 9,600
Other payables HAbERERR (27,338)
Net liabilities disposed of HEaEFE -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RBMEARAEE 2 WE !
Consideration received 2HRIE -
Net liabilities disposed of HESBEFE -
Gain on disposal o S P A 2 e -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS R FE .
Cash consideration received BKERSRE -
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of & : H&ERITABREIRS (9,600)
(9,600)

Annual Report 2011 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 2923
T —FFH BELIER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 Bl #& SRR MiaE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 # & - F——%F+ - H=+—HI - F/Z

40. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. HEKMBAR @)

(d) In July 2010, the Group disposed of its entire () RZZTE—FFLA  AEER—F
equity interests in companies, principally engaged BUE=-HAHEFERBRERD
in manufacture and distribution of electronic HEBTEMBZ AR 222 -
raw materiels, to an independent third party AR (B4 5469,148,0008 7T ° KA
for a total cash consideration of approximately HEAHZEEFANT ¢

HK$469,148,000. The net assets at the date of
disposal are as follows:

HK$’000
FAT
Consideration received: 2UWRE -
Cash received [EA ¢k 40,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities over Ak E&EERSBEHE
which control was lost: 2o
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BB N&E 317,273
Prepaid lease payments FERHAERE 5,138
Non-current deposits ERENET® 6,033
Inventories ey 75,862
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EWER R 429,322
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 88,962
Trade and other payables 5 R EHMENER (403,442)
Bank borrowings IRITEE (50,000)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 469,148
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBARMEEZWE :
Consideration received and receivable B WA E 469,148
Net assets disposed of HELEFE (469,148)
Gain on disposal o S P A 2 e -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS R FE .
Cash consideration received BKERSRE 40,000
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of & : H&RITABREIRS (88,962)
(48,962)
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PR ERAR Y RE

COMMITMENTS 41. EiE
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
Capital expenditure contracted for but 3t 2 :T4918 R R iEA B 5k
not provided in the consolidated ERBE 2 BT H -
financial statements in respect of:
— acquisition of properties, plant and —EBEWE  WENEE
equipment 575,554 708,533
— acquisition of properties — B 447,042 503,344
— capital injection in an unlisted —JEFMIEEZITESE
investment 12,458 18,917
Capital expenditure in respect of B EEERETON
acquisition of properties, plant WEEYE « R R R
and equipment authorised but not TEREY
contract for 2,319 -
1,037,373 1,230,794

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

@)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the
Company’s subsidiary, Kaiping Elec & Eltek
No.3 Company Limited (“KPEE#3”) was involved
in potential lawsuits, claims and proceedings
with one of its PRC customers amounting to
approximately RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$34,017,000), arising from some negative
feedback from the end users of the assembled
products using PCBs supplied by KPEE#3.

KPEE#3 has reached a composite agreement
with its PRC customer and paid approximately
RMB7,500,000 (approximately HK$9,000,000)
on November 24, 2011 as a full and final
lump sum against the original claim amount of
RMB30,000,000. Accordingly, both the PRC
customer and the KPEE#3 were finally and
irrevocably discharged and free of any obligation
towards each other regarding the dispute. The
trade receivables from the same customer
amounted to HK$800,000 was written off against
provision.

42.

HREE

(@)

REBEE_Z—ZF+_A=+—
BIEFEAR  KRalzHER7
AP ERFZEETE=ZBRAT
(IKPEE#3 ) IR —FZ B R
& AR #30,000,0007C (HHE R
34,017,0007 7T ) 2 EEFHFL ~ B
RMEERF  SHERRREKABP
$ LAKPEE#S L fiE 7 Rl 47 7% MR 25
MEMZBEHE -

R—_E——F+—A=_+mWmA -
KPEE#3EiF B B P E K 4R & 15
& W4 AR 7,500,0007T
(##8 % 19,000,000/87T) * 1EA
R = {8 % A K 30,000,000 7T #J
2HERBEFIIE - At - ZFEE
F N KPEE#3 % 42 1~ 7] 41 3 31 7
R FRAE N 2 EREE -
ERE—BRFPHWE S BRI
800,000/8 TLHE B R i 38 o
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42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2011,
KLHL Group and KBCF have been named as
defendants in the Supreme Court of Bermuda
in respect of an allegation of the affairs of KBCF
have been and or are being conducted in a
manner which is oppressive or unfairly prejudicial
to the minority interests of KBCF. The petitioner
is seeking an order to KLHL to purchase all of the
KBCF’s shares held by petitioner at the price to be
fixed by a valuer or Supreme Court of Bermuda.
As at 31 December 2011, the Supreme Court of
Bermuda has not strike out the claims and the
lawyer has advised KLHL and KBCF to wait for an
amended petition before taking actions to contest
the allegation. Management and KLHL’s lawyer
are of the view that there is no evidential basis for
these claims which in their view is speculative in
nature and is at a very early stage. Accordingly, no
provision for liability has been made in connection
with this claim.
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42, FAREBE &)

()

HE_T——HF+ZA=+—AL
FE - @EEEREEKRKBCFE
BRESAEREIEKBCFEE
KSR BT TRY 7 R D BIES E
BT FPRKBCFLHRE - 25
ASSOER HIE BB ERIZ S ERD
FERERDERETNEREE
FTE 25 AFTHKBCF&R % » K=
T——F+ZA=1+—H BRE
EHRER W ABHEZERR - ME
EEMEMREEERE R RKBCFE
HIEEEITIRAT S KB 2
e BEEREEEEREEZRER
RE - RERRVERE  BIHEE
RN R FEE R HARK ER o E UL -
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43. OPERATING LEASES 43. KEHED
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
The Group as lessee: REBERAEEA
Lease payments charged to the FREGZEWERINGRZ
consolidated income statement HEFIA
during the year
— for premises — 14,939 15,023
— for plant and machinery — 7 Mk 1,021 1,200
15,960 16,223
Under the leases entered into by the Group, all lease BIEREERTZ 2L - AEHERIEZ
payments are fixed and predetermined. SHEEIRETEREBERERE ¢
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future RBEHARELERER - AKERETTH
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases HRERHON BRI 2 HERIBER
are payable as follows: THIEAE S A
Premises Plant and machinery
L/ BB R B8
2011 2010 2011 2010
=25 —_T-TF ZB——F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FHET FExT FExT
Within one year R—ER 44571 24614 1,021 187
After one year but not R—FEER
later than five years HER 57,086 25,757 - 25
After five years RAFE 47,902 44,453 - 44
149,559 94,824 1,021 256
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43. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 43. RK&EHEN )
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
The Group as lessor/licensor: AEEEADEABREA
Rental income credited to the RERFTAGRER=ZRZ
consolidated income statement during A& Ut A - O IR L EE4Y
the year, net of outgoing amount of 59,213,000/ 7T
approximately HK$59,213,000 (ZZF—FF : 48,664,000
(2010: HK$48,664,000) BIT) 177,661 77,015
Licence income credited to the RENFTAGRE WamTk 2 B
consolidated income statement during  {ERUA - O IR S 8H4Y
the year, net of outgoing amount of 11,2908 7L( = —FF -
approximately HK$11,290 (2010: nil) ) 28,710 -
The Group’s investment properties are rented to REE IR EYFEIIRTERETE < EEME
outside parties for periods up to seven years at fixed SHFINRAL  HHERALF - KNIk
predetermined amounts. At the end of the reporting LHHBAERER - AEBEEBFRIVA
period, the Group had contracted with tenants to receive 4 AR ABRWER  &RIERERENT ¢
the following future minimum lease payments:
2011 2010
—B——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Within one year R—FR 256,405 63,414
After one year but not later than five
years R—FRERAFA 225,948 28,189
After five years RAFE 89,195 265
571,548 91,868
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43.

44.

OPERATING LEASES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants to receive the following future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases.

Included in the amount within one year was the future
minimum licence fee payment of HK$90,000,000 arising
on the licence agreement. The Group licences its licenced
assets and committed the Licencee for the licence
agreement as followings:

° Within the first twelve months of the licence,
either the Group or the Licencee may terminate
the licence agreement at its sole discretion, by
serving on the other party not less than one month
prior notice in writing and paying the other party
HK$1,000,000 or such other amount as may be
mutually agreed in writing between both parties.

° After the first twelve months of the licence, the
Group may terminate the licence agreement at
its sole discretion, by serving on the Licencee not
less than one month prior notice in writing.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s bank deposits of
HK$133,245,000 (2010: HK$121,636,000) are pledged
to banks to secure the banking facilities of the Group.

43.

44.

.,

i
bt L
waim !
i)

PR ERAR Y RE

KeEHN =)
RBEMEEREE - AEECRBASET
TAK  IRET A 2 E SO
Bz SIERH RO T :

—FRAZEBEERERREERBRELEN
R S AKX #E £ A & 14 090,000,000 78
TC o IRIBREE R AREREER
BAERNEEEREERAENT

. EREERE T @A - RNEEH
EREATTR2ERIEE M5
—HBEETNOR—EAELEESHE
- AR 5 — 75 32 141,000,000 78
TRETEAMBENVEMSE - &
IR R i o

. EEEFRET_EA%Z A%£E
ARAEREAZEHTIDR—EAS
SEMBA - RIEREERRZ

EEER
RZZT——E+-"A=+—8  AEER
7117 3% 133,245,000 L (=T — T F
121,636,000 70 ) B TIR1T - ERAE
ERITREE MRS o
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45.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment
of the MPF Scheme are members of both the ORSO
Scheme and the MPF Scheme, whereas all new
employees joining the Group on or after December 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme.

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated
by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme
and the state-managed retirement benefit schemes of
approximately HK$81,534,000 (2010: HK$88,847,000)
are charged to the consolidated income statement.
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RAKERETE

AR B[R B2 00— AR BB R IS
R B RE M 2 78 BB 4 R ET 8 ([ B 2 R IRE
g D RBERFIEAEREIR —_ZEE
Fro AR ZBHMERESFEI([ 815
T3] c REFEZEELARBZE
EDRFE  LIRENBERAZGZE
& o R BB B ZAE 2 MBEER
et 2B E - RARKARBERKTER
BETHEZKE  MAER_ZTTTHF
ToARZBRMAR KRB ZHRE VAR
sgiEEErE -

KRB ERRZEERTEBRMTEREZ
BRERRARNTEKE - ZFMER
AARH X HZ R — B D HRARKE
B AN BBREFN - AEBERAKEF
BT E—BEA AR HN -

MEERRATE ARSI RERER
RIKEFEH Bl 2 5314 581,534,000
BIL(ZZT—Z4F : 88,847,000/ 70) © I
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. FREALXRS

The Group entered into the following significant
transactions with related parties during the year.

AEBEAHEALTEFANETZEAR
ST

2011 2010
—E——F TETE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHT
Sales of goods to subsidiaries of the  [AIZAA B IR AR EE 2 M /E A 7
Company’s controlling shareholder HEEm 838,256 170,242
Purchase of goods from subsidiaries  [RIZAR BIHEMRALER 2 HTE A )
of the Company’s controlling REEM
shareholder 622,473 358,370
Sales of goods to a minority M —fEM B ARz D EIER
shareholder of a subsidiary SHEE M 103,915 227,302
Purchase of goods from a minority M)A E ARz DEAE
shareholder of a subsidiary REER - 19,665
Purchase of goods from an associate A — & & A 75k 245,326 199,660

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
sold 35,500,000 shares of KLHL to a substantial
shareholder of the Company at a consideration of
HK$269,800,000 (2011: nil).

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments
at 31 December 2011 was an amount due from a
minority shareholder of a subsidiary of approximately
HK$17,337,000 (2010: HK$17,523,000) which was in
trade nature. The Group allowed credit periods of up to
120 days, depending on the product sold to its related
parties.

Included in trade and other payables at 31 December
2011 was an amount due to an associate of
approximately HK$33,970,000 (2010: HK$11,502,000)
which was in trade nature. The related party offers credit
periods of up to 120 days to the Group.

BHE_Z-—ZTF+_A=+—-HILF
B AEBRARAZEERREE
35,500,000 lx B R E R ikt - RER
269,800,000/ (= F——4% : &) o

RZFB——F+ZA=+—H EHRK
HERERRENRBEREBRE S
1 2 AR — T P B 2 B D BB SR FRIR Y
17,337,000/ 7L (ZF —Z4F : 17,523,000
BIL) - ARERABEATRL ZEEH
HRMA1208 - \YFAHEEZERTME °

R-ZZ——F+-A=+—H0 EBZKH
ENERBEBNE SIS 2 A —HE
B A B FUIAHY33,970,0008 0 ( — T —F
F 1 11,502,000/87T) - BEEALRAE
B2 EEBRRA1208 ©
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BB ERAR P RE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 46. HBRBEALIRS &)
Compensation of key management personnel TESEASHS
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key ER EERHEMIESEAS SN
management during the year was as follows: T -
2011 2010
—B——fF —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Short-term benefits EEEA 200,575 215,527
Post-employment benefits RIKIEEF) 1,764 1,663
Share-based payments VARG 1 FE SRR 138,449 103
340,788 217,293
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is EERFETBRABZHE LT NEES
determined by the remuneration committee having regard ZRERE TR ETISBPIEET
to the performance of individuals and market trends.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 47. :{Z&HIEERSEH
The following significant events took place subsequent to N IFEAEHE_ZET——F+_A=+—
31 December 2011: HiggA

1

On 6 March 2012, Sino Raise Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liabilities
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the Preliminary Agreement to acquire
a commercial building in Hong Kong from Delta
Realty Limited for a total cash consideration of
HK$1,278,800,000.

Details of which are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 6 March 2012.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period
on 9 March 2012, the Group made an offer to
third party to acquire the interest in a company
engaged in the holding and development of
properties in Hong Kong. The Group had at the
same time entered into a confidentiality agreement
with the vendor with obligation against disclosure
of the particular of this acquisition. The Group had
been notified by the vendor on 19 March 2012
that the Group’s offer in relation to the proposed
acquisition was not accepted.
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48. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 48. ZATZE&KEE

COMPANY
The financial information of the Company as at 31 KARR_E—F+_A=+—HKEZ
December 2011 and 31 December 2010 is as follows: E—FEF+_A=F+—HZHBEERDT :
2011 2010
—B-—-F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT BT
Total assets BEEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R K RE 6,312 7,262
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIEE 728,264 640,044
Deferred tax asset FEIERLIBE E 2,160 8,240
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 513,660 234,114
Other receivables H b FEUER TR 63,692 18,926
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE R BT BB A B FRIE 19,201,624 14,898,305
Bank balances IRITHEER 24,612 60,347
20,540,324 15,867,238
Total liabilities BERE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERERRK 5,067 2,060
Derivative financial instrument PTHESRTA 13,089 49,941
Amounts due to subsidiaries NGB e 5,409,528 5,069,632
Bank borrowings RITEE 9,546,427 4,527,778
14,974,111 9,649,411
Capital and reserves JR AN 2 fE
Share capital &N 85,467 84,950
Reserves (Note) A hEED) 5,480,746 6,132,877
5,566,213 6,217,827
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48. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 48. ZARQATZHBEEE %)

o

COMPANY (continued)
Note: MsE -
Capital Share Investment
Share Capital redemption Warrant option revaluation Hedging Retained Total
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
.53
ROER RARR RAROER ARERER RREER REBHEE HhGR REEA RAHE
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS000
THRL T TEL TEL TR T THL TERL TR
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-F-TE-A-H2E4 4,404,007 38,953 - - 28,616 (73,524) 1,866,174 6,266,137
Profit for the year TERAT - - - - - - 615377 616,377
Increase i fair value of AR ERERTEZEN
avalable-for-sale investments - - - - 21922 - - 21922
Investment revaluation resenve HERE RABREE
released on disposal - - - - (18,198) - - (18,198)
Gain on cash flow hedging ReRHATANG
instruments - - - - - 33962 - 33,962
Deferred tax recognised inrelation  SiH&THREHTER
tochangein cash flowhedges 2T E - - - - - 2,189 - (2,139
Total comprehensive income TER2ANEEE
for the year - - - - 3724 31,823 615,377 650,924
Recogntion of equity component
of warrants - - 675,791 - - - (675,791) -
Issue of new shares from exercise
of share options 16,998 - - - - - - 16,998
Issue of new shares from exercise {7 ARERMEZ
of warants HRiA 4228 - (705) - - - - 3518
Final dividend for the yearended ~ BZ-FEA%+-A
31 December 2009 SH-BLERZRERS - - - - - - (380,133) (380,133)
Interim dividend for the year ended ~ £Z-%-%4+-7
31 December 2010 ST-AEERZRERE - - - - - - (424,567) (424,567)
21221 - 675,086 - - - (1,480491) (784,184)
Balance at 1 January 2011 RoE--E-f-Bri4 4425208 38,953 675,086 - 32,340 (41,701) 1,001,060 6,132,877
Proft for the year FERE - - - - - - 68,004 68,04
Decrease in fair velue of AR ERERTEZED
available-for-sale investments - - - - (158,207) - - (158,207)
Investment revaluation resenve HERRZRASREE
released on disposal - - - - 6,163 - - 6,163
Impairment loss on ARHEREZHERR
avalable-for-sale investments - - - - 44639 - - 44639
Transfer to proft or loss on
cash flow hedging instruments - - - - - 36,852 - 36,852
Deferred tax recognised in relation
to change in cash flow hedges - - - - - (6,081) - (6,081)
Total comprehensive income TEERANGER
forthe year - - - - (107,408) 30,771 68,004 8540)
Issue of new shares from exercise
of share options 16,283 - - - - - - 16,283
Issue of new shares from exercise
of warants ZHRt 33319 - 5,568) - - - - 27,754
Recogntion of equity component B ZREREETH
of share-based payment - - - 167,039 - - - 167,039
Final dividend for the yearended ~ §Z-F-%4+-4
31 December 2010 ST-ALERZAERE - - - - - - (612800) (612,800)
Interim dividend for the year ended ~ HZ=F——%+=4
31 December 2011 S-BrER2RERE - - - - - - (341,867) (341,867)
49,602 - - (6,569 167,039 - - (854,667) (643,591)
Balance at 31 December 2011 RoB——%12A=+-8
288 4474830 38,963 1,911 669,521 167,039 (75,065) (10,930) 214,487 5,480,746
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49.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

RATIEEH B

/_\l:l B/\ [

KRB EEMBARIFE

N—"=

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/  Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
AL/ BRTRARKRAE/ rEERE
WEAREHE BOREXILE EfER BRBRE TEER
2011 2010
“2—-% CZ-%%
% %
Jamplan (BVI) Limited British Virgin US$1,000 100* 100*  Investment holding
Islands # 1,000%7 RERKR
AERAES
Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates Co. ~ PRC' US$29,466,000 66.42 66.02  Manufacture and distribution
Limited PR | 29,466,000% 7 of laminates
RE(BR)BRRERAR HER S HEARR
Kingboard (Fogang) Paper Laminates  PRC ! US$17,936,546 66.42 66.02  Manufacture and distribution
Co. Ltd. HE 17,936,546 T of laminates
BE(RR)ERSRERAA HERHEERAR
Kingboard (Hebei) Cokechem Co. PRC! RMB96,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Limited R AK#96,000,0007C of coke
BECTIE)ELERDE BERDBER
Kingboard (Hebei) Chemical Co. Limited PRC * RMB357,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
BE(TIIERAR e AR%357,000,0007C of chemicals
HERDH T Em
Kingboard Natural Gas Chemical PRCT 1S$18,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
(Chong Qing) Limited HE 18,500,000% T of methanol
BEABANI(ER)BRAR BERDETER
EIBIRE£BRAF PRC! 1US$90,000,000 100 100 Property developments
e 90,000,000% T FHELR
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49. ZAATTEMEBATEHEB 2
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/  Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
ERAL/ BRIRMRRE/ rEERE
WEAR SR BRREENY EER ZERRE TEER
2011 2010
8- ZT-TF
% %
Heng Yang Kingboard Chemical PRC! HK$30,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Co., Ltd. g 30,000,0007C of clanstic soda
ERRELITERAR HER R
Kingboard (Lianzhou) Fibre Glass PRC US$13,700,000 66.42 66.02  Manufacture and distribution
Co. Limited 1 13,700,000% 7T of glass fabric
REGEN BB ERAF BERSBRRGHD
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Bermuda US$72,250,000 42.89+ 42.63+  Investment holding
Limited @ REE: 72,250,000% T REARR
Kingboard Investments Limited Hong Kong * HK$8,000 100 100 Investment holding
BEREBRAT M 8,000 7T RAER
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited 2 Cayman Islands * HK$300,000,000 66.42 66.02  Investment holding
RERERERERAR FEMHE 300,000,000/ REER
Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) PRC! HK$189,491,052 66.42 66.02  Manufacture and distribution
Co., Ltd. R 189,491,052/ 7T of laminates
IFRERERERAR HERHERNAR
Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical Co., Ltd. PRC 1JS$28,000,000 66.42 66.02  Manufacture and distribution
BE(IHIARAR - 28,000,000 T of chemicals
HERA B IER
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49. ZAATTEMEBATEHEB 2
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/  Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
ERAL/ BRIRMRRE/ rEERE
WEAR SR BRREENY EMER ZERRE TEER
2011 2010
“2—-% C—Z-%%
% %
Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) PRC! 1S$32,010,000 66.42 66.02  Manufacture and distribution
Co., Ltd, hE 32,010,000 of laminates
REEER(BW)ERLE SERS HERARR
Elec & Eltek International Holdings Bermuda/Hong HK$122,467,240 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Kong * 122,467 2407 0 RERR
KNZERREEERAT BRE/EE
Elec & Eltek International Company ~ Singapore * US$113,880,000 ¢ 69.40 69.24  Investment holding
Limited e AR * 113,880,000 ¢ REAR
KNZESEARAR @
Kai Ping Elec & Eltek Company Limited PRC 2 1US$49,520,000 65.93 $5.78  Manufacture and distribution
RTRNZEEFRRAT i 2 49,520,000% T of PCBs
BER DRI
Kaiping Elec & Eltek No.3 Company ~ PRC? US$87,800,000 65.93 65.78  Manufacture and distribution
Limited I 2 87,800,000% 7 of PCBs
BT EAZEEFE=ERAT SER D BERISHAR
Kaiping Elec & Eltek No.5 PRC2 US$30,075,100 65.93 65.78  Manufacture and distribution
Company Limited i 30,075,100% ¢ of PCBs
ATENZEEFERARAA BERDHERISHR
Elec & Eltek (Guangzhou) Electronic ~ PRC2 1JS$95,596,000 68.01 67.86  Manufacture and distribution of
Company Limited i 95,596,000 7T PCBs
KHZE(EN)EFERAH SBER D BERISHAR
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BB ERAR Y RE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49. AATTEWEATHE =)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/  Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
AL/ BRATRMRRE/ AEERE
WRARER BRREENE EfER ZEHRE TEEH
2011 2010
2% C—T-Ff%
% %
Guangzhou Elec & Eitek Microvia PRC? US$24,800,000 68.01 67.86  Manufacture and distrioution of
Technology Limited i 24,800,000% 7T PCBs
BN 2B ER R ERAR SEER D BERISHAR
Elec & Eltek (Thailand) Limited Thailand Baht780,000,000 69.40 69.24  Manufacture and distribution of
% 780,000,000%%8% PCBs
SER D DRI
Huizhou Chung Shun Chemical PRC 1US$40,290,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution of
Company Limited 1 40,290,000% 7 phenol/acetone
EMBEIIERAT BERDHAD/RH
Shi You Chemical (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC'! US$144,237,000 100 90 Refining and distribution of
ERICIOBM)ERAR e 144,237,000% T chemicals
RENA B IER
Kingboard Electronic Raw Material PRC! US$30,000,000 66.42 66.02  Manufacture and distribution of
(Jiang Yin) Co., Ltd. ] T 30,000,000% ¢ laminates
REETHR(IR)ERAF HERS HEARR
Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) PRC! RMB250,000,000 66.42 66.02  Manufacture and distribution of
Petrochemical Company Limted #1801 250,000,000%7C chemicals
BE(EEED)ALERRA HERAEILIm

R —FFHR BELCIER
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49.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

*

The Company directly holds the equity interest in Jamplan (BVI)
Limited. The Company’s equity interest in all other subsidiaries is
held indirectly through Jamplan (BVI) Limited.

These are investment holding companies which have no specific
principal place of operations.

These companies are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of KLHL
and are regarded as non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company because the Group has control over the financial and

49. ARREXENBLARFHE@

* 7K A A H # # 4 Jamplan (BVI) Limited 2 %
W o NRRIRFTE EM B QR 2 RESER
Jamplan (BVI) Limited@ #3574 -

=

S RREERAT  WEEE 2 T BELH
B e

- HEARBEERERZEZEREMBA
Al WEARKBEHZE R RO E QBB
BEEENIE BAARRNZEBEEMNELR

operating policies of these companies. &l e
o These companies are listed on the SGX. ° P ER AR LT o
A These companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. A I3 ANy e Tl i

These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprises.

These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected

the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

! WS RBTAINEBE R E R A EPBEKT

2 IEARTIAFIEER ERERAFEH BN

e
ERFIAREETRATEXEAKERE

FEEZARRIMBAR - EERRIIL
Hitt B AR ZFEERN LR

WA RN F RGBT ER
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RESULTS ¥E
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HLEE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—TTHF  ZZEINF ZTENF ZE-TF —B——f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHIT T FER
(Restated)
(& =75)
Revenue 40 20,025,112 23,681,401 23,863,373 33,891,522 = 36,559,072
Profit before taxation BRI F 3,717,184 2,325,502 3,214,180 5,166,338 3,719,637
Income tax expense FriS#ip (245,030) (194,231) (248,484) (616,221) (513,061)
Profit for the year RNEERF 3,472,154 2,131,271 2,965,696 4,650,117 3,206,576
Attributable to: eI %R
Owners of the Company AR EHEE A 2,778,321 1,705,850 2,396,030 3,620,818 2,594,142
Non-controlling interests ~ JE¥ERG A% SR AE %5 693,833 425,421 569,666 1,029,299 612,434
3,472,154 2,131,271 2,965,696 4,650,117 3,206,576
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
At 31 December
W+=A=+—-H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ZTF —ZTN\F ZZTNF —Z2-TF —E——f
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHIT FHIT FHIT FHET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Total assets BEREAE 34,941,986 38,241,465 43,374,536 51,267,210 60,459,227
Total liabilities BERE (12,715,190)  (14,624,264) (17,250,420) (19,684,875) (26,464,841)
22,226,796 23,617,201 26,124,116 31,582,335 33,994,386
Equity attributable to VA/NCIESYEPN
owners of the Company  fE{5# % 18,277,703 19,354,046 21,506,417 25,770,174 28,045,380
Non-controlling interests ~ JE¥ER A% SR E RS 3,949,093 4,263,155 4,617,699 5,812,161 5,949,006
22,226,796 23,617,201 26,124,116 31,682,335 33,994,386
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